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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Chairman EE
Shi Kancheng ik

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of Zhong An Real Estate Limited (“Zhong An” or “the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”), | am pleased to
present the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
(“the year under review”).

REVIEW OF RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the turnover of the Group was
approximately RMB2.44 billion, representing an increase of approximately
1.8% as compared with that of 2012; gross profit was approximately
RMBO0.92 billion, representing a similar level as compared with that of
2012; core profit after tax (excluding gain in fair value revenue of investment
property, after tax) was RMB0.22 billion, a decrease of approximately
36.1% as compared with that of 2012; and basic earnings per share were
RMBO0.18. The board of directors of the Company (“the Board”) proposed
to declare a final dividend of RMB1.8 cents per share for the year (2012:
nil), subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company to be held on Monday, 19 May 2014,
to those shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Monday, 16 June 2014. The final dividend is expected to
be paid on Monday, 14 July 2014 in Hong Kong dollars.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®/E

MARKET AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2013, regulatory control remained the main theme of the PRC real estate
market with support for end-user demand while suppressing speculations.
In face of the ever-changing market conditions, the Group adhered to
its prudent and stable business approach and maintained its focus on
the Yangtze River Delta Region, timely adopting an operation and sales
strategy which matched the market situation and launched products of
high cost performance catering for end-users and attaining satisfactory
results.

For the year under review, two new residential projects were launched for
sale, including the multi-storey apartments of Times Square in Yuyao and
of Ideal Bay in Linping, Hangzhou and certain phases of on sale projects.
In 2013, the Group had nine residential projects on sale located in seven
cities and districts in the Yangtze River Delta Region and the overall sales
result was basically in line with our expectation. For the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group recorded contracted sales of approximately
RMB3.57 billion, representing an increase of approximately 64% as
compared with that of 2012, and contracted GFA sold of approximately
352,000 sg. m., representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
94%, with contracted average selling price of approximately RMB10,133
per sg. m..
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®|E

DIVERSIFYING BUSINESS PORTFOLIO
AND EXPANSION OF REVENUE BASE

Besides devoting in residential property development, the Group
proceeded towards the development of commercial and investment
properties in a steady progress, developed urban complex to create
value for cities as well as expanded distinctive property management and
value-added services so as to build up a diversified business portfolio for
enhancing the overall competitiveness as well as mitigating operational
risks.

For the year under review, Holiday Inn of the Group in Xiaoshan, Hangzhou
was in smooth operation with steady occupancy rate. Revenue from
hotel operation was similar to that of 2012. Currently, the Group has six
high-end hotels under construction or in planning stage, including the
two hotels managed under the “Run Zhou” brand in Huaibei, Anhui and
Qiandao Lake, Hangzhou, as well as four other hotels to be managed
by internationally renowned hotel operators, namely the Doubletree by
Hilton in Yuyao, Ningbo, JW Marriott Suzhou in Jinjihu, Suzhou, Fairmount
and Swissotel at Qianjiang Century Town in Hangzhou, which will be
successively put into operation starting from 2015. Meanwhile, the leasing
of Highlong Plaza in Xiaoshan, Hangzhou, the flagship project of the
Group, was satisfactory for the year under review. The leasing rate for
shopping centre and office buildings remained high, and revenue from
leasing saw a slight increase compared to that of 2012. The Hidden
Dragon Bay Project was completed in April 2013. The operation of the
shopping mall and street shops has begun. The overall leasing was good
and began to contribute a stable cash flow for the Group. At present,
the Group has four major investment properties under construction or
planning. These include high-end shopping centres and grade A office
buildings located in Yuyao of Ningbo, Jinjihu of Suzhou, Qianjiang Century
Town of Hangzhou and the district centre of Xiaoshan, Hangzhou, which
will also be put into operation starting from 2015.

In 2013, taking advantage of the new urbanization development strategy
put forward by the new government, the Group entered into the land
development market for new towns of China which is considered to have
huge growth potential. The Group signed land development cooperation
agreements with the governments of Tonglu County and Baita Town,
Xianju County, Zhejiang to develop new towns and related infrastructures
planning.
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ERREMFER  STEER/MMAIEBEN
miRe R EERRFEMEEE MEERE
RAMERERE - UELZT(EWEBHES
RItGAENMTURREET -

REBEFERA - REEBRTUATMNELORZR
BBEEELERARLT  AMERRBIETE BEE
FWAE2012F %5 - BAl - AEEBHEER
FERZSREIE B RImEE - 151E 2015 F Ak
BN EIE - R R BUEIL TN T S8
BIEEARDT DEM] @B TER - HANEKS
BEMEEESERELR  DEEERENER
HRERWEE  HNSBEHHRLTIWERE
JE - mMNESIIH AR ERSEE R DE
JE o ANEBEHEREIE B A RN R IL A ER BB
ABEREE  BYPOMBEAKENLAXRBE
Em o BEEEIWABR012FE - FBEEEIER
MR20135F 4 ART - BB NEETCRIREE -
BENEBIRT CRAARESEEHETH
W7 - BAl - AEEHLERNTEES R
BREIZREME  BPREMNEERY - &
M-S ZH -~ FUNEIT A - SUNEILES LA
SmETORPRETE - hig2015F A
PEEIR AN EIE o

20135 » T — AT LA BB L O B R B
B AEBEBEEREE  EFHFRANENN
PRI LRI S TS - 0 B BT & R 5
ALE B BB EBUT R . DA B E S - g
WHFA FERITME R FAREERE -

10 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

2013 Annual Report



Chairman’s Statement

EFE®/E

PRUDENT LAND ACQUISITION FOR
REPLENISHING LAND BANK

Adhering to the healthy financial policy, the Group persistently implements
its prudent land replenishment strategy of acquiring high quality land which
meets market demand at low cost at appropriate time, so as to optimize
the structure of its land bank. On 1 February 2013, the Group acquired
the land use right of a site in Longshan New Town, Cidong Binhai District
of Cixi, Ningbo, Zhejiang Province for residential and commercial uses
through open tender auction, at a total consideration of approximately
RMB238 million. The land occupies a site area of approximately 197,655
sg. m. and a total gross floor area (GFA) of approximately 494,138 sg.
m.(of which approximately 351,173 sqg.m. is for residential and 142,965
sg.m. for commercial use). The average land cost is only approximately
RMB482 per sq. m. While bringing synergies to the Group’s existing
projects in Yuyao, the project enhances the Group’s brand influence in the
Yangtze River Delta Region.

As of the date of this annual report, the Group had a land bank of
approximately 6.53 million sq. m., which is scattered in nine cities and
districts in the Yangtze River Delta Region. The land bank is expected to
support its development in the next five years. The average land cost is
approximately RMB973 per sg.m..
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®|E

OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY

Looking forward into 2014, the Chinese economy will still face challenges
with uncertainties in the global market, and the ongoing economic reforms
and structural adjustments may hamper the growth momentum in the
short term. While the regulatory controls over the real estate market are
expected to remain intact, the government will apply different restrictive
measures on different cities and regions. The stable implementation of
the new urbanization policy by the central government will provide room
for continued growth of the real estate industry. Therefore, the demands
for value-for-money and end-user’s products with potential appreciation
remain strong and solid. The Group will remain prudent in the near
term and is optimistic in the long term, and will proactively seize market
opportunities and adjust marketing and pricing strategies and product mix
to maintain sustainable development of the Group and bring satisfactory
return to our shareholders.

The Group will continue to promote its business model of ‘acquiring land
and selling products at a fair price; developing projects and receiving
sales proceeds in a quick process’, develop more quick-sale products
targeting end users and high value-added, low-density residential units in
order to accelerate asset turnover. We will continue to fully leverage on our
strong brandname and optimize marketing strategy with active marketing
as the dominant mode for more rapid growth of sales. As regards its
operational management, the Group will carry out internal reform and
adjustment, implement a series of management policies, e.g. detailed
planning management, hierarchical control and review at critical points,
further improve the standardization of product, process and system, in
order to enhance management and operational efficiency. At the same
time, the Group will continue to steadily push forward the development
of commercial and investment properties, suitably expand downstream
services in real estate industry, thereby generating stable revenue and
dispersing operational risks.

As one of the main target regions for new urbanization and modern town
development, the Yangtze River Delta Region will set its eye for building
a world-class city cluster. A veteran developer in the Yangtze River
Delta Region, Zhong An has accumulated extensive experience in the
development of complex real estate projects in the region and has built up
its own premium brand advantage. Therefore, the Group will continue its
established development strategy of seeking investment opportunities in
the affluent second and third-tier cities in the Yangtze River Delta Region
and the Top 100 counties across the country, strengthen cooperation with
its strategic partners to further expand its market share and maintain its
competitive edge in the industry.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®/E

The Group will continue to uphold a prudent financial policy, further
optimize its debt structure and maintain a stable and sufficient cash flow,
S0 as to support the Group’s development with ample funds and reduce
financing cost. By gradually building highly efficient investor relations
management system, the Group can develop a long-lasting, interactive
and favourable relation with the capital markets and the media, enhance
corporate transparency and corporate governance, and promote the
understanding, recognition and support of the Group among the general
public, thereby strengthening shareholders base.

Looking forward, the Group is committed to becoming one of the most
competitive real estate developers in the Yangtze River Delta Region, as
well as in China, and to building up a diversified and synergetic business
and product portfolio, in order to maintain sustainable development, and
maximize values and generate excellent return for our shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere gratitude to the
support and trust of our shareholders and business partners as well as the
dedicated efforts of all our staff.

Shi Kancheng
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China,
24 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B WD

RESULTS

The audited consolidated revenue of the Group for 2013 was
RMB2,437,605,000, representing an increase of about 1.8% from that
in 2012. The gross profit for 2013 was RMB918,276,000, which was
similar to that of 2012. The profit attributable to owners of the parent for
2013 was about RMB420,539,000, representing an increase of about
25.1% from that in 2012. Net core profits (excluding fair value gains in
investment properties, after tax) was RMB220,200,000, representing a
decrease of about 36.1% from that in 2012. The basic earnings per share
was RMBO0.18. The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of RMB1.8
cents per share for the year (2012: nil).

Industry Review

In 2013, the real estate industry in China continued to be affected by the
regulatory measures imposed by the central government. According to
the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the gross floor area (GFA) of
residential properties sold in 2013 was recorded at about 1.31 billion sqg.
m., representing an increase of about 17.3% which is higher than the
increment of about 6% recorded in 2012.

According to the portal site of www.tmsf.com (“fi3EB & E48”), the GFA
of residential properties sold in Hangzhou of Zhejiang Province was about
4.56 million sq. m., representing a decrease of about 8.4% as compared
to that of 2012, whereas the average selling price per sq. m. was about
RMB22,091, representing an increase of about 20.1% as compared to
that of 2012. According to the Hefei Statistical Information Public Net (“ &
R EHE BARAY”), the GFA of residential properties sold in Hefei of
Anhui Province was about 10.8 million sq. m., representing an increase of
about 41.2% as compared to that of 2012. The average selling price per
sg. m. was about RMB6,988, representing an increase of about 7.2% as
compared to that of 2012. According to the Bureau of Statistics of Huaibei
(“SEAEHETE”), the GFA of residential properties sold in Huaibei of Anhui
Province was about 2.23 million sg. m., representing an increase of about
90.2% as compared to that of 2012. The average selling price per sg.
m. was about RMB5,276, representing an increase of about 26.0% as
compared to that of 2012. According to the portal site of www.eyuyao.
com (“RILEIEH”), the GFA of residential properties sold in Yuyao of
Zhejiang Province was about 0.82 million sg. m., representing a decrease
of about 4.2% as compared to that of 2012. The average selling price per
sg. m. was about RMB12,200, representing an increase of about 1.9% as
compared to that of 2012.

£
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmESH

BUSINESS REVIEW

Sales and earnings

The GFA of properties sold and delivered by the Group in 2013 was about
263,987 sg. m. (2012: 132,842 sg. m.), representing an increase of about
98.7% compared with that of 2012.

The recognised average selling price per sq. m. achieved by the Group
in 2013 was about RMB9,152, representing a decrease of about 49.1%
from RMB17,990 in the previous year. It is due to the fact that most of the
recognised revenue was contributed by the sales of serviced apartments of
Hidden Dragon Bay in Hangzhou and residential apartments of Vancouver
City in Huaibei with average selling price of RMB8,659 and 4,729 per sg.m.
respectively in 2013 whereas that of 2012 was mainly contributed from the
sales of high-end low-density residential properties of Dragon Bay in Yuyao
with an average selling price of about RMB33,718 per sg. m..

During the year under review, the total recognised GFA sold for the major
projects of the Group and the respective recognised revenue are as

Egoqe] o
HEREF

2013%F  AEEEHERR MY EEEEEL
B263,987 F 7K (20124 : 132,842 F J73K) » &
2012 FFIHENNAI98.7% ©

20134 « AEECHEREG T KHEEHENRBA
R#69,1527T » & FFEHARKE17,9907T T R4
49.1% ° [REAZR 2013 F A H EHRIRARE
HEMMMEREENRERAE REIL AR E
WHOEELE  SFAKBEEHEIRAARE
8,659 L R AR ¥ 4,7297T » 2012 FRAIEBRE
HERKMUEESRERZEEYE  HED
BHAARKES3 7187 ¢

BEFEAR AEBEEERENCERHEEEE R
EHEREEWALT

follows:
Recognised Recognised
GFA revenue
Projects HH ERRHEERE EEREERA
sg.m. RMB million
FIK AREEET
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province AT ERM T
Hidden Dragon Bay* B pE v - 90,030 779.6
Landscape Bay S 27,193 349.8
Others* Ha 204 9.4
Yuyao, Zhejiang Province AIB R
Dragon Bay 1 5eE 16,454 577.3
Hefei, Anhui Province ZHESET
Green Harbour — Phases 1A, 1B and 1C EEE—-F1A 1B&X1CH 30,249 227.7
Huaibei, Anhui Province ZHEEELT
Vancouver City BT 99,857 472.2
Total st 263,987 2,416.0
- formerly known as Hidden Dragon Land - AIfERREEE
# including: Landscape Garden, Guotai Garden, New White Horse Apartments and ~ * BFE LK GE - BIRERE - TAEABKABFEE -

White Horse Noble Mansion.
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The average cost of properties sold per sg. m. of the Group was about
RMB5,597 in 2013, representing a decrease of about 48.3% from about
RMB10,829 in the previous year.

The main reason was that the majority of the properties sold during the
year under review was contributed by sales of residential apartments
of Vancouver City and sales of serviced apartments of Hidden Dragon
Bay which had lower average cost of sales than that of the high-end
low-density residential properties of Dragon Bay which was the main
contributor to the cost of sales in 2012.

Progress of development on the major projects

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
Landscape Bay

This is a residential project located on the south bank of Qiantang River,
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of about
300,012 sg. m.. The project includes island-style townhouses (Phase 2,
completed in 2010), high-rise apartments (Phase 1, completed in 2012)
with river view, car park lots and clubhouse. The volume of sales of this
project is within expectation.

Hidden Dragon Bay (formerly known as Hidden Dragon Land)

This is an integrated commercial complex in Wenyan Town, Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of about 241,695
sg. m.. The project includes low-rise luxurious leisure mansions for
corporations, high-rise serviced apartments, a shopping mall, street shops
and car park lots. The project was completed in April 2013. The volume of
sales of this project is within expectation.

International Office Centre

This is a large-scale integrated commercial project in Qianjiang Century
Town (5T 424, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province with
a total planned GFA of about 1,896,860 sg. m. in 3 phases, Phases A to
C. Phase A of the International Office Centre includes two hotels, office
puildings, a shopping mall, serviced apartments and underground car
parking lots. The serviced apartments, a shopping mall and underground
car parking lots of Plot A3 of Phase A, with a total GFA of about 328,367
sg. m., are now under construction and as at 31 December 2013, the
building blocks had been topped out. It is expected to be completed in
around December 2014. The entire Phase A of the International Office
Centre is expected to be completed by December 2017.

201834 » NEBFHEFE A KYEHERALN B
AREE559770 » B EFERLAREE10,8297TR
1#948.3% °

TEREASRNEBEFAMEENAEOMELE
KERFERETELAEHERREERTALE
HE - EFHHERNER 2012 FNHEESIH
BEEEEZE(ESHEERTNIERR) -

FEBFHBERER
¥OTEHRMTT
=&

RHNIE MM TRLESRETIRR 2%
&4 B300,012F 5 KMEEIEE - ZBEHSIE
APE(E28  2010F%T) 2IRRELE
(183 20125 %T)  FHEGREMAENX © Z
HEMEERFETER -

RN E N TR L [EFEIEE - BEREERED
A241,6905F FoRMEmE4r A8 - ZBEHRERES
mEERRERH  RERBAAE - KREBEDH
D BEEHRIFEISHEK c ZIEE R 2018354 A
BT o ZIERHEHETEM -

BB 20

AT B BN T ER L @ 8Tt 4 3 A — T KA
FEMEEIAR - HREIRERELN 1,896,860 T
FK - D3HAER (FAZCH) o B AH AR
HBRZEE - HAE - REBEDFL - BREAAQ
B NMEE AR - AHIE ASHERE RIS A
B REEYP ORI TEENBEEMEN R
328,367 F K BETRIEAEITH » 12013
F12A31 BEERIITE - TBEI2014F 12 AHE
BT o BIFRHE AR O ABBTERT R 2017 F 12 AR
PEET -

REFEERRAT
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White Horse Manor

This is a residential project in Xiaoheshan, Yuhang District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province with a total GFA of about 243,497 sg. m.. It consists
of high-rise residential buildings and low-density residential townhouses
situated at a hilly terrain with beautiful scenery and green vegetation. The
townhouse units are built with American architectural design and on the
terrain with spacious view. The project is in proximity to local universities
and Xixi Wetland. As at 31 December 2013, the construction was in
progress. It is expected that the project will be completed in around June
2015. The presale has been launched since 2012 and the result is within
expectation.

Ideal Bay

This is a residential project in Linping, Yuhang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province with a total GFA of about 538,856 sq. m.. The project consists
of townhouses in British architectural design and multi-storey apartment
units. As at 31 December 2013, the construction was in progress. It
is expected that the townhouse portion will be completed in around
December 2014 whereas the high-rise residential portion will be completed
in around December 2015. The presale has been launched since 2012 and
the result is within expectation.

Hangzhou Qiandao Lake Run Zhou Resort Hotel

This is a hotel project in Qiandaohu Town, Chunan County, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province with a GFA of 37,028 sg. m.. A boutique hotel will be
built at the shore of Qiandao Lake with a beautiful lake view and natural
habitat. As at 31 December 2013, the construction was in progress. It is
expected that the project will be completed in around October of 2015.

Yuyao, Zhejiang Province

Dragon Bay

This is a high-end low-density residential project in Yuyao, Zhejiang
Province with a total GFA of 196,809 sg. m.. The project consists of
French, European and Spanish-style low-rise residential buildings. As at 31
December 2013, the construction of the project was completed. The sale
during the year under review was within expectation.

B

A IETNTARME NS EEIEER - £
EEMBA /F243,497F 5K - ZIEE AR EEE
RIRZEHREARK - BIHEE - BEERILmE
RAXEXZESRG - ZBEAMTEMRBRIEZE
B o R2013F 12 A31 A BET R MEHETT
oo FERTIZIA R 5201566 ARIAET - BE
B 82012 F B ARFETE -

o

R IENTRMERTEHEEIEE - B2
SHETEX /538,856 F /oK o i%IH B RIE A
HERZEBAE - R2013F12 A31H » EETIR
MIEHET TR o TRETHEE R D KR 2014 F 12 A AT{E
BT - 2EFEMIRR2015F 12 ARIEET ©
TBEE B 2012 FHMBAFATER -

VT8I E M E BB

MRANIE MM TTER G T SHEMABIEIEE
EBEEEAG7,028F K - EREEBER
FEHR BAEZBRMOSERAARER - R
201312 A31H » BETIRMMEEITF  Brt%
1B 574 2015F 10 ARIEET -

MTERBE T
1 BEE
[P T A Rk - BEEMIEA196,809F K

NEHEREEEEE - %8B AER - B A
P FREZEEEMEK - R2013F12831H -
ZBBECDRT - REIBFENR @ HERETEH -
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Jade Mansion

This is a low-density residential project in Yuyao, Zhejiang Province with
a total GFA of 292,807 sg. m.. The project consists of townhouses
and residential apartments and it is next to the Dragon Bay. As at 31
December 2013, the construction was in progress. The townhouse portion
is expected to be completed in around September 2014 whereas the
residential apartments are expected to be completed in around June 2016.
The presale of this project has been launched since November 2012 and
the result is within expectation.

Zhong An Times Square

This is a large-scale integrated commercial project in Yuyao, Zhejiang
Province, with a total GFA of about 628,408 sqg. m.. The project includes
a hotel, offices, retail units, residential apartments, and underground car
parking lots. It is next to the Dragon Bay and the Jade Mansion, which
are projects across a river. As at 31 December 2013, the construction
of the project was in progress. It is expected to be completed in
around November 2015. The presale of the residential apartments has
commenced since September 2013. The presale of this project is within
expectation.

Zhong An Landscape Garden, Cixi

This is a residential project with commercial portion which provides
ancillary services to the local residents. The total GFA is about 494,138 sq.
m.. It consists of multi-storey apartments and commercial block which will
be constructed in phases. The first phase of apartments has been under
construction since May 2013 and it will be completed in around June 2016.
The presale of the multi-storey apartments will commence in around April
2014.

Hefei, Anhui Province

Green Harbour

This is a low-density residential project in Hefei, Anhui Province. The
construction of Phase 1C was completed in June 2013. The presale of

this project was launched in November 2012 and the result was within
expectation.

EEEWmED T
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PRI ERKTHOEZEEETHE - BRERE

18/292,807F /5K - ZIBE AHFEREEAS -

WS EEE - 12013F 12 A31H » BETIRE
T - BEEE D TAET R 2014 9 A ATE R
T FERAEEER2016F6 AATRET %
HEEEEH2012F 11 ARKRAFATES -

RhFES

MRHTIE R RA G AR EIRR - BEE
ETE#5628,408F /5K « % BE BIE—FE/E

MAZE  TEEN  TERABRI NEES - %
T8 B Bt e R 35 2R e/ IE B fe T A E - 722013
F12A31 8 ZIEEWRETRMAETP - 18
FTR20156F 11 ARTER T - FEABE H2013
FOAMIKEE  EEBRFETER -

BERRLIKIE

HEEEEREREERIEHEEREHEE
B - BEERBELN F494,138F 5K - BIEE S
HESNZEABREER ABENE—HES
201345 AR ERE - 201656 HRTEERT -
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Huaibei, Anhui Province
Vancouver City

This is a low density residential project in Huaibei, Anhui Province. The
construction of Phase 3B to D with multi-storey apartment units and GFA
of about 309,712 sqg. m., as planned, will commence in the second half of
2014. The construction is expected to be completed by the end of 2016.
The presale will commence in the third quarter of 2014. The construction
of a hotel with GFA of about 67,061 sg. m. in Phase 6D is in progress and
it is expected to be completed in December 2014.

Jiangsu Province
Jia Run Square

This is a large-scale integrated commercial project in Suzhou, Jiangsu
Province and it is close to Jinji Lake. It consists of offices, shopping mall,
serviced apartments and a hotel with a total GFA of about 251,391 sqg. m..
The construction will be completed in December 2016.

Contracted sales in 2013

As at 31 December 2013, the contracted GFA sold by the Group was
about 351,952 sq. m. (2012: 181,125 sqg. m.) with the amount of about
RMB3,567,300,000 (2012: RMB2,168,690,000). Set out below are the
details on the contracted sales from the major projects:

THEREIT
B BT

URLZEEEILTOEEEETEIER - £3BED
HEESZEATEN - BEMBELI09,712F A
Ko R EER 2014 F T FRIER - BT
MR2016FEKRT - HE KN 2014FE=FEH
1R o BEMIELA67,061 FH KM E 6D HIREE
FAEERRH - TBE R 2014 F 12 AT o

TEHE

SEES

U THEABRMNTH ARG AEEER R0
W o BIEMRAE - BYRL - REXNABE—
SOBE - #REEMIEA251,3901F K » #RTIE
#2016 F 12 A °

2013 FEMERIHE

R2013F 12 A31H » AEENAREEERELY A
351,952 F 775K (20124F : 181,125 5 K) * &
HE U A B4 AR 3,567,300,000 7T (2012 4 -
AR®2,168,690,0007T) « EZHEMARHEE
BT
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EEER WD

Percentage of

interest in
the project
attributable
to the Group
Contracted Contracted rEE
GFA sold sales hIg B RS
ERHEEEE EREEKRA Bk
(sg.m.) (RMB million)
(FHXK) (AREEET)
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province HIEMME
Ideal Bay TP 48 48,635 350.5 45.9%
Landscape Bay = 30,054 343.4 92.6%
White Horse Manor B 76,583 845.2 90.0%
Hidden Dragon Bay f=iEE 12,297 146.9 92.5%
Others* E > 218 9.4
167,787 1,695.4
Yuyao, Zhejiang Province LB Rk
Dragon Bay HiEEE 9,238 313.7 90.0%
Jade Mansion SRR 24,667 500.7 93.0%
Zhong An Times Square (Phase Il) R ES (—H]) 20,765 351.7 93.0%
54,670 1,166.1
Hefei, Anhui Province ZREEIES
Green Harbour HERE
- Phase 1B — % 1B Hf 3,131 34.1 84.2%
—Phase 1C —%1CHi 16,462 108.2 84.2%
19,593 142.3
Huaibei, Anhui Province ZREELT
Vancouver City BT
— Phase 4 North —H 484 100,775 471.2 100.0%
— Phase 5 North — %581k 3,510 51.3 100.0%
- other* —HApth# 5,617 41.0 100.0%
109,902 563.5
Total #Et 351,952 3,567.3
* Including: Landscape Garden, Guotai Garden, New White Horse Apartments and BFE WK - BIFRIER - TaFAEMA KB
White Horse Noble Mansion
# Including: Phases 1 to 3 # BiE F1HEE3H
BREEARLAR —T-=FF%K 25
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It is expected that the GFA available for sale or leasing from the projects to ~ TBEHR 201452 TIHE WAL HE B ERERH
be completed in 2014 would be about 493,615 sq. m., the details of which  f&47/4493,615F 7K @ s£Bm T -
are as follows:

Percentage of

interest in
GFA available the project
Expected for sale/ attributable
completion leasing to the Group
date AgEE HEN  ALEESER Usage
BRI A BEHE EsEol Jiche
(sa. m.)
(ERK)
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province MIBRME
International Office Centre Plot A3 BRBARLA3MEE  December 2014 328,367 100.0% For leasing
2014412 A ME
Ideal Bay - townhouses BRE-HE December 2014 60,385 45.9% For sale
2014512 A HE
Yuyao, Zhejiang Province WIBRKS
Jade Mansion - townhouses EREE-HE September 2014 104,863 93.0% For sale
20145 9R HE
Total st 493,615
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Land bank

As at 31 December 2013, the total GFA of the Group’s land bank was
about 6,525,797 sg. m., out of which the total unsold or undelivered GFA
of the completed properties projects was about 624,334 sg. m.. As at 31
December 2013, the average acquisition cost of the Group’s overall land
bank was about RMB973 per sqg. m..

During the year 2013, the GFA of properties of which the construction were
newly commenced by the Group was about 875,535 sg. m..

Other business development

The Group strives to build up a diversified business portfolio so as to
provide more stable income in the future and to mitigate operational risk.
We will broaden the scope of property services which includes hotel
operation, leasing, property management services, nursery stock and
agricultural plantation, in order to extend the downstream services of
our property development business and to maintain a steady and solid
operation of our Group.

The Group had entered into two cooperation agreements with the local
government authorities in Baita Town and Tonglu County, Zhejiang
Province to set up joint venture companies to engage in land development
in these areas. These cooperations are the stepping stone of the Group in
land development in different counties and towns in the PRC. It is expected
that such business will generate a stable income to the Group. Further
details of the cooperation had been disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 17 and 26 November 2013.

Hotel operation

Holiday Inn Xiaoshan Hangzhou, a hotel of the Group, is located next to
the Highlong Plaza in Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province. It is
managed by Holiday Inn (China) Co., Limited, a well-known international
hotel brand within the InterContinental Hotels Group, and recorded a
revenue of about RMB55,815,000 for 2013, representing a similar level
compared to a revenue of about RMB58,279,000 recorded in 2012. The
occupancy rate was about 49.8% (2012: 50.0%).

The Group is planning to build a hotel within the large-scale commercial-
residential complex at Zhong An Times Sgaure (Phase ) in Yuyao. The
construction of the hotel has commenced. The hotel will be managed by
Hilton, an internationally-renowned hotel operator, and it is expected to
commence operation in 2016.

TitfEE

MR20135F12 A31 B - ANEE HihFEAREmA
#)56,5625,797 F K - BRESTEAEREESAR
RITH B E FE 4 5 624,334 F 75K © 122013
F12A31 8 AEB T HREEFHREXR AN EE
FHRHOAREEITITT ©

R2013F  REBEHMAIMENEZEDBEN S
875,535 F 77K °

HtRBE R

AEBEBRELZTTENEBHAS - BARKEE
FREWS  ERKERR  NEEHEARY
XRBEE SEEELE HE WEEER
% EEAEERERBEER - IENE
EFETHREENER - RIFBRENER -

AR B 2 BT A E 38 3 SR E B 3 5 BT AT 32
MDE RS - MRUAECEEZSHERE
THFAE c ZESEAREEEFESGEWILSE
T AR 2 B - MR EHEAREET KR
ERA - SEFBERENR A AT HEA2013
F11 17811 B26 HHRAE -

HIEEE

REBERFMNELERBEE AT TEINTE
e BEESS - BMERBEERE TSR
BOBJE R AEE (RE) AR ARERE - 2013
FEEHIBRA BN AR 55,815,0007T  H12012
FHH AREE 58,279,000 TLAKFAES © JBIEAE
EH#149.8% (2012 4F : 50.0%) °
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ZERES(Z8) BE 5085 - ZBEEH

T ¥HBEEARBELERFRETIE B
R2016 FHMKEE -
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The Group is planning to build two hotels at the International Office Centre
in Hangzhou. They will be managed by Fairmont and Swissotel, which are
internationally-renowned hotel operators. The construction is expected
to commence in June 2014 while the hotel operation is expected to
commence in 2018.

The Group has been building a hotel, VC Hotel, in Huaibei, Anhui Province
and a resort hotel, Hangzhou Qiandao Lake Run Zhou Resort Hotel, in
Qiandao Lake, Zhejiang Province respectively. Both hotels will be managed
by the Group under its own Run Zhou brand. The construction of the
hotels was in progress as at 31 December 2013. They are expected to be
completed in the fourth quarter of 2014 and the fourth quarter of 2015,
respectively and expected to commence operation in 2016.

The Group is also planning to build a hotel at Jia Run Square, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province. It will be managed by an affiliate of Marriott International,
Inc.. The construction had commenced during the year under review and
it is expected to be completed by the end of 2016. The operation will
commence in 2017.

These new hotels above will, upon their commencement of operation,
create a new income stream to the Group.

Leasing

Currently, Highlong Plaza provides the main source of leasing income.
This plaza consists of office buildings, a shopping centre, a hotel, serviced
apartments and underground car parking lots. The leasing revenue for
2018 was about RMB83,678,000, representing an increase of about
14.6% compared to RMB73,032,000 in 2012. The leasing rate of the
shopping centre is about 87.1% (2012: 97.5%) and that of office buildings
is about 84.8% (2012: 72.4%). Overall, a general increase was recorded as
compared to those of 2012. It was due to the introduction of high quality
tenants and a general rent review in leases.

Upon the completion of the construction of Hidden Dragon Bay in April
2018, the retail units with GFA of about 24,328 sg. m. were for lease
subsequently. The leasing rate was about 32.5% in 2013. This has
generated another stable rental income to the Group.

The Group has been launching various festival activities and promotion
events to attract and boost customer flow. This has created a positive
impact on tenants’ businesses and enhanced the overall rental value of the
properties leased by the Group.

REBAZEMMNERRAPLEERTESE
ORI AERMNEEEEERERS Mn0/E
B o TI2TERHEA 2014456 BFItE » Ml E
BIEE 2018 R -

REE D ELRE LT RNTIE TER 5 R HE
HBE CREEAE) REBRADEE (WM T 54
MEBRBEE) - MREESDBHAREBE UM REE
e MEBER2013F 12 A31 HIEEERZE - 18
TP IR 2014 F B NFE K 2015 F ENFE IR
T FBEIR 2016 FRIAES -

REBTTENIHEHFMNTRERESERE K
BE - BHEREREEEEERE - TIEENE
BEEERLG - TARTRN2016FERT - R20174
FIRIEE

i

PR EIRIEFRRIEEE - BANEEAIEN
AR ©

HEXRK

AEEBAMNHASWAZERGERES - ZE
BRERQIE - BYPL BE - BRERAQE
iy TEES - 2013 FHEEBFRAHARE
83,678,000 7T * 20124 &) A R # 73,032,000
T INEI14.6% o BYIR OB EREL87.1%
(20124F : 97.5%) ° %ﬁ“@ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%‘%%@m.a%
(20124 : 72.4%) - B 58 F L 2012F LB
- FxZHASIABERPRHEERSE
EiRET °

ETE

BEEEM0IBFA4ATT  EREEBBEY
24,328 F HFAMTEEMANHE - B 2013F
XL 32.5% ' BEAAEETRIETHESMKA -

rEE-BEMRSEHREYRERLY - R
SINEMERE - WEBHEE XK HREEY
2 BERAASEHEMENERES -
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The serviced apartments at Highlong Plaza were sublet to and managed
by independent operators, Ningbo Sanbi Hotel and Hangzhou Youbang
Hotel, during the year under review. The operation was highly satisfactory.
Other investment properties also contributed to the leasing income of the
Group.

Property management

The Group provides quality property management services to the
communities located in properties developed by the Group and other
developers. The services are further enhanced by inclusion of the provision
of travel tours, housekeeping and nanny services etc.. This will further
facilitate the Group in the corporate brand management.

Other services

The Group is also developing nursery stock plantation for agricultural
purposes and managing organic plantations for producing agricultural
products. The customers are mainly the home-owners of the properties
to which property management services are provided by the Group. Such
value-added downstream services will form an integral part of the Group’s
property development and management businesses. Accordingly, the
scope of services of the Group will be widened and the Group’s corporate
branding can be enhanced.

Awards and recognitions

The Group was awarded by the PRC government and recognized
authorities for the year under review as follows:

Granted by
MERHE

Awards
#18

Enterprise Research Institute of the Development
Research Center of the State Council, Institute
of Real Estate Studies of the Department of
Construction Management of Tsinghua University,
China Index Academy

B e i BT O R  BEABREME
IR - BB

DUSHIKUAIBAO, kfw001.com
Award
EmRER - REH

Star of China Top 100 Real Estate
Developers 2013

2013 EIFHhERRPH¥ BRI E

Kuaifang Media 2013 Vigorous Brand

REMEE2013FE R

URNERESHRENABREEFED BB
REEBR=BBE RN FEEAERE
BOEEFREE  HREMENRAAEET
KHEEHA

YRER

AEERARE N EMAZRAMAENMEETR
HEENMEEERY - BEBIBIMNKE - KRR
RIBERY - REKFRIE-TIRS - #HE—
FRERTEENEEREEE

H b BR#% %
AEBETEREREABEIEEERESEM
REMm BEFIERBAKEREMEEREN
MEEE - FESHINETHEREEXAEEY
EERMEBEBN —2  BAREAREE
CRAREENEERE

RENERE

AEEFEBFERNEBF MR A EEER T
I8 :

Awarded parties
BRE

Zhong An Real Estate
Limited

RELFEERRAR]

Zhong An Real Estate

Limited
Hamhg REFEEBRAT]

REFEERRAT
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Granted by
RIS

Sina House

FREER

DUSHIKUAIBAO, kfw001.com

HHRE - REH

HOUSE365.com
365 HEREHR

xsnet

L

DUSHIKUAIBAO, kfw001.com

IR - REH

HOUSE365.com

365 B ER fE 4

EYH.CN-Chengxiang Information & Agency
SRR A — R R

Landscape & Garden Society of Zhejiang Province
(L& GS2)
ATERRENES

QQ.COM
RS

China Society of Urban Construction, Housing
and Real Estate Industry Association of
China, China Federation of Commercial Real
Estate Development, International Real Estate
Development Promotion, China Market News
(jointly awarded)

Awards

15

China (Hangzhou) Mass Media Award —
2013 Most Investable Estate

FREI () BB SRR HE 2013 4
REAREEBEER

Kuaifang Media 2013 Valuable Real Estate
Award
REBEH 2013 FEEEHREER

2018 Hangzhou Splendid Estate Award
2013 MM EmEER

2018 Xiaoshan 3rd Internet Living Expo —
The Best Livable Riverview Estate
Award

01BHWLUE=EF ETEEREEISR
ES

Kuaifang Media 2013 Valuable Real Estate
Award
REBEH 2013 FEEELSER

2013 Hangzhou Best Livable Real Estate
Award
2013 FMMREEER

2013 Top Selling Award
2013 FEAIE B

Outstanding Landscape Engineering
Award - Gold

[EFEMTE] 2%

2013 Best City Complex Award
2013 FEREM MRS S

2013 Chinese Top 10 Landmark Property

Awarded parties
BR®RA

White Horse Manor

A5 W

White Horse Manor

SIS

Landscape Bay

Landscape Bay

Ideal Bay

HARE

Ideal Bay

AR

|deal Bay

B

Dragon Bay

BigeE

Zhong An Times Square
MLEHRES

Zhong An Times Square
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Granted by
RIS

FEIMmEREE - PRETEFHERE -
TREEXBEERYBAE BERFHERREE

# - RETISRH AR

Real Estate Association of Anhui Province

ZHERERS

Huaibei Real Estate Administration Bureau, Huaibei

Awards Awarded parties
#2158 BRA
2013 FP B ZVBA (& 15+ K AR 1 7 26 3 2 BEFRRES

Green Harbour
BeEs

China Ecological-livable Supreme Estate

mEARREERR

2013 Huaibei Top 10 Premier Residential Vancouver City

Real Estate Association, Huaibei Daily, Huaibei Properties
Broadcast
EATEHETER  fEtmEHEZERE « El

Bt EIETERERE

Huaibei Real Estate Administration Bureau, Huaibei
Real Estate Association, Huaibei Daily, Huaibei Corporation
Broadcast

EIETMREHMEEIRR EltmEMEEGE - &l
Bt  EEMERERZ

Human resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed a total of 1,868 staff
(2012: 1,565 staff). In 2013, the staff cost of the Group was about
RMB144,704,000 (2012: about RMB122,587,000), representing an
increase of about 18.0%. The increase was mainly due to increase in
number of staff.

The employees’ remuneration policy was determined by reference to
factors such as remuneration information in respect of the local market,
the overall remuneration standard in the industry, inflation level, corporate
operating efficiency and performance of the employees. The Group
conducts performance appraisal on a yearly basis for its employees, the
results of which are taken into account of in the annual salary review
and promotion assessment. The Group’s employees are considered
for the entitlement of annual discretionary bonus according to certain
performance conditions and appraisal results. To attract talented people
and solidify the management, eligible participants (including employees
of the Group) may be granted options to subscribe for shares in the
Company pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company.
The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to its
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain their
competitiveness.
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Dividend policy

The Board shall determine the dividend policy of the Company
according to financial condition, operating results, capital requirements,
shareholders’ equity, contractual restraint and other factors considered
relevant by the Board.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded audited
gross profit of about RMB918,276,000, which is in line with that of about
RMB919,222,000 in the previous year.

Other income

Other income increased by about 51.0% to about RMB31,433,000 in
2013 from about RMB20,821,000 in 2012. The increase was primarily due
to increase in interest income and foreign exchange gain.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution expenses increased by about 125.4% to
about RMB 127,801,000 in 2013 from about RMB56,708,000 in 2012.
This increase was primarily due to the increase in the marketing expenses
spent for the presales of newly launched projects such as Zhong An Times
Square (Phase Il) in Yuyao, Ideal Bay and White Horse Manor in Hangzhou
in 2013. The contracted sales of 2013 recorded an increase of about
64.5% compared to that of 2012.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by about 25.8% to about
RMB298,629,000 in 2013 from about RMB237,461,000 in 2012. This was
primarily due to the increase in the number of staff and the amortization of
the cost of share options granted in July 2013.

Other expenses

The other expenses decreased by about 31.1% to about RMB3,246,000
in 2013 from about RMB4,711,000 in 2012.
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Fair value gain upon transfer to investment
properties

There was fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties recorded
in 2013. This was due to the completion of the retail units of Hidden Dragon
Bay, which were classified as investment properties in April 2013 whereas
no such similar event happened in 2012.

Finance costs

The finance costs increased by about 187.8% to about RMB10,535,000 in
2013 from about RMB3,660,000 in 2012. This increase was primarily due
to increase in bank loans in 2013.

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses increased by about 19.4% to about
RMB366,160,000 in 2013 from about RMB306,778,000 in 2012. The
increase was due to the increase in assessable profits in 2013.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had aggregate cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash of about RMB1,632,447,000 (2012:
RMB1,119,515,000). The increase was due to the increase in presale
achieved in 2013. The current ratio was 1.3 (2012: 1.0).

As at 31 December 2013, the bank loans and other borrowings of
the Group repayable within one year and after one year were about
RMB835,890,000 and RMB4,620,404,000 respectively (2012:
RMB1,739,030,000 and RMB2,493,137,000 respectively). The
increase was mainly due to increase in bank borrowings for the project
developments in the year under review.

The consolidated interest expenses in 2013 amounted to about
RMB10,535,000 (2012: RMB3,660,000) in total. Interests in the amount of
about RMB473,083,000 (2012: RMB358,735,000) were capitalized during
the year under review. Interest coverage (including amount of interests
capitalized) was 1.2 times (2012: 1.9 times).

As at 31 December 2013, the ratio of total liabilities to total assets of the
Group was 0.64 (2012: 0.62).

As at 31 December 2013, the ratio of bank loans and other borrowings to
total equity of the Group was 0.88 (2012: 0.74). The ratio of bank loans and
other borrowings to total assets was 0.32 (2012: 0.28).
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The net gearing ratio of the Group (defined as net debt divided by total
equity) was 0.62 (2012: 0.55) (net debt is defined as total debt less cash
and cash equivalent, and total restricted cash).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the capital commitments of the Group were
about RMB1,723,747,000 (2012: RMB1,794,483,000), which were mainly
capital commitments for construction costs. It is expected that the Group
will finance such commitments from its own funds and external financing
(such as bank loans).

Guarantees and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the contingent liabilities of the Group was about
RMB2,094,348,000 (2012: RMB1,362,294,000), which were mainly the
guarantee given by the Group in favour of certain banks for the grant of
mortgage loans to buyers of the Group’s properties.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2013, investment properties of the Group with
carrying value of about RMB1,576,589,000 (2012: RMB1,894,005,000),
properties under development of about RMB2,134,865,000 (2012:
RMB4,298,558,000), completed properties of about RMB1,841,098,000
(2012: 704,968,000) and property and equipment of about
RMB31,472,000 (2012: RMB 168,025,000) were pledged to secure
the banking facilities of the Group. There were time deposits of about
RMB247,750,000 being pledged as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
95,750,000). The pledge of the 100% equity interest of a subsidiary of
the Company with total equity of about RMB1,258,394,000 as at 31
December 2012 was released in 2013.

Foreign exchange risk

As the sales, purchase and bank borrowings of the Group in 2013 and
2012 were made mainly in Renminbi, the foreign exchange risk exposed
by the Group was relatively minor. The Group did not use foreign exchange
hedging instruments to hedge foreign exchange risks in 2013 and 2012.
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Interest rate risks

The interest rates for certain portion of the Group’s loans were floating.
Upward fluctuations in interest rates will increase the interest cost of new
loans and existing loans. The Group currently does not use derivative
instruments to hedge its interest rate risks.

Subsequent events

On 28 February 2014, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) granted its approval pursuant to Practice Note 15 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) of the Company’s proposal relating to the proposed
spin-off (“Spin-off”) of certain existing subsidiaries of the Company which
are principally engaged in the development of, sales of and investment
in, commercial properties in sub-city centers of second-tier cities in the
Yangtze River Delta Region, the PRC.

Save as disclosed above, there was no matter occurred that bears
significant effect to the Group between the year end date and the date of
this report.

Prospects

While it is expected that the regulatory measures on the real estate
market will remain in place, the risk of implementing more rigid policies
is expected to be alleviated amid slower economic growth. With the
central government’s advocation of urbanization and the steady economic
growth, the demand for value-for-money and end-use residential
properties is expected to remain strong and solid.

In line with the prudent approach adopted for years in acquiring land for
development, the Group will continue to acquire land to develop more
projects which will be sold at a fair price and lead to quick cash inflow.
By doing so, it is expected that a quick asset turnover can be achieved
gradually.

In addition, the Group will continue to maintain sufficient cash flow and to
achieve relative low finance cost through enhancing the financing structure
of the Group.
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The Group will continue to focus on property development in cities,
particularly, second- and third tier- cities with relatively high GDP per capita
in the Yangtze River Delta. Together with the Group’s quality property
management and other value-added services to the communities of the
properties developed by the Group, corporate branding will therefore be
enhanced further.

Subject to the successful implementation of the Spin-off proposal, the
Group will have two groups of companies with more defined business
focus in residential and commercial properties development, respectively.
This will enhance their respective brandings and provide investors and the
public with greater investment focus for each group.

Eventually, the Group will achieve a more fast-paced growth in sales that
leads to greater market share in the Yangtze River Delta.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitiement to the final dividend of RMB1.8 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2013, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 12 June 2014 to Monday,
16 June 2014 (both dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all duly completed transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 11 June 2014.

The RMB to Hong Kong dollar exchange rate will be determined by
reference to the opening indicative counter buying telegraphic transfer rate
for RMB quoted by The Hong Kong Association of Banks on the date of
the AGM.
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Corporate Governance Report
SEEREE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
maintaining good corporate governance in safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and enhancing
Shareholders’ value.

(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted, in so far as they are applicable, the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) and certain recommended best practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Year”), the Board
has applied the principles of the Code Provisions contained in, and
complied with, the Code with the exception of the deviation from the
Code Provision A.2.1 (as the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company were not separate and were both
performed by Mr Shi Kancheng).

The Board believes that the performance of the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer by the same person provides the
Company with consistent leadership and enables the Company to
formulate its business strategies and implement its business plans
and decisions efficiently.

The Board will review the management structure of the Group
from time to time and will adopt appropriate measures as may
be desirable for future development of the operating activities or
business of the Group.
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(B) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors of the Company (the “Directors”) on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

Following specific enquiries by the Company, all Directors have
confirmed with the Company that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions during
the Year.

(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (Re-elected on 10 May 2013)

Mr Lou Yifei (Re-elected on 10 May 2013)
Ms Shen Tiaojuan
Mr Zhang Jiangang

Independent non-executive Directors
Professor Pei Ker Wei
Dr Loke Yu (with professional
qualification in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules)
Mr Zhang Huagiao (Re-elected on 10 May 2013)

During the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements
of rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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The three independent non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board, the proportion of which is higher than what
is required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Board believes
there is sufficient independence element in the Board to safeguard
the interests of shareholders.

The Board meets regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
electronic means of communication in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”).

A total of seven Board meetings were held during the Year. The
individual attendance of each Director was as follows:
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Number of attendance

HERE
Mr Shi Kancheng FEARAX 55 7
Mr Lou Yifei B—mREE 6
Ms Shen Tiaojuan PSRt 7
Mr Zhang Jiangang R ER 8 ST A 6
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHK 7
Dr Loke Yu PN 6
Mr Zhang Huagjao RALIE S 5

All Directors had attended the annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) held on 10 May 2013 and the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 23 September 2013,
expect for Mr Zhang Huagiao who could not attend the meetings
due to some prior engagements.

The Board operates and exercises its power in accordance with
the Articles. The Board focuses on overall corporate strategies
and policies with emphasis on the business growth and financial
performance of the Group. In addition, the Board has also
specifically resolved that all transactions/contracts/other matters
of the Group that are subject to the disclosure requirement in
accordance with the Listing Rules should be approved by the Board
in advance.

The Board has delegated to the senior management to deal with
day-to-day operations and reviewed those arrangements on a
periodic basis. The senior management frequently reports back to
the Board and obtains prior approval from the Board before making
decisions for key matters or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Company.
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The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent
in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Directors had taken external trainings in the form
of seminars and courses provided by educational institutions and
professional bodies.

The Company had arranged liability insurance for Directors and
senior management officers of the Company with appropriate
coverage in respect of legal action against the Directors arising from
their duties performed.

Save as disclosed in the section of “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” in the annual report of the Company, there
are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors

The Articles provide that any Director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy in the Board or as an additional member of
the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
members of Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.

In accordance with the Articles, at each AGM, one third of the
Directors for the time being, shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The
members of the Company may, at any general meetings convened
and held in accordance with the Articles, remove a Director by
ordinary resolution at any time before the expiration of his period
of office notwithstanding anything contrary in the Articles or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director and may by
ordinary resolution elect another person in his/her stead.
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(D)

(E)

Board Committees

The Board has established four committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the committees, including the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the governance committee
(the “Governance Committee”). All the Board committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available for inspection by shareholders on
the Company’s website. The Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

During the Year, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company were performed by Mr Shi Kancheng.

The Chairman had held a meeting with all independent non-executive
Directors in the absence of executive Directors. No specific or other
issues had been raised or discussed as it had been concluded that
all issues which would be discussed had been properly dealt with in
the meetings of the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a term of two years commencing on 1 January 2013 for Mr Zhang
Huagiao and 30 June 2013 for Dr Loke Yu, and 1 November 2013
for Professor Pei Ker Wei.

The director’s fee specified in the service contract of each of Dr Loke
Yu, Professor Pei Ker Wei and Mr Zhang Huagiao are RMB200,000.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and/or industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to the
Board.
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(F) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Professor Pei Ker

Wei and the members are Ms Shen Tiaojuan and Dr Loke Yu.

The Company has adopted written terms of reference for

the Remuneration Committee. The role and function of the

Remuneration Committee of the Company include the following:

(@)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to have the delegated responsibility to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

to review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise
fair and not excessive for the Company;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that any compensation
payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

to review and approve the remuneration report of the Group, if
any.
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The basis of the emolument payable to the Directors is determined
with reference to the range of prevailing directors’ fee for director
of listed companies in Hong Kong and is subject to the approval of
the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee will
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, experience and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during
the Year. The Remuneration Committee had reviewed the terms of
remuneration packages of the independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr Loke Yu and Professor Pei Ker Wei, and the executive
Directors for the renewal of their contracts during the Year. The
individual attendance of each member was as follows:
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FREFHEZESRITTMNEH - HTINEE
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Number of attendance

HERE
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHR 2
Dr Loke Yu R gMIEL 2
Ms Shen Tiaojuan LRI &t 2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr Shi Kancheng and
the members are Professor Pei Ker Wei, Dr Loke Yu and Mr Zhang
Huagjiao.

The Company has adopted written terms of reference for the
Nomination Committee. The role and function of the Nomination
Committee are as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually;

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated for
directorship;

()  to review the board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Diversity Policy”) and the progress on achieving the
objectives set for implementing the Diversity Policy, and
to make disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report of the Company’s annual report;

(d)  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;
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to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to, among others, the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors (in
particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company);

to give full consideration to, among others, the skills and
expertise required from members of the Board and the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with regard to
Directors and such like in the discharge of the Nomination
Committee’s duties;

in respect of any proposed service contracts to be entered
into by any members of the Group with its director or
proposed director, which require the prior approval of the
shareholders of the Company at general meeting under
Rule 13.68 of the Listing Rules, to review and provide
recommendations to the shareholders of the Company (other
than shareholders who are directors with a material interest in
the relevant service contracts and their respective associates)
as to whether the terms of the service contracts are fair and
reasonable and whether such service contracts are in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole,
and to advise shareholders on how to vote;

to ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
receive a formal letter of appointment setting out what is
expected of them in terms of time commitment, committee
service and involvement outside meetings of the Board;

to conduct exit interviews with any Director upon their
resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his/her
departure; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.

The nomination procedures are as follow: candidates for directorship
are selected by the Nomination Committee subject to the review
and approval of the Board in accordance with the Articles. The
criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in selecting and
approving candidates for directorship are based on the Diversity
Policy, including whether the candidates are appropriate in terms
of experience and the potential contribution to the Group and with
reference to the candidate’s professional knowledge, industry
experience, personal ethics, integrity and skills..
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Two meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during
the Year. The Nomination Committee nominated, and the Board
recommended Mr Shi Kancheng, Mr Lou Yifei and Mr Zhang
Huagiao to be re-elected at the annual general meeting held on 10
May 2013 and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board.

The individual attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee was as follows:

FAREZEGHBITMREGHE - REEE
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Number of attendance

HE R B

Mr Shi Kancheng FEARAX 55 A 2
Dr Loke Yu R pRiE L 2
Mr Zhang Huagjiao SR S 2
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHE 2

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit fee of the Group in respect of audit services provided
by the Independent Auditors, Emst & Young, for the Year was
RMB1,900,000 (2012: RMB1,700,000).

During the Year, the Independent Auditors was also engaged to
review the interim results of the Company at a fee of RMB420,000
(2012: RMB420,000) and other non-audit services with a total fee of
RMB1,760,000 (2012: nil).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr Loke Yu and the
members are Professor Pei Ker Wei and Mr Zhang Huagiao. Al
members of the Audit Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

The role and functions of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  to consider, and to make recommendation to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and other terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor;
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to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

to discuss with the external auditors before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations and ensure co-ordination where more than one
audit firm is involved;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. The Audit
Committee should report to the Board, identify and make
recommendations where action or improvement is needed.
The Audit Committee should also review the non-audit
services provided by the external auditor on an annual basis,
to ensure that the independence of such external auditor will
not be affected;

to monitor integrity, accuracy and fairness of the Company’s
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
to review significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them;

to review, in draft form, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for publication,
quarterly report. The Audit Committee should focus
particularly on the following aspects before submission of
reports to the Board:

i. any changes in accounting policies and practices;

ii. major judgmental areas;

. significant adjustments resulting from audit;

iv. the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

V. compliance with accounting standards;

vi.  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

vii.  the fairness and reasonableness of any connected
transaction and the impact of such transaction on the
profitability of the Group;
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viil. whether all relevant items have been adequately vii. FIBHEBEBEREEERAEHE
disclosed in the Group’s financial statements and BB RTDIBEELEE
whether the disclosures give a fair view of the Group’s N 4 fz B 7 £ [ A9 B IR AR
financial conditions; A

ix.  any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to ix. ZEREREKE R RENEMR
be, reflected in such reports and accounts; and BRI TEEEE &

X.  the cashflow position of the Group; x.  AEBEBRESHAMR

(@  members of the Audit Committee must liaise with the Board, 0 BEZZEEeKEEHREETLSNE
senior management and the Audit Committee must meet, at BABEG BEXEZEgEE H
least twice a year, with the Company’s auditors. The Audit AARNZEMESFRTMN - FZ
Committee should consider any significant or unusual items FESREEERNZERENEEFAT
that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and R EREAERERKTIZTES
accounts and must give due consideration to any matters H TEAEZEELMBEARTAE
that have been raised by the Company’s staff responsible for S RMBERBES BRI IEZ
the accounting and financial reporting functions, compliance HAEDIR H AT EIE
officer or auditors;

() to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim (h BT RPHERERHAMTE
and final audits, and any matters the auditors may wish to ERHIRNEE SR AES
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary); AT EE(EEEBERER

[E e

()  to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control 0} R AN A I IS B - AEPEEE R
and risk management systems and to discuss with the EfeEEEE  BEEEBmANEiE
management the system of internal control and ensure that RS MREEECEITBREEY
management has performed its duty to have an effective EHRANBEERGE R (WRFER
internal control system and to review the Company’s SELER) TEFLRRE - B4
statement on internal control systems (where one is included A RAEBEESE R A AT -
in the annual report) prior to endorsement by the Board;

)  to consider any findings of major investigations of internal () FHIEZEFENRIR - RBEEAFS
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own EMETNEEATERNEEREN
initiative and management’s response to these findings; [B] fEHET T ST 5

(k) where an internal audit function exists, to review the internal (k) RN RE)RBRNIBZEEPT - mE

audit programmes, to ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company and to review and monitor the
effectiveness of the internal audit function;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

WESZEARER ﬁﬁf%ﬁ\?%ﬁi?%lﬁﬁiiﬁiﬁl\
BZBENRE W F - WARERAR
WE‘BTZ%%BF‘EJEE%@%FLVEHE;@
EHIHAL ¢ AR AR MBS A AR
MRERBAY

BN ANEENMBEREHBERE
7%

50 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

2013 Annual Report



Corporate Governance Report

EEERRS

to conduct exit interviews with any director, manager, financial
controller or internal credit control manager upon their
resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his departure;

to prepare work reports for presentation to the Board and to
prepare summary of work reports for inclusion in the Group’s
interim and annual reports;

to consider the appointment of any person to be an Audit
Committee member, a company secretary, auditors and
accounting staff either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Audit Committee member, company secretary,
auditors and accounting staff or dismissal of any of them;

to consider the major findings of internal investigations and
management’s response;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in the Code
Provisions contained (and as amended from time to time) in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;

to review arrangements that employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The Audit Committee should ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.
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A total of three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during

the Year. The work performed by the Audit Committee during the

Year

Thei

included the following:

reviewed the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012;

reviewed the interim report and interim results
announcements of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2013;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and other financial reporting matters;

reviewed the results of external audit and had discussion with
external auditors on any significant findings and audit issues;

reviewed the results of internal audit and had discussion with
internal auditors on any significant findings and internal control
issues;

discussed with the external auditors before the audit
commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and the

respective relevant issues; and

considered and approved the service contract of the auditors
for the Year.

ndividual attendance of each member of the Audit Committee

was as follows:
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Number of attendance

HERE
Dr Loke Yu FE g mig L 3
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHH 3
Mr Zhang Huagiao LB L E 3
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(J) GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a governance committee (the “Governance

Committee”) and the terms of reference adopted complied with the

requirement of the Listing Rules.

The chairman of the Governance Committee is Mr Shi Kancheng.

The remaining members are Ms Shen Tiaojuan, Mr Zhang Jiangang,

Professor Pei Ker Wei and Mr Zhang Huagiao.

The role and functions of the Governance Committee include the

following:

(@)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions and the disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report;

One meeting of the Governance Committee was held during the

Year. The Governance Committee had discussed and reviewed the

Board’s and the Group’s compliance with the Code Provisions and

the prevailing Listing Rules during the Year.
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The individual attendance of each member of the Governance
Committee was as follows:

ERZBEEKENERHFERMT

Number of Attendance

HERE
Mr Shi Kancheng FEARAX 55 1
Ms Shen Tiaojuan IARIB X+ 1
Mr Zhang Jiangang o B2 8 S0 A 1
Professor Pei Ker Wei BREHE 1
Mr Zhang Huagiao RIS 1

The terms of reference of the Governance Committee are available
on the Company’s website.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
PREPARING THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the
preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view of the
Company and the Group.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the accounts of the Group is set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” in this annual report.

ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE INTERNAL
CONTROL OF THE GROUP

The Directors had conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group and resolved that
the system of internal control of the Group during the Year was
effective. Such review had covered all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

The Directors have considered that there are adequate resources
and budget available for the staff with appropriate qualifications and
experience in the aspect of training and discharging the accounting
and financial reporting functions.
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(M) COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company had appointed Mr Lam Yau Yiu as its company
secretary (the “Secretary”). Mr Lam had taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. The biography of Mr Lam is set out
on page 62 of this annual report.

(N) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

The following procedures are subject to the Articles, the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised from time
to time) of the Cayman Islands and the applicable legislation and
regulation.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). Pursuant to article 64 of the
Articles, general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more Shareholders made to Directors or the
Secretary specifying the objects of the meeting, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition shall
not hold less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant
general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the
nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or
she should give to the Secretary notice in writing of the intention
to propose a person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his or her willingness to be so elected, no earlier
than the 7 clear days after the dispatch of the notice of the relevant
general meeting and no later than 7 clear days prior to the date
appointed for the relevant general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.
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(O) INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company attaches great importance to communication with
the Shareholders. A number of means are used to promote greater
understanding and dialogue with the Shareholders. The means
of access includes the release by the Company of the various
corporate communication of the Company via the website of the
Stock Exchange and the website of the Company (http://www.
zafc.com). Shareholders are encouraged by the Company to attend
general meetings of the Company where the Chairman of the
Company and other members of the Board and (if appropriate) the
auditors of the Company, are available to answer questions.

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company
for any enquiries in relation to the affairs of the Group. Shareholders
may contact the Company in writing to the Company’s head office in
the PRC or the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
or by e-mail at ir@zafc.com or direct any enquiries to the Company’s
investor relations representative, Capital Markets Department,
whose contact details are set out in the annual report of which this
report forms part.

(P) CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there were no changes to the Company’s
constitutional documents.

For and on behalf of the Board
Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Shi Kancheng
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 24 March 2014
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Social Responsibility
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GIVING BACK TO THE SOCIETY 2013

Zhong An - participation in charity and the
pursuit of our mission “Giving Back to the
Society”

Zhong An has always been pursuing the mission of “Giving Back to the
Society”.

The Group embraces the belief of contributing to the society. We strive
to have better economic performance with the goal of benefitting the
society to the greatest extent in mind. Therefore, we devote ourselves
to the development of charitable affairs. We also proactively participate
in community welfare activities. We have from time to time expressed
concerns over the livelihoods of the underprivileged groups and are willing
to undertake our corporate social responsibilities.

We have devoted ourselves to participation of charitable affairs. During the
year under review, we made donations to various organisations so as to
fulfill the essence of ‘Giving Back to the Society’.

We had donated RMB50,000 to to “Warming Up Project” in Xiaoshan
District of Hangzhou providing the funding for the social services which
target the needy grassroots. This is a local project that Zhong An has
supported for years. We also donated RMB50,000 to another local welfare
organization of Fudun Village, Jinghua Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou
as a patronage of helping the poors.

Besides, Zhong An provided patronage to religious institutions. We
donated RMB316,000 and RMB 20,000 to Fulong Temple in Cixi, Zhejiang
Province and Xiangshan Xiantong Temple in Huaibei, Anhui Province.

We also extend the patronage to education. To show our support to the
educational development, we donated RMB40,000 to East China Normal
University, the PRC, patronizing an educational programme.

Furthermore, Zhong An cares about the society in Hong Kong. We donate
RMB71,000 to the Community Care Fund to provide the necessary
needs to those facing economic difficulties and in need of assistance
and RMB4,000 to the Community Chest in Hong Kong for funding the
programmes for the youth.

Zhong An will continue to fulffill its corporate philosophy of “Giving Back to
the Society”.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan), aged 51, is the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of Zhong An Real Estate Limited (the “Company”)
and also holds directorships in certain of its subsidiaries. Mr Shi is primarily
responsible for the strategic and development planning of the Group. He
also supervises project planning and the overall business operation. Mr
Shi joined the Group since the establishment of the first member of the
Group, Zhong An Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Zhejiang Zhong’an
Property Development Co., Ltd.) (“Zhong An Group”). Mr Shi served
as a tax officer in the finance and revenue bureau of Xiaoshan District of
Hangzhou (formerly known as Xiaoshan City) and the general manager
of Hangzhou Xiaoshan Milkyway Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Milkyway Real Estate”). Mr Shi graduated from an Executive Master
of Business Administration program co-organized by the State University
of Arizona and Shanghai National Accounting College in June 2007.
From 2005 to 2006, Mr Shi completed a program for executive officers,
focusing on globalization and real estate developers, co-organized by
Harvard University, Tsinghua University, The University of Hong Kong and
the United States Military Academy. In the same period, Mr Shi completed
a program for presidents of real estate companies organized by Zhejiang
University. Mr Shi has over 21 years of experience in property development
and property investment. Mr Shi is the sole director and the sole
shareholder of Whole Good Management Limited, which is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Lou Yifei, aged 64, is an executive Director and the general manager of
Hangzhou Anyuan Property Development Co., Ltd. (a company owned
as to 45.9% by the Group) and holds directorships in certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the operation and project
management of the Group. He joined the Group in March 2006. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr Lou was the vice president and manager of the
engineering department of Laiyinda Real Estate Co., Ltd., a supervisor
of Laiyin Property and had served various positions in the same group of
companies from 2000 to 2006. Mr Lou was a deputy general manager
of Milkyway Real Estate from 1994 to 2000. From 1984 to 1994, Mr Lou
worked for a government bureau of Xiaoshan District of Hangzhou, where
he was primarily responsible for infrastructure construction management.
From 1978 to 1983, he served as construction and engineering manager
of Linpu Construction Company. He received an associate degree in
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architectural engineering from Wuhan University of Technology in 1992
and completed a graduate degree in structural engineering at Zhejiang
University of Technology in 2002. Mr Lou obtained his engineering
qualification in 1999. Mr Lou has 35 years of experience in construction
operations and management of property development.

Shen Tiaojuan, aged 51, is an executive Director and the Vice President
of the Company and also holds directorships in certain of its subsidiaries.
She is primarily responsible for the financial operation and financial
management of the Group. She joined the Group in December 1997. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms Shen was the chief accountant of White Swan
Industry Co., Ltd. from 1995 to 1997, the chief accountant of Hangzhou
Hualing Electrics Co., Ltd. in 1994, and the chief accountant and finance
manager of Hangzhou Guanghua Chemical Fibres Factory from 1980 to
1993. Ms Shen has 32 years of experience in the financial operation of
property development.

Zhang Jiangang, aged 44, is an executive Director and the general
manager of Hangzhou Zhong’an Service Holding Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of
the Company) and also holds directorship in a subsidiary of the Company.
He is primarily in charge of strategy implementation and operation
management. Mr Zhang joined the Group in March 2003. He served
as the general manager and vice president of Zhong An Group and the
general manager and assistant to the Chairman of Anhui Zhong An Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company). From 1995 to 2003, Mr
Zhang served as the office manager, assistant to general manager and
vice general manager of Milkyway Real Estate. Mr Zhang has 19 years of
experience in construction and property development.

Independent non-executive Directors

Pei Ker Wei (PhD), aged 57, was appointed an independent non-
executive Director in October 2007. Dr Pei worked as assistant professor,
associate professor and professor at Arizona State University, chairman
of North America Chinese Accounting Professors Academy and chairman
of global commission of American Accounting Academy. He is currently
the Executive Dean of China Programmes at the W.P. Carey School
of Business of Arizona State University, the U.S. and a member of the
American Accounting Academy. Dr Pei is also serving as an independent
non-executive director of Want Want China Holdings Limited and Zhejiang
Expressway Co., Ltd., both companies whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange, and a director of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd., a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr Pei
received his MBA from the Southern lllinois University, the U.S. in 1981 and
PhD from the University of North Texas, the U.S. in 1986.
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Dr Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam), aged 64, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2009. Dr Loke is currently the
company secretary of Minth Group Limited, and serves as an independent
non-executive director of Chiho-Tiande Group Limited, China Fire
Safety Enterprise Group Holdings Limited, China Household Holdings
Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, SCUD Group Limited, Sino Distillery
Group Limited (formerly known as Bio-Dynamic Group Limited), Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited, VODone Limited and Winfair Investment
Company Limited, the shares of which companies are all listed on the
Stock Exchange. He is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He holds MBA from the University Teknologi
Malaysia and DBA from the University of South Australia. He has over
38 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and public
companies, financial consultancy and corporate management.

Zhang Huagiao, aged 51, was appointed an independent non-
executive Director on 1 January 2013. Mr Zhang has been the Chairman
of China Mezzanine Capital Group since June 2012. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Fosun International Limited, Logan
Property Holdings Company Limited, China Huirong Financial Holdings
Limited and Fuguiniao Co., Ltd., a non-executive director of Boer Power
Holdings Limited, and the Chairman and a non-executive director of China
Smartpay Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Oriental City Group
Holdings Limited), the shares of which companies are all listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr Zhang is also a director of Nanjing Central Emporium
(Group) Stocks Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. He was the Chairman of Guangzhou Wansui
Micro Credit Co., Ltd. between June 2011 and July 2012 and an executive
director and chief executive officer of Man Sang International Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, between
September 2011 and April 2012. From June 1999 to April 2006, Mr Zhang
had worked with UBS Securities Asia Limited and served as a managing
director and the co-head and head of its China research team. Prior to
this, Mr Zhang had worked as a principal staff member with the People’s
Bank of China in Beijing between July 1986 and January 1989. Mr Zhang
graduated from the Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China with
a master’s degree in economics in 1986 and from the Australian National
University with a master’s degree in development economics in January
1991. Mr Zhang has about 23 years of experience in the financial sector.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Jin Jianrong, aged 45, is the executive vice president of the Zhong An
Group and the general manager of certain subsidiaries of the Group in
Zhejiang Province. He is in charge of engineering management of the
projects of the Group. Mr Jin joined the Group in September 2004. Prior
to joining the Group, he was the deputy general manager in charge of
construction matters of Zhejiang Lvdu Real Estate Development Company
from 2008 to 2004, and a construction manager of Zhejiang Wanxiang
Real Estate Company from 1997 to 2002. He was responsible for project
management of Milkyway Real Estate from 1995 to 1997, and was
a project manager and worker of Xuxian Construction Co., Ltd. from
1987 to 1994. Mr Jin received a bachelor degree in civil engineering and
management from the Sichuan University in 2006. He has 26 years of
experience in operation and management of property companies.

Dong Shuixiao, aged 49, is the vice president and officer of the president
office of the Group. He mainly assists the Chief Executive Officer on the
administration and general project management of the Group. He joined
the Group since 1997. He served as the deputy general manager (in
charge of finance) in Anhui Zhong An Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. in
January 2003. He was responsible for the on-site technology supervision,
construction and cost control of the project in Yisheng in February 2004.
In March 2006, he was promoted as the deputy manager of Zhong An
Group, and in charge of financial operation. From 2007 to November
2012, he served as the general manager of Anhui Zhong An Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. and certain subsidiaries of the Group in Anhui
Province. Prior to joining the Group, he was the accountant and deputy
finance manager of Xiaoshan Material Bureau from 1985 to 1993. From
1994 to 1996, he was the manager of Hangzhou Xiaoshan Hongsen
Material Co., Ltd. and responsible for operational management. Mr Dong
received his college diploma in industrial and civil construction from the
China University of Geosciences. He has over 17 years of experience in
property operation and management.
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Jin Ni, aged 38, is the vice president of the Group and the general
manager of Zhejiang Zhongan Commercial Investment Management
Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company). She is in charge of strategic
development and the business management and operation of commercial
projects of the Group, and investment and management of commercial
projects of the Group and operation management. She joined the Group
in May 1997. She served as a sales lady initially and was promoted to
become the vice manager of the Sales Department, an office manager,
and the deputy general manager of the Group from 1997 to 2006. She
received her bachelor’s degree in management from Zhejiang University
of Technology in 2003 and an associate bachelor degree in accounting
from the East College of Zhejiang University in 1996. She has 17 years
of experience in sales, and operation and management of property
companies.

Li Mouxing, aged 41, is the head of the design centre of the Group and
assistant to Chairman of the Group. He is responsible for engineering and
research and development. Mr Li joined the Group in July 2010. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr Li served as engineer in charge of Greentown China
Holdings Limited from October 20083 to July 2010, and structural engineer
of Zhejiang Industry Design & Research Institute from 1997 to 2003. Mr
Li obtained a bachelor degree in engineering mechanics from the Hehai
University. He holds constructor and structure engineer qualification.
He has over 18 years of experience in product design and engineering
management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam Yau Yiu, aged 50, is the financial controller and the company
secretary of the Company. He joined the Group in October 2008. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked for a company with property development
business in China for more than 2 years. He also acted as the finance
manager, financial controller and company secretary for three listed
companies in the United States of America and Hong Kong for a total of
about 7 years. He also worked for an international accounting firm over
3 years. Mr Lam graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor Degree in Accounting. He also holds a degree of Master of
Business Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a felow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountant and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He has about 25 years of experience in external auditing, finance and
accounting.
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Directors’ Report
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Zhong An Real Estate Limited (the
“Company”) are pleased to present their annual report to shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) and the audited financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group are property development, leasing and hotel
operation. The nature of the principal activities has not changed during the
year under review.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 79 to 86.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) proposed to declare a final dividend
of RMB1.8 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on page 248. This summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property and equipment, and investment
properties of the Group and the Company during the year under review are
set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements respectively. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on pages 240 and
241,

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company (the “Shares”) and share options of the Company during
the year under review are set out in notes 32 and 33 to the financial
statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and note 34 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s accumulated losses amounted
to RMB201,575,000 and the Company’s share premium amounted to
RMB2,983,238,000. By passing an ordinary resolution of the Company,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of share premium account
or any other fund or account which can be authorized for this purpose in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The details of the share option scheme approved by the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) on 15 May 2009 (the “Scheme”) are
disclosed below pursuant to the requirements under Chapter 17 of Rules
(the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”):

1. Purpose of the Scheme:

As incentives or rewards to the eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group.

2. Participants of the Scheme:

(@ any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive Director but excluding any non-executive Director)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any equity entity
(the “Invested Entity”) in which any members of the Group
holds an equity interest;

(b) any non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity;

(d)  any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity;
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(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

[} any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

(90 any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(h)  any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares available for subscription:

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
adopted by the Group shall not exceed 30 per cent. of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of this Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 10 per cent. of the Shares in issue as at the
date of passing the relevant resolution adopting the Scheme.

Total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme:

236,763,540 Shares (representing 10% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at 23 September 2013, being the date
on which the refreshment of the 10% general scheme limit on the
grant of options under the Scheme was approved by the then
Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company)
are available for issue under the Scheme as at the date of this report.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme:

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon the exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and other share option schemes of the Group (if any) (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1 per cent of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being (the “Individual Limit”).
Any further grant of options, which would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such participant (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) under the Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Group (if any), in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant in excess of the Individual
Limit shall be subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting
of the Company with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised and the exercise period of the option:

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
to a grantee, there is no minimum period under the Scheme for the
holding of an option before it can be exercised. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence on a day after the date
upon which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and the period within
which payment must be made:

Nominal amount of HK$1 upon acceptance of the grant of option
and options may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from
the date of the offer for grant of the option.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is the highest of the nominal value of the Shares;
the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant; and the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.
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9. Remaining life of the Scheme: 9. ZetEIMFERE R -
The Scheme will expire on 14 May 2019. ZETEIE R 2019F5 A14BER °
OUTSTANDING OPTIONS RRITEA SR E

Details of options (the “Options”) granted under the Scheme and R EIEFY RFRBEZAZCDEE M & RITE
outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year under review as  FBERSAE ([ BBRRFE ) SF1B0T -
follows:

Options granted under the Scheme REZTECREZBRE
Outstanding Number of Number of Number of Numberof ~ Outstanding at Exercise price
at 1 January Options Options Options Options 31 December Date of of Option
Name of participants 2013 granted exercised cancelled lapsed 2013 Options granted  Exercise period  HKS$ per share
R2013% 20135
1R1H Bl Bfif B EA% 12A318 BIREREE
SaAne HAGE  BREMA  BREME  BREME  BREMA AT RUAH L SRER

Category 1: Directors

AL H
ShiKancheng 2,883,720 - 2,883,720 9July 2010 (Note 1) 258
i 2,300,000 2,300,000 107A9A (Wit1) 185
22 January 2011 22 January 2014
0111 A28 to21 January 2021
0144515228
2NNE1A21
(Note 2)
(Ht2)
5,183,720 5,183,720
Shen Tiaojuan 1,441,860 1,441,860 9July 2010 (Note 1) 258
kB 1,200,000 1,200,000 201087498 (1) 185
22 January 2011 22 January 2014
011515228 1021 January 2021
M4FIA2A
E0NE1A21A
(Note 2)
(hit2)
2,641,860 2,641,860
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Outstanding Number of Number of Number of Numberof ~ Outstanding at Exercise price
at 1 January Options Options Options Options 31 December Date of of Option
Name of participants 2013 granted exercised cancelled lapsed 2013 Options granted  Exercise period  HKS per share
013§ 0135
1A1A BRY Bfik Biif BAM 128318 BRETEE
BEERL WAGE  BREEE  BREEE  BREME  BREHE HAGE RUAH frREEE Bk
Lou Yifel 1,321,705 1,321,706 9July 2010 (Note 1) 2.58
g% 1,100,000 1,100,000 01057798 (W) 1.85
22 January 2011 22 January 2014
011E1 228 to21 January 2021
014518228
EANF1A21A
(Note 2)
(Hit2)
2,421,705 2,421,705
Zhang Jiangang 1,321,706 1,321,705 9 July 2010 (Note 1) 2.58
REH 1,100,000 1,100,000 2010%7R98 (1) 18
22 January 2011 22 January 2014
011E1 F228 to21 January 2021
M14F1A2A
EANF1A2A
(Note 2)
(Hit2)
2,421,705 2,421,705
Professor Pei Ker Wei 360,465 360,465 9July 2010 (Note 1) 258
RnpHE 300,000 300,000 201067598 (i1 18
22 January 2011 22 January 2014
011E1 228 to21 January 2021
M14F1A2A
EN21%51A21H
(Note 2)
(Wit2)
660,465 660,465
Professor Wang Shu Guang 360,465 (360,465) 0 9July 2010 (Note 1) 258
(resigned on 1 January 300,000 (300,000) 0 201057898 i) 185
2013) 22 January 2011 22 January 2014
TRMAR (20135 011E1228 to21 January 2021
1A 10E#) 01451 B 28
20214518218
(Note 2)
(Ht2)
660,465 (660,465) 0
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Outstanding Number of Number of Number of Numberof ~ Outstanding at Exercise price
at 1 January Options Options Options Options 31 December Date of of Option
Name of participants 2013 granted exercised cancelled lapsed 2013 Options granted  Exercise period  HKS per share
R2013% R2013%
1A1A BRE Bfif Bt B&M 128318 BRETEE
SaARe HAE  BREMA  BREME  BREME  BREMA HRITE RUAH frREEE =Ly
Dr. Loke Yu 360,465 360,465 9 July 2010 (Note 1) 258
BEHEL 300,000 300,000 01057798 (Wit 188
22 January 2011 22 January 2014
011E1 228 to21 January 2021
014518228
E0NF1A21E
(Note 2)
(Hit2)
660,465 660,465
14,650,385 (660,465) 13,989,920
Category 2: Employees 15,860,470 (1,682,170) 14,178,300 9July 2010 (Note 1) 2.58
08 EE 18,300,000 2,500,000) 15,800,000 01057498 1) 1.8
22 January 2011 22 January 2014
011E1 228 to21 January 2021
M4FIA2A
ENNE1A21H
34,160,470 (4,182,170) 29,978,300
Category 3: Suppliers of 2,403,100 2,403,100 9July 2010 (Note 1) 258
goods or services 37,000,000 37,000,000 010F7F9H (1) 185
238 EpofBneER 22 January 2011 22 January 2014
011E1 228 to21 January 2021
M4F1A2A
EANNE1A21E
(Note 2)
(hit2)
39,403,100 39,403,100
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Outstanding Number of Number of Number of Numberof ~ Outstanding at Exercise price
at 1 January Options Options Options Options 31 December Date of of Option
Name of participants 2013 granted exercised cancelled lapsed 2013 Options granted ~ Exercise period  HKS per share
013§ 0135
1A1A BRY Bfif Bt BAM 128318 BRETEE
BEERL HAGE  BREHA  BRESRE  BREME  BREMA GERiN RUAH frREEE Bk
Category 4: Others 17,903,101 17,903,101 9July 2010 (Note 1) 258
4B A 14,600,000 14,600,000 1067A9A (1) 185
22 January 2011 22 January 2014
011E1 228 to21 January 2021
014518228
EANF1A21A
(Note 2)
(Hit2)
78,000,000 78,000,000 10 July 2013 10 July 2013
13%E7A108 to 9 July 2023
13F7A10A
Fo3ETAA
32,503,101 78,000,000 110,503,10
Total 120,717,056 78,000,000 (4,842,635) 193,874,42
&5t
Notes: et -

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the period from 9 July 2009 to

8 July 2019 (the “Option Period”) provided that the maximum number of Options

which each Grantee is entitled to exercise shall not exceed:

(@

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the expiry
of the first anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before
the second anniversary of the date of grant;

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the
second anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before the

third anniversary of the Date of Grant;

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the third
anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before the fourth

anniversary of the date of grant;

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the fourth
anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before the fifth

anniversary of the date of grant; and

20 per cent. of the total number of Options during the period from the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant to the date immediately before the sixth

anniversary of the date of grant.

ZEEIER B 2009F 7 A9 HRE201957 A8H
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TR R B R TEBE

(@

HREAPEAFEREEREREASE
“EBEFE A LESE EEREas
20%

HERHARE_EARFREERRHEASE
—EBFE A LSE EEREas
20%

HRNARNE-—ERFREEERR B ASE
WEEFREE A AEREes L
20%

HERNAPENEBFREEERRREASE
hEBSAE A ESE EEREas
20% + M

HREAPNENEBRFREEERER B ASE
NEBERE A ESE KEREas
20% °

70 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

2013 Annual Report



Directors’ Report

EEERS

2. On 22 January 2011, the Company had granted 80,000,000 Options which may be
exercisable after three years from the date of grant (the “Lock-in Period”) provided
that the Grantee has achieved the prescribed performance target during the Lock-
in Period and has passed the Company’s assessment, and be exercisable before
the expiry of the Option Period on 21 January 2021. The closing price of the Share
immediately before the date of granting the Options was HK$1.85 per share.

3. On 10 July 2013, the Company had granted 80,000,000 Options which may be
exercisable between 10 July 2013 and 9 July 2023. The closing price of the Share
immediately before the date of granting the Options was HK$1.43 per share.

4, The exercise price of the Options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Other details of the Scheme are set out in the section “Director’s and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in securities” and note 33 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The sales attributable to the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 5% of the Group’s consolidated revenue for the year under
review.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for about 35% of the Group’s consolidated purchases for the
year under review.

The largest supplier of the Group accounted for about 15% of the Group’s
consolidated purchases for the year under review.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders of the
Company (who or which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors as at 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this report
were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr Shi Kancheng (alias Shi Zhongan)
Mr Lou Yifei

Ms Shen Tiaojuan

Mr Zhang Jiangang

Independent non-executive Directors

Professor Pei Ker Wei

Dr Loke Yu (alias, Loke Hoi Lam)

Mr Zhang Huagiao (appointed on 1 January 2013)
Professor Wang Shu Guang (resigned on 1 January 2013)

In accordance with articles 108 (A) of the Company’s articles of
association, Ms Shen Tiaojuan, Mr Zhang Jiangang and Professor Pei Ker
Wei will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”).

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company still considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance subsisting during or at the end of the
year under review in which a Director is or was materially interested.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 58 to 62 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr Shi Kancheng, Mr Lou Yifei, Ms Shen Tiaojuan and Mr Zhang Jiangang
has each entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant to
which he/she agreed to act as the executive Director for a term of three
years with effect from 1 November 2013.
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No Director (including the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the AGM)
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

(1) Long positions in Shares of the Company

Number of Shares held and nature of interest in the Company:

BEEE(BERNIRBFAS LREREEN
E%) D EARFRI AR BHARFR—FA
EERIE CEEREAN WIRBAR -

EFTHE
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EERIETHARRAFE
FHiER
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BFE 2 BTz Ega AR  SkiE LT
RAM S+ EMBITAESETESFR G 2IZE
SFRI(EESFR ) BBITME AR R KRB RZATZ
iz ORB AT

(1) RAERARGHEFR

RARBFENRNEE RERIEE

Number and Approximate
Name of class of percentage Long/Short
Director Capacity securities held of interest position

FiE S RN
EEpE 54 HERER BOH % %E
Mr. Shi Kancheng Interest of controlled 1,628,760,000 shares of 68.79% Long

corporation (Note) HK$0.1 each in the capital
of the Company

JiAliipe VLA (fEt) RATIRAGIREEOA BT "R

1,628,760,000 A& A% 17

Note: These shares are held by Whole Good Management Limited, the entire

issued share capital of which is solely and beneficially owned by Mr Shi

Kancheng.

HtaZ ¢ I Z A% B Whole Good Management Limited
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(2) Long positions in underlying shares of the

(20 RADTFEERGHNETE :

Company:
Number of Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of Shares held the Company’s
Director Capacity (Note) issued share capital
FrsHEBER OB E EARDBE BT
EEpE %) (Bat) REBOED L
Mr Shi Kancheng Beneficial owner 5,183,720 0.22
MK SE 4 BEmBEAA
Ms Shen Tiaojuan Beneficial owner 2,641,860 0.11
YRS EmEAA
Mr Lou Yifei Beneficial owner 2,421,705 0.10
LRk vt BmBEAA
Mr Zhang Jiangang Beneficial owner 2,421,705 0.10
SRERHH S A4 EmEA A
Professor Pei Ker Wei Beneficial owner 660,465 0.03
HrE#HE BmBEAA
Dr Loke Yu Beneficial owner 660,465 0.03
Gy N EmEA A

Note: These represent the number of Shares which will be allotted and issued
to the respective Directors upon the exercise of the share options granted
to each of them pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 15 May 2009.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the other
Directors and chief executives of the Company had or were deemed
under the SFO to have any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year
under review.
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Directors’ Report

EEERS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, so far as are known to any Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or
deemed to be interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company:

FERFRRELFEFHER

BARBMERESZRFEZTHRASA - %2013
F12A31H BRARREFHEEITHAESIN
KR RIRIEREF LB EH #3367 2 2 &
Fracsk - sWZARTMEARRAR]  EEKBEHES
R AEERNA A EITIRARE% R L=
AT

Percentage of the

Number of Company’s issued Long/Short

Name Capacity shares held share capital Position
ARAREBIT

=L 514 FERGBEE BRABNE DL 373

Whole Good Management Beneficial owner 1,628,760,000 68.79% Long

Limited (Note) (#fa3) BEmfB A HE

Note: The entire issued share capital of Whole Good Management Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr Shi Kancheng. Mr Shi Kancheng is the sole director of
Whole Good Management Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions of the Group are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

There were no transactions required to be disclosed as non-exempt
connected transactions or non-exempt continuing connected transactions
in accordance with the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December
2018. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

HtaE - Whole Good Management Limited #2288 #1T%
ReZ Bk T EERESR © i £ R Whole
Good Management Limited f) i —E = -

B ESCATIREESN - 20139123318 » ET
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EIRFIE 33615 T 7 BB 2 Eamsix g -
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HE2013F12A1 ALLFEN - MELZFHEIER
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Directors’ Report

Esegs

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2013.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately RMB551,000 (2012: RMB340,000).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Other than the approval granted by the Stock Exchange on 28 February
2014 pursuant to Practice Note 15 to the Listing Rules of the Company’s
proposal relating to the proposed spin-off of certain existing subsidiaries of
the Company which are principally engaged in the development of, sales
of and investment in, commercial properties in sub-city centers of second-
tier cities in the Yangtze-River Delta Region, the PRC, there was no matter
occurred that bears significant effect to the Group between the year end
date and the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retired and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On Behalf of the Board
Zhong An Real Estate Limited

Shi Kancheng
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 24 March 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report

R GTE: e

EY =i«

To the shareholders of Zhong An Real Estate Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhong An
Real Estate Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 79 to 239, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZBERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with IFRSs and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

24 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BOHEFER

Year ended 31 December 2013 &= 20134 12 A 31 HILEE

2013 2012
2013 F 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HigF AR¥T T ARET T
Revenue PN 5 2,437,605 2,395,625
Cost of sales SHE A (1,519,329) (1,476,403)
Gross profit EF 918,276 919,222
Other income and gains E A YA K W m 5 31,433 20,821
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R iERX (127,801) (56,708)
Administrative expenses TR (298,629) (237,461)
Other expenses Hnpx (3,246) 4,711)
Fair value gain upon transfer to HEREIEYIER
investment properties A EERE 15 256,292 =
Increase in fair value of WEMER R
investment properties {BEE N 15 60,793 60,335
Finance costs WIFER 7 (10,535) (3,660)
Share of profits and losses of: DIHEEBER
Joint ventures EAINENT E 20 (2,409) (1,007)
Profit before tax BR% AT A 6 824,174 696,831
Income tax expense PSR < 10 (366,160) (306,778)
Profit for the year FRFE 458,014 390,053
Attributable to: AT S -
Owners of the parent [STNEIE YN 11 420,539 336,228
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M A 37,475 53,825
458,014 390,053
Earnings per share attributable BAREBEREEA
to ordinary equity holders of EhEREF
the parent (RMB) (AR®) 13
Basic =N 18 cents 14 cents
1845 145
Diluted e 18 cents 14 cents
18 % 145

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed in
note 12 to the financial statements.

BisE12 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BOFEEERR

Year ended 31 December 2013 #Z 20134 12 A31 HILFE

2013 2012
2013 % 2012
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HizF ARET T ARBT T
Profit for the year FRFHE 458,014 390,053
Other comprehensive income Hh 2 E e
Other comprehensive income REZBEEN D BR=ERN
to be reclassified to profit or Hib2mEUPA -
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation BEGING B A BB IS RE
of the financial statements of EERENEZR
foreign subsidiaries 6,834 (28,423)
Net other comprehensive REZBEEN D BE=ERN
income to be reclassified Hib2mEkaF8E
to profit or loss in subsequent periods 6,834 (28,423)
Total comprehensive FREEWRZEE
income for the year 464,848 361,630
Attributable to: AT M
Owners of the parent [STNEIEZEPN 427,373 307,805
Non-controlling interests FEIE R A 37,475 53,825
464,848 361,630
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB AR R

31 December 2013 2013412 A31 B

2013 2012
2013 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HigF AR¥T T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property and equipment FEENEE 14 202,133 206,585
Investment properties TEYZE 15 2,501,000 2,057,300
Properties under development FAEE R 2 16 6,078,296 5,637,964
Goodwill kS 17 - -
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 18 3,300 5,610
Long term prepayments RAEIFEI K 19 48,584 38,910
Investments in joint ventures NEEDERNRE 20 412,448 361,622
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 21 142,785 128,963
Restricted cash SR FIRE 27 95,750 95,750
Total non-current assets HBIEMENEE 9,484,296 8,532,704
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Completed properties held for sale FHESHE B AR 23 4,386,355 4,055,476
Equity investments at fair value through RARBEFEAEHESE
profit or loss FTAE BEEERIRE 24 1,077 722
Properties under development FEE R 16 1,430,161 1,008,595
Inventories FE 10,078 9,560
Trade and bills receivables JEWE 5 BR AN =R 25 22,980 3,860
Prepayments, deposits BN EE Rk
and other receivables H fib e W 5108 26 241,004 215,821
Restricted cash BRI & 27 301,722 129,688
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 27 1,234,975 894,077
7,628,352 6,317,799
Investment property classified DEAFIEHENRE
as held for sale LS 15 31,000 35,100
Total current assets BB EE 7,659,352 6,352,899
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE
Trade payables FEIE SR 28 1,794,221 1,513,439
Other payables and accruals H b fE N FE K EETE A 29 495,389 662,943
Advances from customers BEPIEMNRK 30 1,871,993 1,688,766
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 51888775 5% & EAth i 51 31 835,890 1,739,030
Tax payable JERTARIR 10 783,047 651,799
Total current liabilities wrEaE 5,780,540 6,255,977
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFRE 1,878,812 96,922
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HWEERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,363,108 8,629,626
BREEARAT —=#£% 81



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB R

31 December 2013 2013412 A 31 H

2013 2012
2013 F 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat ARETT AREET T
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBEMS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,363,108 8,629,626
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and FTRIRITER
other borrowings REAMETK 31 4,620,404 2,493,137
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIEAE 21 553,102 435,343
Total non-current liabilities BIERBBE 5,173,506 2,928,480
Net assets FEE 6,189,602 5,701,146
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners ISYNEIETZEPN
of the parent FEEHER
Issued capital BT 32 222,319 222,319
Reserves i 34 5,621,966 5,174,902
Proposed final dividend B AR E 12 42,617 -
5,886,902 5,397,221
Non-controlling interests B 302,700 303,925
Total equity i 6,189,602 5,701,146
Shi Kancheng Shen Tiaojuan HEAR B YRGS
Chairman and Director Director TEFESE 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B ERRER

Year ended 31 December 2013 #{Z= 20134 12 A31 HILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAAREARE
Share Share  Statutory  Statutory  Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued ~premium Contributed ~ Capitl ~ option  suplus  reserve fluctuation  Retained final controling Total
capital account  surplus  resene  reseme  reseme fid  reseve  profits  dividend Total inferests  equity
EiE  ieas it ElE B R
BhE RAREE EERH RARRE  EEE  MRE  EEE  EEC  RERH  AMRR &3t B gER
RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMBOO0 RMBO0  RMBO00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMBUOO0  RMBO00
ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTZ ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
Note Noied2  Noiedde) Noteddb) MNoleddc)  Noted3  Note3dd)  Notedd(d)
it W% Wi KAy KMy MR WEMg  HEsg
At January 2012 M2E1R1A 2068 20859 9318 WY 44 1415 8259 (8020 1,711,838 - 5062708 205400 5,268,108
P e il - - - - - - - - w2 - R W
Othercomprefiensienoome EREREIYE:
forthe year:
Exchenge iferencas on pEEsHEE
fransion LENER
oforeign operatons - - - - - - - (84 - - (84 - (849
Totd comprehensive noome forheyesr  ER2AYGEE - - - - - - -8y 3% 1 T 1. 1)
Repurcheseand canceleion of shares.~—~ BERERRE % BT e - - - - - - - - B - B
Capta contibuton byroncontoling.~~ FERBREE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - M0 470
Fouiy-seffed shere oplion arangements ~ REEEERERE % - - - - N - - - - - -
Transfrof shere oton resene RERERUGER
Upon e forere o hEREhERE
expiry of share options - - - - (4 - - - 4647 - - - -
Transfer fomretaned pros HiRAETER - - - - - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2012 DERANA 2319 208328 39318 (3%Y 99839 181480 8239 (108653 2016343 530721 339 501,146
A1 January 2013 MSE1R1A WM 296328 06 (43900 99839 181480 8200 (108653 2015343 5307201 303925 5,701,146
Proft for theyear SRR - - - - - - - - 405 - 0E9 N4 B804
Othercomprehersveinoome for theyear.  ERERATAE
Bchngedfeeoesontensilin  BEBIEREE
offoregn operations (B3R - - - - - - - b8 - - b - b
Totd comprehensie roomeforteyer  FREHAENE - - - - - - - 6% 405 - A N4 dAeR
Divend pic o ron-oontoling B TEERRRRS
Sharghoders - - - - - - - - - - - (3700 (38,700)
Fouty-setfed s opfon arengements~ REEERRERE 9 - - - - B - - - - K K
Trnsterof shareopionresenewponthe. HERERMEER
forffure o expy of she options hERERERE - - - - (b - - - 4 - - - -
Proposed nal 2013 dvidend ERN0ERERE 12 - - - - - - - S L1 - - -
Transfer fomretaned profs HRAETER - - - - - g - - g - - - -
At 31 December 2013 A13E12A31E M9 2963208 M8 (390" fT7OM 22108T  B20* (101819 2358008 42617 5806902 302700 6,189,602
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEREBREBEAHUBERARANEHBEBEAR

RMB5,621,966,000 (2012: RMB5,174,902,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

#5,621,966,000 7T (2012 4F : AR¥5,174,902,000
) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

O RS RER

Year ended 31 December 2013 #Z 20134 12 A31 HILFE

2013 2012
2013 F 2012 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hist ARETT ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities REXBENBRESRE
Profit before tax BR A 824,174 696,831
Adjustments for: AR
Depreciation e 14 20,184 21,618
Fair value gain upon transfer to HETREYER
investment properties AR EE R 15 (256,292) -
Changes in fair value of HEYER
investment properties AREEE 15 (60,793) (60,335)
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: RABEKS), BEFE :
Equity investments at fair value AR EBEFEAEES
through profit or loss STAE B RS (355) 282
Equity-settled share option expense RESEE R R 33 62,308 29,712
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures DMhAELENFEREE 2,409 1,007
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREYFEIAE Ml 5 (51) (3,003)
Finance costs 55 M 7 10,535 3,660
Interest income RSN N 5 (7,993) (2,867)
594,126 686,905
(Increase)/decrease in properties FZE R EE (38 ), SR
under development (388,815) 1,343,040
Increase in completed FEREE R
properties held for sale LIES)| (457,687) (2,575,284)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables  FEURE ZERZ R Z4 (#0),/ B> (19,120) 52,890
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, B - e REAEBGIE
deposits and other receivables (2m),md (25,183) 327,151
(Increase)/decrease in long term prepayments RERFERFR (3E) /R (9,674) 698,163
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE M),/ R (518) 2,063
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash for HEMSREXRGRE
pre-sales proceeds (2m),md (9,467) 64,945
Increase in trade payables FEfTE SRR 0 280,782 90,031
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H A fERTRIE R FERT & A
and accruals #n,/Crd) 5,543 (132,415)
Increase/(decrease) in advances from customers  Z AR RN,/ (Fi4) 183,227 (685,707)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations REEKRES (R HRE 153,214 (28,218)
Interest received WS 7,993 2,867
Interest paid EAFLE (478,158) (362,090)
Income tax and land appreciation tax paid ERATEH R T ER (130,975) (186,202)
Net cash flows used in REEBFERMN
operating activities HEeREFE (447,926) (573,643)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHREESRER

Year ended 31 December 2013 & Z= 20134 12 A 31 HILFE

2013 2012
2013 % 2012 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat ARETR ARETT
Net cash flows used in R EBRFERN
operating activities BEREFE (447,926) (573,643)
Cash flows from investing activities REXBELNESRE
Capital contributions and loans to AEERERE TR
joint ventures KER (53,235) (185,147)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEMSHIE
investment properties sold 4,344 28,424
Purchases of items of property and equipment ~ BEEBEREE MREER (16,910) (1,668)
Proceeds from disposal of H & Al E R E TS HIE
available-for-sale investments 2,310 -
Proceeds from disposal of items HERERZEER
of property and equipment FT{S50IA 1,178 18
New restricted pledged deposit b SR ES A (170,067) (103,050)
Decrease in restricted pledged deposits XM ST RO 7,500 2,254
Net cash flows used in REXBRANESRETFHE
investing activities (224,880) (259,169)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHEENRLSRE
Capital contributions by EIERRR R HE
non-controlling shareholders - 44,700
Dividends paid to B FIHERBRERAR S
non-controlling shareholders (38,700) -
New interest-bearing bank and it BRITER
other borrowings K E g R 4,582,097 2,627,786
Repayment of interest-bearing bank and EE BRITER
other borrowings R E AR (3,357,970) (1,451,000)
Repurchase of shares EARERh) 32 - (3,004)
(Decrease)/increase in an amount due to RERES e
a non-controling shareholder FIECRD), /i 29 (178,557) 124,322
Net cash flows from financing activities BEETHELENRERERE 1,006,870 1,342,804
Net increase in cash and BEeRBLEEY
cash equivalents ENEEE 334,064 509,992
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year #1334 ML EEY 894,077 412,508
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ERETMTE  FE 6,834 (28,423)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERAESRBELEEY 1,234,975 894,077
Analysis of balances of cash REeRESEENERIN
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances B RIRITHEH 27 1,234,975 894,077
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Statement of Financial Position

B ISR 2R

31 December 2013 2013412 A 31 H

2013 2012
2013 F 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiat AR®T T AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETE R R RI%E 22 885,267 929,934
Property and equipment B E k& 14 2,188 203
Total non-current assets BIERENEE 887,455 930,137
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI 22 1,830,798 1,891,949
Prepayments, deposits and TERR - EE Rk
other receivables Ho A e Y 5RIE 26 565 52
Equity investments at fair value through A AR EETE BEZEHETA
profit or loss EHBERNRERE 24 1,077 722
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIREEEY 27 88,091 1,739
Total current assets WmENEE 1,920,531 1,894,462
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEISTFT B A )R8 22 187,044 109,330
Other payables and accruals Hofth FEA 5RIE &JTE#;%?FH 29 2,035 1,617
Total current liabilities BB E 189,079 110,947
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFEE 1,731,452 1,783,515
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBEMS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,618,907 2,713,652
Net assets REE 2,618,907 2,713,652
EQUITY =
Issued capital BT 32 222,319 222,319
Reserves 1] 34 2,353,971 2,491,333
Proposed final dividend ERARERE 12 42,617 =
Total equity MR 2,618,907 2,713,652
Shi Kancheng Shen Tiaojuan HEAR K SCi& B
Chairman and Director Director FTEFEE =
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zhong An Real Estate Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated as an exempted company in the Cayman
Islands on 13 March 2007 under the Companies Law (revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the Company
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally engaged in property development, leasing and hotel
operation. The Group’s property development projects during the
year were all located in Zhejiang, Anhui and Jiangsu provinces, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), the
holding company and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Whole Good Management Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands on 3 May 2007. Whole Good Management
Limited is wholly owned by Mr Shi Kancheng, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
which comprise standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”),
and International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Committee that remain
in effect, and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties
and derivative financial instruments which have been
measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

LAFEH

BEFEEABRAR(ARAF ) E2007 £3
R 13 BIREREHES A RDE (KIEET) EFH
SRETMKLRERRERAT - AAH]
B = B A7 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands °

AREREMBEAR (SB[ ARE D2/
EMEFE  BERHESE - /1 ~%
By EIRB NP EARKME(H
B AT - RIS - FAREERNE

EKEARBREEF(EFDRE NAEH
2R N R R AR AR IR X B R Whole Good
Management Limited © —Z# 2007 5 A
SHEXRBHERHSHMAZIHAF - XA
AEFREFNTERMKEEZERE
Whole Good Management Limited

WHEERETBE

2.1 wBEE

7 B 7 R 5% 1 PR B R B 7 e o E B
(R R 3R 2R ) ARl - T B
PSR e E R ER g RE
Fe((BHResrENEEE ) KE
BREr A RRERBR g EE
R AR ER ek - ARBEB AR
BEPIRIRERTE - RIREWMERITE
R TAMA TN ST BERIZA
REBEFEIN  NAHMBRERTIR
BRIE SE AR BIAR S © BR B 15 Bl 31 AR
S RAFHBRRAARE (AR
EDFIH YRBESAN T LE

fir -

REFEERRAT

==& 87



Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE (&)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

LS
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. IWEIEERSHBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 SHBEBSBRIEE

disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs

for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 10

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 Amendments

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IFRS 13

IAS 1 Amendments

IAS 19 Amendments

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12
— Transition Guidance

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSSR R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

IAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in
2009-2011 Cycle May 2012

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IFRS 13, amendments to
IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, IAS 1 Amendments, IAS 19
Amendments, and certain amendments included in Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle (Include other standards
as appropriate), the adoption of the new and revised IFRSs
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised IFRSs
are as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

@)

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements and
addresses the issues in I(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. It establishes a single
control model used for determining which entities are
consolidated. To meet the definition of control in IFRS
10, an investor must have (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. The changes introduced by IFRS 10
require management of the Group to exercise significant
judgement to determine which entities are controlled.

As a result of the application of IFRS 10, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect to
determining which investees are controlled by the
Group.

The application of IFRS 10 does not change any of the
consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with investees as at 1 January 2013.

2. WREIEER & AR (8])
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and I(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control. It
addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation. The classification of joint arrangements
under IFRS 11 depends on the parties’ rights and
obligations arising from the arrangements. A joint
operation is a joint arrangement whereby the joint
operators have rights to the assets and obligations
for the liabilities of the arrangement and is accounted
for on a line-by-line basis to the extent of the joint
operators’ rights and obligations in the joint operation.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
joint venturers have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement and is required to be accounted for using
the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 (2011).

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the classification of the Group’s investments in joint
arrangements in accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 11, and concluded that the application of IFRS 11
does not change any accounting for investments in joint
ventures as at 1 January 2013.

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

22 EBRREBHRKE (H)

(b)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(©

IFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities previously included in IAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, IAS
31 Interests in Joint Ventures and IAS 28 Investments
in Associates. It also introduces a number of new
disclosure requirements for these entities. Details of
the disclosures for subsidiaries and joint ventures are
included in notes 22 and 20 to the financial statements.

The IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Amendments
clarify the transition guidance in IFRS 10 and provide
further relief from full retrospective application of
these standards, limiting the requirement to provide
adjusted comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period. The amendments clarify that
retrospective adjustments are only required if the
consolidation conclusion as to which entities are
controlled by the Group is different between IFRS 10
and IAS 27 or I(SIC)-Int 12 at the beginning of the annual
period in which IFRS 10 is applied for the first time.

2. WREIEER & AR (8])
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

()

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a
single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across IFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance
on how fair value should be applied where its use
is already required or permitted under other IFRSs.
IFRS 13 is applied prospectively and the adoption
has had no material impact on the Group’s fair value
measurements. As a result of the guidance in IFRS
18, the policies for measuring fair value have been
amended. Additional disclosures required by IFRS 13
for the fair value measurements of financial instruments
are included in notes 15 and 40 to the financial
statements.

The IAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”).
ltems that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit
or loss at a future point in time (for example, exchange
differences on translation of foreign operations, net
movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain
on available-for-sale financial assets) are presented
separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, the revaluation of land and buildings).
The amendments have affected the presentation only
and have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group. The consolidated statement
of comprehensive income has been restated to reflect
the changes. In addition, the Group has chosen to use
the new title “statement of profit or loss” as introduced
by the amendments in these financial statements.

2. WREIEER & AR (8])
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(©)

IAS 19 Amendments includes a number of
amendments that range from fundamental changes
to simple clarifications and re-wording. The revised
standard introduces significant changes in the
accounting for defined benefit pension plans including
removing the choice to defer the recognition of actuarial
gains and losses. Other changes include modifications
to the timing of recognition for termination benefits,
the classification of short-term employee benefits and
disclosures of defined benefit plans. As the Group
does not have any defined benefit plan or employee
termination plan and the Group does not have any
significant employee benefits that are expected to be
settled for more than twelve months after the reporting
period, the adoption of the revised standard has had
no effect on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in
May 2012 sets out amendments to a number of
standards. There are separate transitional provisions
for each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments have had a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of the
key amendments most applicable to the Group are as
follows:

2. WREIEER & AR (8])
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information.
Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must
include comparative information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information
beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to
contain a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or
makes reclassifications, and that change has
a material effect on the statement of financial
position. However, the related notes to the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period are not
required to be presented.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted
for in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes.
The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from IAS 32 and requires entities to
apply the requirements in IAS 12 to any income
tax arising from distributions to equity holders.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective
International Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following IFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective in the Financial Information:

IFRS 9

IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and
IAS 39 Amendments

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

IFRS 14

IAS 19 Amendments

IAS 32 Amendments

IAS 36 Amendments

Financial Instruments*

Hedge Accounting and amendments to IFRS 9,
IFRS 7 and IAS 39*

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27

(2011) - Investment Entities'

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits
- Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilties’

Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets -
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets'
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective
International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IAS 39 Amendments Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement — Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge

Accounting’

IFRIC-Int 21 Levies'

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in
2010-2012 Cycle December 20137

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in
2011-2013 Cycle December 20137

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for

adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to
address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in IFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of IAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from IAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO?).
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in
fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of
the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO are
scoped out of the Additions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. WHEERSBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective 2.3 SEMENERERZE R
International Financial Reporting B EER (&)
Standards (continued)

In December 2013, the IASB added to IFRS 9 the 2013512 7 - Hf st £RIZE &
requirements related to hedge accounting and made some 15 £ 2 5T AR EE AR T 0 A B BR B 7% R
related changes to IAS 39 and IFRS 7 which include the HAERE O - WHEBEREFTLERE
corresponding disclosures about risk management activity 39 5% K B BR B s s 5 AERIEE 7 SR /E
for applying hedge accounting. The amendments to IFRS ETHEEE  SERERY R
9 relax the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness ER R EREBMNE@EHE - B
which result in more risk management strategies being eligible B RS R B OSRERT A IE T 7F
for hedge accounting. The amendments also allow greater HEDRRUESR - BREZEARE
flexibility on the hedged items and relax the rules on using RIS LR G ERE - ZEER]
purchased options and non-derivative financial instruments IMESHRIERE R AEE ME TFEA
as hedging instruments. In addition, the amendments to IFRS EEEMERITESR T EERY
9 allow an entity to apply only the improved accounting for T EAFE o thoh - BRI ESRE
own credit risk-related fair value gains and losses arising on HERIBORIEFI N ETERE A
FVO liabilities as introduced in 2010 without applying the other 2010 F 5| AR AR BEERA GRS
IFRS 9 requirements at the same time. BMBE B EERBEEAREERE

NERIE R BCER ARRTTE - A
B N R B PR B 75 ¥R 5 2B RSB 9 SR Ay

HMIBRE -
IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety. BB iSRS R FE SR B EZ AN
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39 KRB 25 2ERIZE 3955  RAEEEUK
on impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The A B EFEREIRREmE
previous mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 was removed by Efs T EmMESIDEERER - B8
the IASB in November 2013 and a mandatory effective date SR AEE R 20134 11 A 5k
will be determined after the entire replacement of 1AS 39 is R B 75 S e 22 B 85 9 5i% LA 7 58 1l AR K
completed. However, the standard is available for application BE - Kog sl B BHERE2EImR
now. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with RE AR ZE 39 R TEA A EE © A
other phases, when the final standard including all phases is i+ ZZERNA IR E A o IR
issued. EFTA RIS RIRER - AEE

EREMEREETE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 include a definition of an investment
entity and provide an exception to the consolidation
requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity. Investment entities are required to
account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss
in accordance with IFRS 9 rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to IFRS 12 and IAS
27 (Revised). The amendments to IFRS 12 also set out the
disclosure requirements for investment entities. The Group
expects that these amendments will not have any impact on
the Group as the Company is not an investment entity as
defined in IFRS 10.

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify
the application of the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2014.

The IAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended disclosure
requirement made by IFRS 13 on the recoverable amount
of a cash-generating unit which is not impaired. In addition,
the amendments require the disclosure of the recoverable
amounts for the assets or cash-generating units for which an
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the
reporting period, and expand the disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value measurement for these assets or units
if their recoverable amounts are based on fair value less costs
of disposal. The amendments are effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with
earlier application permitted, provided IFRS 13 is also applied.

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

23 CHEMEERERZBEBRE

B EER ()

BRI %S ERE 0BT A
ERREERNEE  URTEREER
BEENERRHARGEEAROR
E o RIBER MR E LR FE 95
REBRARMBRARIRARBER
ABEAR - MIIE TGRS - BIER
BT ER AR RIS 12 5% I BIRR & E T 2E R
F 27 SR (EIERT) EMR R BIERT -
R TS RIS 12 SRIERT AN TR
REERNBERTE - ARNARRL
FEBIBR A TS RS E RN F 1058 PTSRE
HWIREER  AAEERRZEFE
AR TS HAEBBREMZE -

B & EERIE 32 SRIEFT AN RS
REENRCREBESBEMARRE
AT SRR 2 Bk - R FIERTN
BB R e RIS 325k  HSHIRAE
AREARGEE RS (Pl REER
RE) > MxFERZBRTIERAIER 2 H
TR E ) - NEBKRN 2014 F 1
A1 BRMZFER - MxFERIE
A UAREE MR RAE
BAEMFE

BIFR &5 4ERISE 36 SRS ST ANEUS BB
WSR2 RS 13 W ERER S
7 A B 2 AT UK [B] < BB AT T B LA SN
ZHWBRTE o I REBITARTE
BTN AR R E R E
EEREESNIR S EE BN 2 AUk [E
SR WIEARZEEENEA (ME
AUk [l & 58 T B A o B AR &K
R)ZARBEFENHERTE © %
EETAR 201451 A1 B2 & H
A2 FEHRBMAERS - WA IRTEE
A+ () BRF I Z8 JRE R (B R B 75 i o 2
BIZE135% o

BRRFEEARAR ZZE—=FFRK

101



Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. WHEERSBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTHERHBE
policies
Subsidiaries MEA R
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly M AR JhA AR R B sk ML
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved MNER(BREEEERE) - E4A5H
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns E2EGEHRAXBERIEEZE
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to FrEAMA & O R A BN EBHY
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., BREHRNENFEZZ 0 R (B
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct TAREER AR NEEBREHRTIA
the relevant activities of the investee). BESHIRAER) B BREAARSE
EIEHIRE LR o
When the company has, directly or indirectly, less than a WA A B EREEEER PR AZH
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group KR E SR E R E A DERN - R
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing SERFTHERENRELREER
whether it has power over an investee, including: RNEEMBEBSERIEN 85
(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders @ HEEEHRNEMREESE
of the investee; ARG KL
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and (o) HiENLTHOERN : &
()  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights. € AEEMKRERERBEREE
The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s B AR M FEERE W R BN S
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received ARRRIMERER - AQREHBA
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries A RIS BB E DR EE B Z K
are stated at cost less any impairment losses. ARFTR o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but

is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognise its share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of

the Group’s investments in associates joint ventures.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR AR M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & EHRK ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associates and joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance

RBEQARARSELENRE (H)

REERBNREZERNRNE EBEN
BRE(RZTR)  REBENBEIEE
HEtE - B2 - REEBR B
SEARR - RATAEEMIBERT « RK
EHMERRNEATESHAED
ENBEATER  AEBERAAEE
FAEREREMRERE - RAEE
FEIAREHRBERR A E
EEEMELEFRERERABEZH
B ERZR L EMSFIRR B
B e
ERBERRRAELENRENR
REAELE - MERERBEMBER

with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and SERIE SN FFHEH ERFETEE

Discontinued Operations. ERERIFZEFS] N -
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Notes to Financial Statements

BIRE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. WAEERSHBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill EREHEEE
Business combinations are accounted for using the EREOTRABBBERE - ¥4
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is PrhEZRNREDRKER 2 ARE
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum Bt E - ZARBETIZAEEfE
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by ENEE  ASEMBIT BRI RE
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former FIB AEENBERAEBEZEITUR
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by R W B 75 2 12 4 2 AR AN R e ALK
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each BEHNAALEBEZN - HBREBE
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure Bms  AEERESETUARER
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present S U TS AT R R B E R E MRS
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate Bl FFER U B ES AR
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or =R IR AR R IR A T HE A ARERIR
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net BRI DR EBFEERIEE
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are iRz o JEFEHIRR IR 2 — YD H AR
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed DIEAREEE - BREREN
as incurred. RAREERS| BRI
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial EAREBUE —IBEBE - REEH
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification B3R~ AOEIRIE MY B /9 /E
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, 1R 7R E 5 18 R A RS PR
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the SRIEERBE - BIETEBEHK
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded BARKESHANRAXITELES
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. Fl °
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. WHEERSBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)
policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued) (RSO EE (E)
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the Wb EAHIPEERETT » LAIFAN
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition RN EE B BN A R BEEMNAT
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in 2 MAEM K EEREZ R R
profit or loss. R o
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer U T 1% T e A A Sk AR
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent RUHE B B A BEER - AR
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial B s Aem T A BERER ST
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at AERE KB AN —TBEEHAE
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit Al AR EEE - BEEBEIAN
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If BadfErAMEENEAZE - 5k
the contingent consideration is not within the scope of IAS ANRBNFEERIRR & 5+ 2R 3957 46
39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRS. W - AR 4 3 e BIRR B 5k 228l
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not TR nEAEENIARELEE
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for FEtE  MEREERERP AR -
within equity.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of BERIEZ % - R % VBT
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount KRB MIEERE SRR ST R
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of N5 B AR AR U RS 7 45 B D AR AR A
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree wEER A BEAATBRBEA
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities KRR FEERMAENAGERNZ
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items B o (IEREMIAR 2 FMER AT
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the BEEFENAALEE  EEHTME
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss % EBEEAFERBRE 2K
as a gain on bargain purchase. R AEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)

policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on the disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)

policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

k

DNRBEERE (F)

|

ARSI BEARBENTEEER

E%E’\’Afcfﬁﬁ%‘%ﬁﬂ"*ﬁ LEEN
C DERERABEFEERME

H%?ijiﬁ’ﬂﬂﬂf_ﬁw%&%)\ﬁﬁﬁém g

F—&: ERBEREEXREBENE
BMZMNWE CREAR)

B ERREELE AR EE
SHEEREYAREE
AEEEAFENGEES

7S

N

F=: ERSZESERBATAE
ZAHEBEEFEFEAY
BWBETE

IR F A BN TSR TER
BENMAENES @ AEEREREH
RBBSBHAEEHN(REHAAE
B BRI s BEANRERREK
B ETEBRIEERHLEES -

mrEEARAT @ —=——#4% 109



Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, completed
properties held for sale, properties under development,
investment properties, goodwill and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)

policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
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(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) EESMHARBEITHEERT
255

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) AEAEEHAEERAT]

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

)

(i

(i)

(V)

(V)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)

policies (continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation

Property and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Cost may also include
transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases, plant and
equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements in the asset
revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of
profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An
annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained
profits is made for the difference between the depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of
a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

FERRERITE

BRAEZTRIN - BERRETIIRAAR
ER R & AR EE B AR
FENMEENKRABREREERE
V{5 B EE 1 2 & IR e b B DA A =T
S REMERERARA o RATRA] L
BRERABRANYE - BELRE
INEFBERAMAERIRERE

AT E AT e S

FENREEBRERELN L
WHEERREBRE  —RAAELE
HFBEEX - MEIERRE  AE
ARBHRAXEREERAETEAR
EERE R - WAERBRAESY
Ehatw o AIAREEKRERE
RRBREAEAFHRNERNEEL
BEFE

AREGETRANBRGE - AR
REMEENAABEIGAIEREE
HEFEE - W% - BEAREBZEER
BHIEREESHRENESH T
BRI - fMREREEEREAE - ZF
AR RIATRRZ AR AL - "X B A
WA & B IRE AN - £ H
BREMABBOETARER  HEARE
AR EAZE AR - EESMARE
BEREGNNFRERDRIBEE
MEGREETERREEENIGK
AFEZREMEL - REE—IRER
BER  HEeAMGEERNEESRL
AR S ES AR EE
BARBE T

mrEEARAR @ —T——#4% 113
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BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Property and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated residual
values and useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Useful lives Residual values
Properties 20 years 5% to 10%
Machinery 10 years 5%
Office equipment 5 years 5%
Motor vehicles 5 years 5%

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual value, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents renovation works in
progress and is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost mainly comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property
and equipment or investment properties when completed and
ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)

policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement for profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from completed properties held for sale to
investment properties, any difference between the fair value of
the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group determines whether completed properties held
for sales would be transferred to investment properties
when, only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by
the following criteria: (a) the Group has prepared a business
plan that reflects the future rental income generated by the
property and this is supported with evidence that there is
demand for rental space; (b) the Group can demonstrate that
it has the resources, including the necessary financing or
capital, to hold and manage an investment property; (c) The
change in use is legally permissible; (d) If the property must
be further developed for the change in use, developed has
commenced and (e) Change in use is approved by board
resolution.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs
directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which are intended to be held
for sale and expected to be completed within 12 months from
the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets.

Properties under development which are intended to be held
for sale and expected to be completed beyond 12 months
from the end of the reporting period are classified as non-
current assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. WHEERSBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)
policies (continued)
Completed properties held for sale BFEHECERYE
Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower FHEHE B AR IR AN R ] 835
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by FEMENREETIRR - KRGS
an apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings YD ZE (G + 3 SR F AR AR B B 1
attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable value E o JBRFEEERRITIR - &
takes into account the selling price, less estimated costs to be BIHEENE  WHEGTEEWER
incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing market EEERRR -
conditions.
Operating leases REHE
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of EEEEAENTAE R ERES
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for SHEAMBHNEE - B3 EEEH
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets o mAKEEALAA - AIREER
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in BREHerBANBEET AFERDE
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating = miBEgEHENEWRES I
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight- BRI A N ERAFT ABEE © M4
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, SEEAEMBA @ EERENERTE
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to SHEAABPANE G ETABRR °
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.
Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are LA EE TRTEN TS R IE R
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the YRR ARSI =R - WRERRAEGREE
straight-line basis over the lease terms. HAFE AR °
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably i T8 &~ FR A Al SE AE 3 Mg
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease ZEETHE  FTEHEENTREES
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as MENREZHEZBEREYEZ LR
a finance lease in property and equipment. BFZKA -
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BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributed to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

24 FEETHERUE (&)

RERHMEREE

VG TR Keat B

TREENVITERED BARAE
EFfEREEFF AEHREN SR
BE  BERRBRUGEMAHEES
BMEE AN RIEERBERE DR E
R ITEMATETR (ER) - &/
BEEVRERRHARAEEN L
WEERMEEELNRHMAE
HEAAABEFEEELEHFTAEH
AR ROER ) & B E AR o

MESREERREEIN S BE
R AAEEAEEESREHEZA
BEMBHY - IBERERENEFR
ERRE R IHEPIE—EHIR A
BEENKS

HikitE

LA BN EREEREATORM

fib o

118 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2013 Annual Report
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B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and gains
and negative net changes in fair value presented as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for
as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held
for trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.
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BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other expenses.
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B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)

policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until
the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the statement of profit or loss in other expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively, and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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PR ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & EHBK ()

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & EHBK (#8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the assets.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists
if one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

2.4 FEETHERUE (&)

policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or
loss.
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BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)

policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future interest
income continues to be accrued based on the reduced
carrying amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. WHEERSBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus,
in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. WHEERSBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)
policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued) SREE (&)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss KArnBlasiE ARZEFA 2 H1R
(continued) mHE B (E)
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are ﬂﬁ EEZEmEaENE E’];%E/\LHE%
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This AlZemAERS BARHER
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into ﬁ%@ o JHERRIPIEAREE ETiE’J{?TEE
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments S E T B (H IR IE TE 4 ¥H Bl R
in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated §§+5’¢H‘J 5 395 TR E AR AR T
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading B) - "M ARITET AN LE
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 7%%—;{? S5 BE  BRIEHEWRIET A
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in BRSSP TR - BEXHAEMNIER
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss RIERRNER - NERRERNE
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include =ANBEEHFRL I EZER
any interest charged on these financial liabilties. e EUREEAE -
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair 1M 2 BIFR g 5T 2RI 28 395k - M
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial NrERA K EMmBEEEAUAR
recognition and only if the criteria of IAS 39 are satisfied. EEFEAHEFHTAEHEZNE

A -
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BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred on disposal.

Cost of inventories includes the transfer from equity of gains
and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges in respect of the

purchases of raw materials.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,

which are not restricted as to use.

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 FEETHERUE (&)
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Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)
policies (continued)
Provisions BiE

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is
initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured
at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the general guidance for provisions above;
and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
guidance for revenue recognition.

Employee retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government,
the companies comprising the Group operating in Mainland
China (the “PRC group companies”) have participated in a
local municipal government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the PRC group companies are required
to contribute a certain percentage of the salaries of their
employees to the Scheme to fund their retirement benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the Scheme
is to pay the ongoing contributions under the Scheme.
Contributions under the Scheme are charged to the statement
of profit of loss as incurred.
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B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. WHEERSBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)
policies (continued)
Income tax ZiEEE)
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax and land F{S i 845 RV AR SRR SE B T8 DA R -4
appreciation tax. Income tax relating to items recognised E - BEESUWINERNIEES
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either AR P S T 1B 25 LASMNAY B 4th 2 T U
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. = NIER S B N A TER ©
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior BNEA K I Bl B EATIIE B E R B E A
periods are measured at the amount expected to be FEEREEE RN ERES N ze
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based BYUGE AR AEEEKELHT
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or ERRERBITZHEEEN - 2R
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, BEMEREHRAEEEENT
taking into consideration interpretations and practices 2R (RFFER]) RIEE ©

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all BB RFEPRAAEEREE

temporary differences at the end of the reporting period M B EEEF SR E A RmEE

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their ZENFrE SR EREEAAEEEL

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. BEM o

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary ELEFRIBE FREEDERG R

differences, except: BRERAR - B NERERIN

e when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the o  EARZ(EBAMBRINGE -
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction HEEs VT HERAEES AR
that is not a business combination and, at the time of MEARNELEHRIESEH 2T
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor ) P8 Bk e AR T A S R SR AR AR 5
taxable profit or loss; and 2K

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated o TRHB AR REECENK
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, EHBENERTEREZZEM
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary = (HER =R LR A
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the o 22 | 2 B B 2= KB 1T 0] B 45 5k
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable AIRE T SR ORF
future.
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BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is

intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instaliments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or

loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets,
grants are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary
assets and released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual

instalments.

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 FEETHERUE (&)
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BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method,
as further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all the following criteria are met:

(@  the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to the purchasers;

(b)  neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the properties is retained;

(c)  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

(e) the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The above criteria are met when construction of the
relevant properties has been completed and the Group has
obtained the project completion report issued by the relevant
government authorities, the properties have been delivered
to the purchasers, and the collectability of related receivables
is reasonably assured. Payments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current

liabilities.

Property leasing income derived from the leasing of the
Group’s properties is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.

Property management fee income derived from the provision
of property maintenance and management services is
recognised upon the rendering of the relevant services.

Hotel operating income which includes room rental, food
and beverage sales and income from the provision of other
ancillary services is recognised when the services are

rendered.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial

asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)
policies (continued)
Share-based payments DRt BEENE A
The Company operates a share option scheme for the RAvRE —EHERESE - BEY

purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using the Black-Scholes or Binomial option pricing model,
further details of which are given in note 33 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled
in employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)

policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. WHEERSBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)
policies (continued)
Borrowing costs B
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, Ieig EERAEESEREE(BIF
construction or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets BAREFEERENAHRBERSEE
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready MEE)EHNERERER B&
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the KILVEABZEEERNZB DA ° X
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing ZEERETR A {ERTE RS ER
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for BILERBERANERNME - FRIERT
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on KEERTNEEEROERREIRERN
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending HEAIRERA - BERNERERE
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the Rk - FrA EMERKATEEE
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are HARIRBIER S - KA BIEE R
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing MEABLSELENT B R EMA o

costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally and used for the M—REAES  RBEREBEERE
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate BE HENEBERSYERN 4%
ranging between 4% and 10% (2012: between 2% and 9%) Z10% (20124 : N F 2% E9%) T
has been applied to the expenditure on the individual assets. EMEREE -

Dividends B’

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as a BEEERKNTRBIRE D E AT
separate allocation within the equity section of the statement MR EF RSP ERDE
of financial position, until they have been approved by the HEEZEREBARERBRREAS L4t
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends o ZERR SR AR /I S R R B
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they REBE-

are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared. FREARE B TR SEIRE N TR ©
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately It RHARR B TR R R B R B RE
as a liability when they are proposed and declared. PEENFERBEE ©
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B ER R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTEREE (E)

policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated outside
Mainland China have Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and
United States dollars (‘US$”) as their functional currencies,
respectively. The functional currency of Mainland China
subsidiaries is the RMB. As the Group mainly operates
in Mainland China, the RMB is used as the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time
the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit
or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.
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BrEE R M

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. WREIEER & AR (8])

2.4 Summary of significant accounting 24 FESTERHE (&)

policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measure in fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference is on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of non-PRC established subsidiaries
are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.
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B ER R M

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC established subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC
established companies which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i) Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.

Classification of current and non-current properties
under development

The Group classifies properties under development according
to the construction progress and estimated commencement
date of presale. Properties under development are classified
as current assets when the estimated time to completed
construction is less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.
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B ER R M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below:

(i)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties were revalued based on the appraised

market value by independent professional valuers. Such

valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are

subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the

actual results. In making the estimate, the Group considers

information from current prices in an active market for similar

properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on

market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar

properties, the Group considers information from a variety of

sources, including:

@)

current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location or subject to
different lease or other contracts, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of the transactions
that occurred at those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

()

(ii)

Fair value of investment properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2013 was RMB2,532,000,000 (2012: RMB2,092,400,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note
15 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group’s historical experience
and the nature of the subject properties, the Group makes
estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion of
properties under development, and the costs to be incurred in
selling the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in
net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this
may result in a provision for properties under development and
completed properties held for sale. Such provision requires
the use of judgements and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, the carrying value and
provision for properties in the period in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.
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B ER R M

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

PRC corporate income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland China. As
a result of the fact that certain matters relating to the income
taxes have not been confirmed by the local tax bureau,
objective estimate and judgement based on currently enacted
tax laws, regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision of income taxes to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will have an
impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the period in
which the differences realise.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

LAT in the PRC is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sale of properties less deductible expenditures
including land costs, borrowing costs and other property
development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property
development business in Mainland China are subject to
LAT. However, the implementation of these taxes varies
amongst various cities in Mainland China and the Group
has not finalised its LAT returns with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of land appreciation and its related taxes. The
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities
based on management’s best estimates. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
statement of profit or loss and the provision for LAT in the
period in which such determination is made.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

v)

(vi)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating
to recognised deductible temporary differences and tax
losses at 31 December 2013 was RMB142,785,000
(2012: RMB128,963,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2013 was RMB51,166,080 (2012:
RMB38,574,000). Further details are contained in note 21 to
the financial statements.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based
on assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. The identification of impairment of trade and other
receivables requires management’s judgement and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in the future is
different from the original estimates, such differences will have
an impact on the carrying value of the receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/write-back of doubtful debt in the period in
which such estimate is changed.

3. EXETHIERR st (#8)

CRE:SRNESEE )

(v)

(vi)

EEHHEE

PR AR E s = 5 R AR B A T IE &
B A R R 2R B8 2 15 FE AR B & T 4K
SHAENEREEREENERT
AERBELERIBAE - EEA T
REVRLERIEEEN RN - BEE
BIRBEREMREE T - RERE
758 & 1l 7K 3 22 [R) >R 2R B¢ 18 5 &l 4E H
E K # E - R2013F12A31 8 -
AT AAENTREZER
EHEMREEHIBEEENREBERA
R #142,785,0007T (20124 : AR
#128,963,0007T ) ° 722013412 A
BSTEHNABAREBESEAAR
# 51,166,080 7T (20124 : A K #&
38,574,0007T) ° # — B HR
TEIRERMITE21 ©

P B 5 Rk B H Ath FE KUK IR BYRE

JE US55 i SR % Lt W SR TR RR (B 2R
BENH B E 5 8RR R E A B YGR
AR AW E R FHEEE - BIRE S
AR N Eo At FE MR FORR (B 0 BRI E
IR {F A R A 5 o BB R
RROBEHEEFRE [ TR  RIERE
ERBF B EE HRE R EAK
AREER AR, REEEE
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vii)

Useful lives and impairment of property and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its items
of property and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of items of
property and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitors’ actions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimates, or it will write off or write down technically obsolete
assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying value of an item of property and equipment
is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in the relevant part of this section. The recoverable
amount of an item of property and equipment is calculated as
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use, the
calculation of which involves the use of estimates.

3. EXEeTHIERR st (#8)

RN SE )

(vi) EERRENERFHRRE

AEENEEEEEHREEMEBN
EETAERFRRERTEER - &
EETRBBEUEE RIENEE R
REOERAEAF AN BELRN
BEE - IR RE A B AT S ELE K
HRESEITRMA EANE - EAlEA
FHORERROMGFT - B RIL 0
HEER N EFEIIEREERN
RINREEE -

ERLEEMHRBENEEMBTEER
REBOREEAEEER@E - SR
BRSPS B RRERE MR
EORHELSLTARE - BERRE
WA KRS - REAABEBHEE
KAREREBEEMRENRSEE -
mEstEAER A
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on income derived from business and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(@  the property development segment develops and sells
properties in Mainland China;

(b)  the property rental segment leases investment properties in
Mainland China;

(c)  the hotel operations segment owns and operates a hotel; and

(d) the others segment comprises, principally, the Group’s
property management services business, which provides
management and security services to residential and
commercial properties.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which
is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax from continuing
operations. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax from continuing
operations except that interest income, finance costs, dividend
income, fair value gain/(losses) from the Group’s financial
instruments as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, an amount due to the ultimate holding company, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

4.

EESBEA

F AEERBEBAEERAR
- A PO E R RS B

HEEMS
SR EN
T

(@) WERBEDE  EHEAMFEERE
ERZE

b) YMEREHT  EREAHASIE
Y

€ BEEESI BERLEBIE &

d EHoI TEEEAEENMES
ARG %S - AEEREBY RS
BB R RLIRTE o

ERESEBESAKENHMEEAELA
MERD ERRBRFEHDRTE - 2 BRI
BARESIFE,(BE) BNARERE
EBHCRABRRBAFE, (BB HE) T
PARHE © 158 & XI5 RS B BR T AT A

B (BR) BASERBELEEBOBRE
AIAE—EFE - HERBMA - MR -

REWA - AEESRT AN AR EEK
%,/ (BR) AR ARERE M O EEBY T
ABHER -

DHEETEBREECHREERARE - X
REFEE  REMASEFEY UAREE
AAERHEH AR RERENESIRERE
fRDRERERREEEE - REEZE
BERMASEREER -

DERENBE BRITREMER - BN
RRERARIFA - BN ARELEH AR
BREMADRENERREXEE  RE
EREABERESEEERE
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4,

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

EESBEAE)

Property  Property Hotel
development rental operations Others Total
MERY YERE EEEE Hith “ast
Year ended HZ 20135 RMB’000 RMB’0000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
31 December 2013 12A31 BLLEE ARETT AR¥Tn ARETR AR®Trn AR¥TxR
Segment revenue: AN
Sales to external customers HINPRPHEE 2,276,332 79,125 52,690 29,458 2,437,605
Intersegment sales D E - 24,900 - 52,334 77,234
2,276,332 104,025 52,690 81,792 2,514,839
Reconciliation: AT -
Elimination of intersegment sales AEbEHELH (77,234)
Revenue from continuing operations S HE 7 UN 2,437,605
Segment results DEEE 610,637 337,846 4,566 (64,380) 888,669
Reconciliation: Fi-i
Interest income FIBMA 7,993
Equity-settled share option expense DA B R B AR ER (62,308)
Fair value losses, net: AnBEEE FE:
Equity investments at fair value RAREELAZEH
through profit or loss ANE BERENER
®RE 355
Finance costs HBER (10,535)
Profit before tax BRAEAIH 824,174
Segment assets IBEE 12,517,936 2,538,865 426,710 1,839,388 17,322,899
Reconciliation: A -
Elimination of intersegment receivables 2 EPFE R I 4 (2,029,096)
Corporate and other unallocated assets CEREMRIEEE 1,849,845
Total assets BEE 17,143,648
Segment liabilities AR 6,066,244 26,224 9,112 89,119 6,190,699
Reconciliation: e
Elimination of intersegment payables 2 EPE IR 8 (2,029,096)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilties CEREMRIEEE 6,792,443
Total liabilities BafE 10,954,046
Other segment information: Hitrp BER
Share of profits and losses: MR
Joint ventures BEME 2,409 - - - 2,409
Depreciation e 14,393 3,119 1,436 1,236 20,184
Investments in joint ventures REELENETE 412,448 - - - 412,448
Capital expenditure BARRHY 3,729 5,028 1,905 6,248 16,910
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT 4. BEEDEWEH(E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Property Property Hotel
development rental  operations Others Total
MERE  WERE  BEEE Hit 4t
Year ended HZE 20124 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
31 December 2012 1231 BILFE ARBTE ARBTT ARETT ARETE ARBTRL
Segment revenue: AN
Sales to external customers HHEPHE 2,248,865 69,934 55,015 21,811 2,395,625
Intersegment sales AEEEE - 23,700 - 68,986 92,686
2,248,865 93,634 55,015 90,797 2,488,311
Reconciliation: AT -
Elimination of intersegment sales D ESR S i (92,686)
Revenue N 2,395,625
Segment results AEE 786,507 65,704 2,112)  (122,481) 727,618
Reconciliation: ST -
Interest income FIEUA 2,867
Equity-settled share option expense DA B R B AR B (29,712)
Fair value losses, net: AR EEER  FE:
Equity investments at fair value NAREETEAEE
through profit or loss SAEBBRRNERRE (282)
Finance costs BBER (3,660)
Profit before tax BRAEAI A 696,831
Segment assets AHEE 11,211,350 2,317,313 351,110 1,534,401 15,414,174
Reconciliation: T -
Elimination of intersegment receivables D ED IR (1,859,178)
Corporate and other unallocated assets CEREMADEEE 1,330,607
Total assets BEE 14,885,603
Segment liabilities FHEE 5,249,506 123,195 11,250 340,375 5,724,326
Reconciliation: e -
Elimination of intersegment payables 2 ERFEE IR 4 (1,859,178)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities CEREMADEARE 5,319,309
Total liabilties BEE 9,184,457
Other segment information: HitvpBER
Depreciation e 7,110 3,079 10,561 868 21,618
Share of profits and losses: HiEER
Joint ventures RERE 1,007 = = = 1,007
Investments in joint ventures REERENKRE 361,622 - - - 361,622
Capital expenditure BARY 738 44 310 576 1,668
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in
Mainland China and all of the non-current assets of the Group are
located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents income
from the sale of properties, property leasing income, property
management fee income and hotel operating income during the
year, net of business tax and other sales related taxes and discounts
allowed.

4.

EESBEA )

HEE R

AEENZMBRANRERPEABES - &
AEEZEIERBEETCNFTBEAM o

BAREREFNESR

WEEREE —REREREREH TR
PR HERBBAEEEE2013F &
2012612 831 H IEFEWAR10%3 A L ©

WA - Efblly A B i

WA (TRAAEBERNEXE) RERHEME
WA~ MEREWA - MEEEBRATIE

LB (FNERE KT R H A 35 E AR
KEHEFIEL)
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (CONTINUED)

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

5.

A« Eftly A B i &

(#8%)

WA - Bt AR RSN T -

2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBT T
Revenue WA
Sale of properties HEWE 2,416,043 2,389,929
Property leasing income MERES A 83,678 73,032
Property management fee income MEEEBEWRA 31,895 24,271
Hotel operating income HIE S ERMA 55,815 58,279
Less: Business tax and surcharges Ve Y S Pk (149,826) (149,886)
2,437,605 2,395,625
Other income HAb A
Subsidy income* T N 6,202 9,007
Bank interest income ERITHI B U A 7,993 2,867
Others HhIE 5,643 4,739
19,838 16,613
Gains &
Foreign exchange gain SNEE H AR A 11,544 1,206
Gain on disposal of L EREMERE
investment properties 51 3,003
11,595 4,208
31,433 20,821
. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants. * B AR BN R TR R S AR R = 1 o
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. RRMEIFIE
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at REEBBERLEEKBEBRAANER
after charging/(crediting): R/ (GEA) THIEIE -
2013 2012
2013 % 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARETR ARETT
Cost of properties sold BHEMEKA 1,477,646 1,438,588
Depreciation e 14 20,184 21,618
Minimum lease payments BELCEHED
under operating leases: (RS IE
— Office premises o /NS (5] 6,592 5,967
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN £ 5,416 2,532
Staff costs including directors’ and BTN (BREESREE
chief executive’s remuneration: THRAEME) :
— Salaries and other staff costs —TERHEEETIHRA 108,436 84,922
— Equity-settled share option expense —REAEEEREE R 33 24,408 29,712
— Pension scheme contributions —iRIREFTEIE R 11,860 7,953
Equity-settled share option expense HiIE R B IR IEREE
to other non-employees B 33 37,900 -
Foreign exchange differences, net FERZERE  FE 5 (11,544) (1,205)
Direct operating expenses EELERY (B ERE
(including repairs and maintenance eI EYE
arising on rental-earning EEMBERISE)
investment properties) 5,766 4,847
Gain on disposal of investment L EREMERE
properties (51) (3,0083)
Fair value (gain)/loss, net: AR EE ), EiE - T
Fair value gain upon transfer to EREREYEN
investment properties A EERE 15 (256,292) =
Changes in fair value of REMEAREBE
investment properties Hy & 15 (60,793) (60,335)
Equity investments at fair value BAnBEGTEEEEH
through profit or loss STAE SRR E
— held for trading —FHEEE (355) 282
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7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of the Group’s finance costs from continuing operations

is as follows:

7. BWEEH

AEERFBERERBOPBEERAMAOT

2013 2012
20135 2012 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERF S
299,823 180,601
Interest on other borrowings E &R F S 183,795 181,794
Total interest expense A BB 483,618 362,395
Less: Interest capitalised in properties W BAERERYENF S
under development (473,083) (358,735)
10,535 3,660
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EFERIETHARMS

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

RIE ETRRI BB ARG 161 (FKE
BE  FRAEZREBTBAEMET :

2013 2012

20135 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETIT

Fees e 575 450
Other emoluments: E A -

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ TEALROERL 4,622 4,710

Pension scheme contributions BB ETBIHR 32 34

Equity-settled share option expense i E S RERR S A 2,838 3,424

7,492 8,168

8,067 8,618
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gHm= =
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERFEMHARME
==
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION (#8)
(CONTINUED)
In 2009 and 2011, certain directors were granted share options, R 2009 F K 2011 FF » AT EE SRS
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option RAEBEMIBE AR BT 2 ERE
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in f#E - BE —FFEEHNT SRR =T
note 33 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options, 3B ZEBRENAABEEZEEHRN
which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over BREAANER  WARHBEESE - Mzt A
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the AEEMEHRERNCEBRIEE L EEMNH
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is B EA ©
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FRNENBYLIEATEZTNE S
the year were as follows: R
Equity-settled
share option
Fees expense Total
DREEER
Hwe BRERX et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETT ARETR
2013 2013 £
Independent non-executive directors BV I TEE
Mr. Pei Ker Wei BRExRE 200 134 334
Mr. Zhang Huagiao sRACAE S 200 - 200
Mr. Loke Yu B RS A 175 134 309
Total independent BN IERITES
non-executive directors 5T 575 268 843
2012 20124
Independent non-executive directors & IE#H7TEF
Mr. Pei Ker Wei BrEkE 200 154 354
Mr. Wang Shuguang FRESSE 100 154 254
Mr. Loke Yu sy Vvt 150 154 304
Total independent B IEHITES
non-executive directors 5T 450 462 912

mrEEARAT —T——##3 157



Notes to Financial Statements

PR ER R M

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

8. EBEREETHRARMNS

iR
(CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors and the chief (b) BITEERETEITHRAE
executive
Pension Equity-settled
Salaries and scheme share option
Fees  allowances Bonuses contributions expense Total
BHhe HURELEN
we HeREW A TEfY  BRERX ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR  AR%Tr ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR
2013 2013
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Shi Zhongan AP REE - 1,801 470 1 1,052 3,334
Mr. Zhang Jiangang REHEE - 529 156 11 491 1,187
Mr. Lou Yifei B-REE - 607 156 5 491 1,259
Ms. Shen Tiaojuan EL L - 703 200 5 536 1,444
- 3,640 982 32 2,570 1,224
Chief executive TETHAE
Mr. Shi Zhongan AP REE 1,801 470 1 1,052 3,334
2012 20126
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Shi Zhongan AP REE - 1,800 450 11 1212 3473
Mr. Zhang Jiangang REHEE - 624 156 11 566 1,357
Mr. Lou Yifei B-REE - 624 156 3 566 1,349
Ms. Shen Tiaojuan EL L - 720 180 9 618 1527
- 3,768 942 34 2,962 7,706
Chief executive TETHAE
Mr. Shi Zhongan AP REE - 1,800 450 11 1212 3473

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2012: Nil).

FRBEE EWES R B RELAH
B EY 2Bk (2012 4F « 4E) o
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In 2009 and 2011, share options were granted to the non-director,
highest paid employee in respect of his services to the Group, further
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 33 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
non-director, highest paid employee’s remuneration disclosures.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AE&BEFAL
The five highest paid employees during the year included three FARGEEREFALTARBIE=2 (20124 :
(2012: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out ME)EE ENSHFBEEHR EXHE
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two 8 FNHATMAZ (20124 : —R)IFEEH
(2012: one) non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as SHEATHENSEEBWT ¢
follows:
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances T o B4 MoERL 2,457 951
Equity-settled share option expense frrest E B EE A 398 412
Pension scheme contributions RIREEEIHR - 15
2,855 1,378
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose FHMN AT EFINIFEEREHIEE A
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: BT :
Number of employees
EEAZ
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 F
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR® 1,000,001 7TE AR% 1,500,000 7T 1 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR® 1,500,001 72 AR¥ 2,000,000 7T 1 -
2 1

2009 F K 2011 4F + —AIIEEBH=H
EEMERBRAEEMERERE  5H
LS HBEHR RN A HEN -
ZEEREN A BERKREBHENERR
HERIWHRE AEEE - Mt ARNFEE T
HENCREDPET LIFESESHOE
BRI R EA

REFEERRAT]
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10. INCOME TAX 10. FRi5#

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year
(2012: Nil).

The provision for the PRC income tax has been provided at the
applicable income tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) on the assessable
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT
liabilities, the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by
the tax authorities.

el 37 S B A A 0 S PO B 2 A R
BRI - S (e B S RIS BUAHE (2012
%)

FEIFTEH E S A S EER EAME A A8
JEFR T A58 25% (2012 48 : 25% ) K i A P
SRR R VR4 o

Bl IR ER R R IR E RS E Y
TS SR IE0R F] AR B s (B LA ~ 15
ERAREMYEFAERS) BN 0%E
BO%EEER KU - REBERETEA
MRBEERER - A5t (EH REBIBAE
ATHIEETER - AR BERGEE L
EEHEEZA - LHIEET A ERRTR
BRBEER S E -

2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Current — PRC corporate income BVEAR IB—EF R
tax for the year EEFTEH 121,171 197,554
Current — PRC LAT BN EAR IB—F A
for the year T HBIE(ER 141,052 131,565
Deferred (note 21) EIERIE (FiEE21) 103,937 (22,341)
Total tax charge for the year FRFIBLETE 366,160 306,778
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and

10. Fr S #R (#8)

BREBEARBREAZHHE R R RERERE
BB 95A E Bt 2R 5T 5 R A AR B A B TR B 52

the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the HEAREERE MR EAFIER S SR T ¢

effective tax rate is as follows:

2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Profit before tax BRI 824,174 696,831
Tax at the statutory 125% (2012 4F : 25%)
tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) AT EGTENTIE 206,044 174,208
Effect of withholding tax at 10% AR B A B FES A F] AT 4
on the distributable profits of o3I 5 M AR 10% TRFNHR
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries G0} 9,383 10,369
Expenses not deductible for tax b3 33,274 14,789
Tax losses not recognised FRARERHEEE 11,670 8,738
Provision for LAT T ET R 141,052 131,565
Tax effect on LAT T IR ER RS2 (35,263) (32,891)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate ~ ANEB BRI RMFHIBMAL 366,160 306,778
Tax payable in the consolidated statement A& 6f BA TS AR T 2% O FE S 5
of financial position represents: IHHE
PRC corporate income tax R b SEFTAS A 391,188 303,973
PRC LAT AP R E A 391,859 347,826
783,047 651,799
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11.

12

13.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
year ended 31 December 2013 includes a loss of RMB82,396,000
(2012: a loss of RMB45,450,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 34(d)).

11.

BATER AEEFIH

HZ2013F 12 A1 HILFEFARHEEA
FEME& ORI E B EE A K%82,396,0007T
(20124 : BE A REE 45,450,000 7T) B R
NA BN B TS R R BRI (P 5E 84(d)) ©

DIVIDENDS 12. B8
2013 2012
2013 % 20126
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Proposed final - RMB1.8 cents (2012: Nil) ZZAHA% 8 — ST @ik
per ordinary share AR#1.85 (20124 : ) 42,617 =
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval FEEZAHREEAREERFBEFAS L
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general BEARRRIRRALIE o

meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic eamnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of RMB420,539,000 (2012: RMB336,228,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 2,367,635,400 (2012:
2,375,827,982) in issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the
rights issued during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

13.

AFEEREERSAA
hEiERT

BRERBNZRIET A AL BRRER
BAEEFEAFEARE420,539,0007T
(20124 : AR #336,228,0007T) * K &
FRAEETETBRKROMETFHH
2,367,635,400 f& (2012 4F : 2,375,827,982
BOFTE - B FHRRARMERRHAREST o

E%%%%ﬂ@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ—
FAAEBGFEFBGE - StEMAC SR
hM%?ﬁ%%ﬁif% TR BREE
VERET EBIRERE A R E AR NNE 52
PR B E  mR AR E TR SR e
TIBARE - RRERERERET -

=R A
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B ER R M

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(CONTINUED)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

STEESRERNREERNTHER

on:
2013 2012
2013 % 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Earnings &7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity AR EBRARERE A
holders of the parent, used in the FEEFIE - ARETE
basic earnings per share calculation GRREARZA 420,539 336,228
Shares &5
Weighted average number of ordinary ARG ESRERRZT 2
shares in issue during the year used in REEEFHTEBR
the basic earnings per share calculation IIREF9 8 2,367,635,400 2,375,827,982
Effect of dilution — weighted average e E — TR
number of ordinary shares: gL
Share options AP 3,500,129 =

2,371,135,529 2,375,827,982
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BrEE R M

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. EE R
Group REE
Office Motor
Properties Machinery  equipment vehicles Total
ES W ROZRGE e it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥Tn AR¥Tr AR¥TR AR®T:R
31 December 2013 201312831 H
At 31 December 2012 and 201212 A31B R
at 1 January 2013: 20131 R1H :
Cost 3% NEl 240,771 1,085 29,998 38,305 310,159
Accumulated depreciation ZiTE (54,132) (921) (23,452) (25,069)  (103,574)
Net carrying amount FEFE 186,639 164 6,546 13,236 206,585
At 1 January 2013, net of 2013%F1 A1 8
accumulated depreciation MR 25HE 186,639 164 6,546 13,236 206,585
Additions 20 6,748 236 4,638 5,288 16,910
Disposals HeE - - (276) (902) (1,178)
Depreciation provided FRME
during the year (12,504) (26) (3,168) (4,486) (20,184)
At 31 December 2013, net of 201312 A318H -
accumulated depreciation Mk 25 E 180,883 374 7,740 13,136 202,133
At 31 December 2013: 201312 A31H :
Cost A 247,519 1,321 32,613 42,672 324,125
Accumulated depreciation e (66,636) (947) (24,873) (29,536)  (121,992)
Net carrying amount RESE 180,883 374 7,740 13,136 202,133

164 Zhong An Real Estate Limited

2013 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR R aE
14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. GER & 0WE (18)
(CONTINUED)
Group (continued) REE (E)
Office Motor
Properties Machinery  equipment vehicles Total
S WH  PRAERE RE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2012 2013 12H 318 :
At 31 December 2011 and 2011 F12A31B R
at 1 January 2012: 2012118 :
Cost AR 240,771 1,008 28,599 38,582 308,960
Accumulated depreciation 25E (42,260) (546) (19,360) (20,241) (82,407)
Net carrying amount REFE 198,511 462 9,239 18,341 226,553
At 1 January 2012, net of 2012F1A18
accumulated depreciation MR RETE 198,511 462 9,239 18,341 226,553
Additions =m - 77 1,491 100 1,668
Disposals HE - - (18) - (18)
Depreciation provided FRME
during the year (11,872 (375) (4,166) (5,205) (21,618)
At 31 December 2012, net of 201212318
accumulated depreciation MR E5HTE 186,639 164 6,546 13,236 206,585
At 31 December 2012: 201212318 :
Cost AE 240,771 1,085 29,998 38,305 310,159
Accumulated depreciation 25E (54,132 (921) (28,452) (25,069) (108,574)
Net carrying amount REFE 186,639 164 6,546 13,236 206,585
BREEARAT —ZT—=f4% 165
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s
14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. BE R sk (48)
(CONTINUED)
Company RAF]
Office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
N
=B RE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T

31 December 2013 2013412 H31H
At 31 December 2012 and 201212 A31 H X

at 1 January 2013: 201341 A18 :

Cost BXANE 473 406 879

Accumulated depreciation REHTE (313) (363) (676)

Net carrying amount BREVFE 160 43 203
At 1 January 2013, net of 20131 H18 -

accumulated depreciation kR EFHiTE 160 43 203
Additions 0 - 2,173 2,173
Disposals HE (14) (13) (27)
Depreciation provided FRITE

during the year (53) (108) (161)
At 31 December 2013, net of 20183412 A31H -

accumulated depreciation MR EFHITE 93 2,095 2,188
At 31 December 2013: 2018412 A31 8 :

Cost BXANE 459 2,566 3,025

Accumulated depreciation ZEEHTE (366) (471) (837)

Net carrying amount BREFE 93 2,095 2,188
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B ISR R aE
14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 14. GER & 0WE (18)
(CONTINUED)
Company (continued) RATF (&)
Office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
HRE
B AE “aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETF T ARBT T
31 December 2012 20126 12HA31H
At 31 December 2011 and 2011% 12 A31 B X
at 1 January 2012: 20121 H1H
Cost A 482 442 924
Accumulated depreciation BEHTE (267) (287) (554)
Net carrying amount IRENFE 215 155 370
At 1 January 2012, net of 20121 H18 -
accumulated depreciation kR 2EHITE 215 155 370
Additions #n ©) (36) (45)
Depreciation provided FAFE
during the year (46) (76) (122)
At 31 December 2012, net of 2012412 431 H -
accumulated depreciation MR REHTE 160 43 203
At 31 December 2012: 2012F 12 4318 :
Cost BXANE 473 406 879
Accumulated depreciation BEHTE (313) (363) 676)
Net carrying amount BREFE 160 43 203

At 31 December 2013, certain items of the Group’s property
and equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB31,472,000 (2012: RMB168,025,000) were pledged to secure
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 31(iii).

R2013F 12 A31H  AEBEEBETYWEK
AEIR B REFEAARKE31,472,0007T
(20124 : AR¥.168,025,0007T) * 20ff&E
31(iii) TR & - BIEAR TASEGF BRTT
TR R E At fE RO AR
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BrEE R M

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. IEM=E

2013 2012

2013 % 20124

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Htat ARET T ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January 1 A1 BEREE 2,092,400 2,068,818
Transfers from completed properties  ## | £ /EH#E 2 7&K

held for sale (note 16) E (FiE16) 126,808 -

Disposal HE (4,293) (36,753)

Fair value gain upon transfer EEEH AR EBENE 256,292 -

Changes in fair value of BEMEARBEE

investment properties 60,793 60,335

2,532,000 2,092,400

Current assets mENE B @) 31,000 35,100

Non-current assets FEMBEE 2,501,000 2,057,300

Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A 31 HERMEE 2,532,000 2,092,400

(a)  All investment properties of the Group were revalued at the @ AEBEEIREVENFRABILE

end of the year by an independent professionally qualified
valuer, CB Richard Ellis Limited, at fair value. CB Richard
Ellis Limited is an industry specialist in investment property
valuation. The fair value represents the amount at which the
assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable and
willing buyer and a seller in an arm’s length transaction at the
date of valuation, in accordance with International Valuation
Standards.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

(e BERMEMEBREBEBRAD
AIRAREEER - HHRRIELER
RANBFRRENE[BENTESR
R AABEREENRABERE
FEBFRNAEBRREERGER
HELNFRGRBEERTH

N

\:

TREJIMABEERFREDENR
REELEE  AANGERIE
BB MERMURBEAA(EBEFE
BWARERBREZE D AR EER
ENAREBERB(F—EE=/) °
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comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB2.1/sgm/day for
office portion and RMB2.9/sgm/day for
retail portion.
ERAEEMSLE R ALLTALE
NERATIERS ~ MEAN/ D RRiEE A
FHEAZ  MpEMESATTLR
BRARK21 TR RE D) REFH
KERARKE 2,970 (FHHH) -

B R R M RE
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. I BEYMXR (18)
(CONTINUED)
Investment
properties held by
the Group
in the combined Significant Relationship of
statements of Fair value  Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable
financial positions hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
SO BN R AREEE TAEZRAE
FEBABFERENE & HERNREERABE EATTERGARE HAAEEBR
Property 1 - Level 3 Direct comparison Term yield, taking into account of yield The higher the term
Property in Hangzhou & =4 approach and Income generated from comparable properties  yield, the lower the fair
(Guomao Building) approach (term and and adjustment to reflect the certainty value.
1 5 — N reversion approach) of term income secured and to be
(HEXNE) received, of 5% for office portion and
BEEEBUVERBAE (F 6% for retail portion.
HESX) G N RIS 5 A M as B SRR P LGRS N
#%&%WﬂﬁﬂWAmﬁﬁﬁmﬁ S EEBIE -
The key inputs are: RS R A 5% KT
(1) Term yield; a‘BT’ﬁ 6% °
(2) Reversionary yield;
(8) Market unit rent; Reversionary yield, taking into account The higher the
(4) Price per square annual unit market rental income and reversionary yield, the
metre unit market value of the comparable lower the fair value.
TEZYA properties, of 5.5% for office portion
(1) TEHUREE and 6.5% for retail portion.
@ BEEKEE B A B R FEREEERARRE EHElEEYS - A
Q) TRBMMAE MERNBATIE - PFAEHEE R REEYE -
@) BFFHARER R 55.5% RAEAEH 6.5%
Market unit rent, using direct market The higher the market

unit rent, the higher
the fair value.

SRS HE -
BEMS -

miHE
D

REFEERRAT

= FFETR

169



Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. I EW=E (])

(CONTINUED)

Investment
properties held by
the Group

in the combined
statements of
financial positions

BHBBRRRF

FEBRBFERENE &

Property 2 -
Property in Shanghai
(La Vie)

25 ME— LiEYE
(RERE)

Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
hierarchy  and key input(s)
DMRBES

RERTREEZHABE

Level 3
FE=M

Direct comparison
approach and Income
approach (term and
reversion approach)
BEEBUERIBAE (R
HERE)

The key inputs are:

(1) Term yield;
Reversionary yield;
Market unit rent;

=28

Price per square
metre
IELUA:

) FAERRER
) Sk
) TSRS
) BTFHARER

Significant
unobservable
input(s)

BEATUBEGAZE

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property etc., of RMB9,900/sgm for
office portion and RMB15,400/sgm for
the base level of retail portion.
ERAEEMSL VAT A KA E B
HRE  DERRSEMERNER
BERAREBRATTEARARE 9,900
TTHAED ) R AR 15,4007 (RE
KEshEs) -

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be
received, of 6%.

RaT AR SR E A U as B SR P
PR K A UCER AR BRI O BETE ML £ 5
B WERERE% e

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 6.5%.

B ARG FEHRSBA KR
BWENELTE  ERREER
6.5% °

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
RARZGARE
HAABEEBR

The higher the price,
the higher the fair
value.

BRRHE -
B

5>
53
|
[

The higher the term
yield, the lower the fair
value.

EHREEES A
REEBE -

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

Bk ERE - A
f EEBE -
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comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB7.5/sgm/day.
FREEM BB ALLTALE
NERETIER - MER/NRRIBEHA
FEAR  mBEMHEATTAK
FBAARETS5T

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property etc., of RMB43,400/sgm.
ERAEEMSLEAT A R B S
FRETIRE - MERESEMERNR

= BYAABERABTEARARE
43,4007T ©

B R R M RE
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. I BEYMXR (18)

(CONTINUED)
Investment
properties held by
the Group
in the combined Significant Relationship of
statements of Fair value  Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable
financial positions hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
SO BARR R DREES TABRRARE
FEEFEERENE & HERMREERAHE BEXTUBRAARE HRAAEERF

Market unit rent, using direct market The higher the market

unit rent, the higher
the fair value.

SEMASHES -
REEES

ik
N

The higher the price,
the higher the fair
value.

BRR#E  ArEE
B

REFEERRAT
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BrEE R M

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

Investment

properties held by

the Group

in the combined

statements of Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
financial positions hierarchy  and key input(s)

SO BARR R DREES

FEEEERENE & RERTREERARE
Property 3 - Level 3 Direct comparison
Property in Hangzhou =4 approach and Income

(Integrated Service
Center)
CRia/E S IALYES
(A RBHL)

approach (term and
reversion approach)
HELEERBAL(H
HERE)

The key inputs are:
Term yield;
Reversionary yield;
Market unit rent;

EREECEE

Price per square
metre
Z2HR
)E%WAT

) BEREE

) TIHEMES
) BEHKEH

15. WM (#])

Significant
unobservable
input(s)

BEATUBEGAZE

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be
received, of 6%.

AEET N [RVAR D 3 2 A s T SR P
PR K UCER AR BRI O BETE M £ 5
B HEWEER6%

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 6.5%.

TSI ERES KA KR
BYENELTE  ERREER
6.5% °

Market unit rent, using direct market
comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB2.6/sqm/day.
FREEM SR AT ALE

MEGETIER  MER/N RIS HAD
FEERAZ  maBEUHESRAETAK
BRARK26TT

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
RARZGARE
HAREEBE

The higher the term
yield, the lower the fair
value.

EHREEES A
REEBE -

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

(LGRS VN
REEBE -

The higher the market
unit rent, the higher
the fair value.

BEMHASHES -
REEES -

m
N
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ASRE N E
(lERESHATD)

BEERLEERIAL (A

HER%)

The key inputs are:
(1) Term yield;

)

Reversionary yield;

W

@)

(8) Market unit rent;
(4) Price per square
metre
Z2HE
ﬁ%% R
EHWERE
minEMHEE

BT AKER

§@®:

received, of 5%.

AEET N [RIAR Y 52 2E A e as T SR P
PR A YR AR ERUL A B BETE 1 D 8
B KGR A% o

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 5.5%.

T AB IS FEES WA KRR
BEWENELTE EHERRER
5.5% °

B R R M RE
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. I BEYMXR (18)
(CONTINUED)
Investment
properties held by
the Group
in the combined Significant Relationship of
statements of Fair value  Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable
financial positions hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
SO BEMRRRH DMRABES TABRRARE
FTEERBFERENE & HERMREERAHE BEXTUBRAARE HRAAEERF
Price per square metre, using market The higher the price,
direct comparables and taking into the higher the fair
account of location and other individual ~ value.
factors such as road frontage, size of BEMS  AREE
property etc., of RMB13,500/sgm. =)
FEREEMSLEAT G R EHE
FRETIRIE  MEARE H M {ERIE
% BYHRABBABTARARE
13,5007 °
Property 4 — Level 3 Direct comparison Term yield, taking into account of yield The higher the term
Property in Hangzhou — &=# approach and Income generated from comparable properties  yield, the lower the fair
(Office portion of approach (term and and adjustment to reflect the certainty value.
Highlong Plaza) reversion approach) of term income secured and to be

MBI EERS - A
/Lfﬁg\@fpﬁ °

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

BUEHE - 2

/Lfﬁg\@fpﬁ °

REFEERRAT

= FFETR
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BrEE R M

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

Investment

properties held by

the Group

in the combined

statements of Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
financial positions hierarchy  and key input(s)

SO BARR R DREES

FEEEERENE & RERTREERARE

15. WM (#])

Significant
unobservable
input(s)

BEATUBEGAZE

Market unit rent, using direct market
comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB1.8/sgm/day.
FREEMSLE AL ALE
NEGETIER  MER/NR RIS H A
FHERAZ  MpBENHESRETHK
BRAR®KA1.8TT

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property etc., of RMB11,100/sgm.
ERAEEMSLEAT R B
FRETRE - MERBEZEMERNE
= BYRABERABTEARARE
11,100 7T °

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
RARZGARE
HAABEEBR

The higher the market
unit rent, the higher
the fair value.

The higher the price,
the higher the fair
value.

BRRHD -
B

B>
53
|
[
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B R R EE
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. I (1])

(CONTINUED)
Investment
properties held by
the Group
in the combined Significant Relationship of
statements of Fair value  Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable
financial positions hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
SO BARR R DREES FUABRZGARE
FEEFEERENE & RERNTREIFEGABE EATTEEGARE HAABEEBR
Property 5 - Level 3 Direct comparison Term yield, taking into account of yield The higher the term
Property in Hangzhou £ =4 approach and Income generated from comparable properties  vield, the lower the fair
(Retail portion of approach (term and and adjustment to reflect the certainty value.
Highlong Plaza) reversion approach) of term income secured and to be
Nt E Sk IES HEIEERBAL(ME  received, of 5.5%.
(ERESEHTS) HERE) AEET N [RVAR YD 3 2 A s T SR P ME N RERS - A

The key inputs are:
(1) Term yield;

N

Reversionary yield;

wW

@
(8) Market unit rent;
(4) Price per square
metre
E2HR
fﬁﬁﬂw/\?
EHEREE
THEMHE ;

BFIKER

TN =

ESpCOpe

PR R S AR EAUR A B0 RETE 1 A 5B
2 FHERA5.5% °

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 6%.

EETA B mISZEREBARRE
WMENELTE  BEREREER6% °

Market unit rent, using direct market
comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB3.5/sgm/day.
EREEM BB ALETALE
NEGETIER - MER/NRRIEEHA
FHERAZ  mpBENHESRETHK
BRARKISTT

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property etc., of RMB20,900/sgm.
EAEEMSL VAT A R E B
BB DERRSHMERNER
EEGFARERREFTHRARE
20,9007T °

REEBE -

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

ERKEEES A
REEBE -

The higher the market
unit rent, the higher
the fair value.

j2 28

mizEM RSN
DREELES -

The higher the price,
the higher the fair
value.

BRR#E  ArEE

[
bl

REFEERRAT

= FFETR
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BrEE R M

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

Investment

properties held by

the Group

in the combined

statements of Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
financial positions hierarchy  and key input(s)

SO BARR R DREES

FEEEERENE & RERTREERARE
Property 6 — Level 3 Direct comparison
Property in Hangzhou £ =4 approach and Income

(Serviced apartment
portion of Highlong
Plaza)

A /E S WALES
(ERESRBALE)

approach (term and
reversion approach)
HELEERBAL(H
HERE)

The key inputs are:
Term yield;
Reversionary yield;
Market unit rent;

EREECEE

Price per square
metre
FTELHA

) MHERER

) BEREE

) THREAES
) BFHARER

15. WM (#])

Significant
unobservable
input(s)

BEATUBEGAZE

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be
received, of 5%.

ST N [RVAR ) 3 A s T SR P
PR K UCER AR BRI O BETE M £ 5
B HEREERE% ©

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 5.5%.
TSI ERES KA KRR
BYENELTE  ERREER
5.5% °

Market unit rent, using direct market
comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB1.8/sgm/day.
ERAEEMSLER AU ALE
MERETIERE  MER/ R RIS H A
FERAZ  maEUHASRETIK
BRARK18TT

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
RARZGARE
HAABEEBR

The higher the term
yield, the lower the fair
value.

EHREEES A
REEBE -

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

ERKETES A
REEBE -

The higher the market
unit rent, the higher
the fair value.
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Property 7 -

Property in Hangzhou
(Landscape Garden)
TSRE N E
(Lh7kz8)

Level 3 Direct comparison
E= approach and Income

approach (term and
reversion approach)
BEEEBERIBAE (R
HERX)

The key inputs are:
(1) Term yield;

N

) Reversionary yield;
) Market unit rent;
)

wW

(
(
(4) Price per square
metre
FELER

(1) EEKEE
) EEkEE

) TIBEfIES
)

BEITAKER

W

(
(
@

factors such as road frontage, size of
property etc., of RMB10,200/sgm.
FREEM S EATE RAEHE
RETRE - MERESEMERNR

= BYARBERBETHIARARE
10,2007 °

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be
received, of 5.5%.

G AR S A U as B SR P
PR e 5 I ERAE BAUR A B BETE M D 78
B AR EER5.5% e

Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 6%.

B AB IS FERS WA KRR
WMENBLTE  EHKEER6% -

Market unit rent, using direct market
comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB2.0/sgm/day.
EAEEMSLER AU ALE
NERATERE  MER /N RRHEE A
FERAZR  maEUASRETHK
BRARK207TT -

B R R M RE
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. I BEYMXR (18)
(CONTINUED)
Investment
properties held by
the Group
in the combined Significant Relationship of
statements of Fair value  Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable
financial positions hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
SO BEMRRRH DMRABES TABRRARE
FTEERBFERENE & HERMREERAHE BEXTUBRAARE HRAAEERF
Price per square metre, using market The higher the price,
direct comparables and taking into the higher the fair
account of location and other individual ~ value.

ERES  AAEE
B

The higher the term
yield, the lower the fair
value.

BEMSEEE - 2
A BB

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

ERRETES 2
REEBE -

The higher the market
unit rent, the higher
the fair value.

misEAESHS
KABEES -

REFEERRAT

= FFETR
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. I EWE (8])

(CONTINUED)

Investment
properties held by
the Group

in the combined

statements of Fair value
financial positions hierarchy
SO BERR R H DMRBES

FEBRBFERENE &

Property 8 - Level 3
Property in Hangzhou 2 =4

(Hidden Dragon Bay)
BRI — M
()

Valuation technique(s)

and key input(s)

RERTREEZHABE

Direct comparison
approach and Income
approach (term and
reversion approach)

BEREBERBAE (R

HERX)

The key inputs are:
(1) Term yield;

(2) Reversionary yield;
(3) Market unit rent;
(4) Price per square
metre
FTE2HA

(1) MEEkER

) BRWEE

) TIHEMES
) BIFKER

Significant
unobservable
input(s)

BEATUBEGAZE

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property etc., of RMB11,700/sgm.
FREEMSLEATE RAE R
ERETRE - MEREZEMERNE
= BYARBEAETHIRARE
11,7007T °

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be
received, of 5.5%.

G AR S A U as I SR P
PR B S YR AR BN A B BERE 1 D 78
B AHREER5.5% e

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 6%.

B ABTISFEER WA KRR
MENELTE  BHEREER6% -

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
RARZGARE
HAREEBE

The higher the price,
the higher the fair
value.

BRES
B

5
=+
T
¥

The higher the term
yield, the lower the fair
value.

GRS RN
JL REEHBE -

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

FUGSFHE - 2

JL AREEBE -
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Property 9 -
Property in Huabei
(Vancouver City)
9 — L%
CREFER)

Level 3 Direct comparison

F= approach and Income
approach (term and
reversion approach)

BEERLEERBAL (B
HER%)

comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB3.1/sgm/day.
FREEM BB ALLTALE
NERETIER - MER/NRRIBEHA
BEEZ  MEmSELEERET
AKRBGRARBIAT

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property etc., of RMB15,800/sgm.
ERAEEMSL AT R B
ERETIBE - MERESEMERNR
= BYARBERAETARARE
15,8007T °

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be
received, of 5.25%.
EUNGELES- Lol IS SN
PR A UCERAR EAUL A B BETE 1 O 8
. FEHE R 55.25% °

B R R M RE
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. I BEYMXR (18)

(CONTINUED)
Investment
properties held by
the Group
in the combined Significant Relationship of
statements of Fair value  Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable
financial positions hierarchy  and key input(s) input(s) inputs to fair value
SO BARR R DREES TABRRARE
FEEFEERENE & HERMREERAHE BEXTUBRAARE HRAAEERF

Market unit rent, using direct market The higher the market

unit rent, the higher
the fair value.

SEMHESHES -
REEES

[k
N

The higher the price,
the higher the fair
value.

-
B
o
5
=
STE
it

The higher the term
yield, the lower the fair
value.

REREENE - A
A EEAE -

REFEERRAT

= FFETR
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

Investment
properties held by
the Group

in the combined
statements of
financial positions

BHBBRRRF

FEBRBFERENE &

Fair value  Valuation technique(s)
hierarchy  and key input(s)
DMRBES

RERTREEZHABE

The key inputs are:
Term yield;
Reversionary yield;
Market unit rent;

ERCECRE

Price per square
metre
FTELYA

(1) M

) ERKEE

) TIREBEMMEE
) BTIKER

15. WM (#])

Significant
unobservable
input(s)

BEATUBEGAZE

Reversionary yield, taking into account
of annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 5.75%.

T ABAmIZEREESRA KRR
BYRNEMTE  EREREER
5.75% °

Market unit rent, using direct market
comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and facilities, of RMB1.0/sgm/day.
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁilwﬁkuﬁ
NEGETIER -~ MER/NR RIS HA
BERE %ﬁﬁa“mmiﬁg$
FARERARE10T -

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property etc., of RMB6,700/sgm.
ERAEEMSL VAT A KA E B
HRE  DERRSEMERNER
BERARERATTARAREG6,700

JG ©

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
RARZGARE
HAREEBE

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

SREERS - A
REEBIE -

The higher the market
unit rent, the higher
the fair value.

The higher the price,
the higher the fair
value.

BRRHE -
il

5>
53
|
[

It
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. L WMk (#])

(CONTINUED)

(o)  The Group’s investment properties are all situated in Mainland (o) AEBIEEWHELLAF BEAH KR

China and are held under the following lease terms: EUTHERA
2013 2012
2013 & 2012 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETIT
Leases below 10 years FAEA DR 104F 31,000 35,100
Leases of between 10 and 50 years FHEJ10F % 504 2,501,000 2,057,300
2,532,000 2,092,400

Investment properties leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
lease arrangements. All leases run for a period of one to
fifteen years, with an option to renew the leases after the
expiry dates, at which time all terms will be renegotiated.
The Group’s total future minimum lease receivables under

© RIELEHEECHONREYNE

AEBERBLEHERALIKREY
X-MBEHERM—Z=+HF YA
BN B R B AR 2 BP R
THEITHE - ARERBETABDUHL
LHERKREMEMSHRARRER

non-cancellable operating leases generated from investment EFIAREENT ¢
properties are as follows:

2013 2012
2013 2012 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Within one year —FR 70,284 58,153
In the second to fifth years, inclusive % —ZFRAF (HEMFEBIEEN) 150,111 124,449
After five years hFE 46,301 25,291
266,696 207,893

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with a carrying amount of RMB1,576,589,000
(2012: RMB1,894,005,000) were pledged to secure interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 31(i).

(d R20135F12H31H 1| & W 7*
1) FTiEeE - ARERAEAARKE
1,576,589,0007T (20124 : A R #
1,894,005,000 7T ) K& TR EMEE,
ERSE EES T BIRITIE R R E b fE
IR o
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

()  In December 2013, the Group entered into certain sale and
purchase agreements to sell certain investment properties
with a carrying amount of RMB31,000,000. The Group had
received deposits of approximately RMB9,061,000 (2012:
RMB 10,428,000). As the transfer of the property title were
still under progress, the amount received was recognised as
advances from customers as at 31 December 2013.

15. L WM (])

) M2013F12AAREEFIVATEER
% HERAEE A AR 31,000,000
TTHE TIREYZE - ASEEKELD
AR ¥ 9,061,000 TLHIIZE (2012 4F -
AR #10,428,0007T) © R WIEFT
BEMEEFEDMEHETF - WK
A IBER AR 2013412 A 31 H

WE &R o
16. PROPERTIES UNDER 16. AP ME
DEVELOPMENT

2013 2012

20135 20124

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETTT AREFT

Carrying amount at 1 January 1 A1 BEREE 6,646,559 7,630,864

Additions #4n 2,797,231 3,029,567
Transfer to completed ERERHERE

properties held for sale (note 23) BiE P (fisE23) (1,935,333) (4,013,872

Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A 31 BEEEE 7,508,457 6,646,559

Current assets MENEE 1,430,161 1,008,595

Non-current assets EMEBNEE 6,078,296 5,637,964

7,508,457 6,646,559

The Group’s properties under development are located in Mainland

China.

The carrying amounts of the properties under development situated

AEERERMEIURPEAM o

AEERRAETYE(CRPEALNEE

on the leasehold land in Mainland China are as follows: T WEREET ¢
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Leases of over 50 years FHHARB 50 F 4,782,438 3,846,493
Leases of between 20 and 50 years FAEA20 F = 504F 2,726,019 2,800,066
7,508,457 6,646,559
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16. PROPERTIES UNDER

17.

DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s properties under
development with a carrying amount of RMB2,134,865,000 (2012:
RMB4,298,558,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note

31

16. BASE R 3e (#8)

20134 12 A 31 B - RIRHT 7 31(ii) AT #
% AEEEmEAARK2,134,865,000
JL(20124F : AR¥ 4,298,558,000 7T ) H %
THRBR XD EREBRST BRITHER
R LA B FRAIE I -

GOODWILL 17. 58
RMB’000
AR¥TT
At 31 December 2013: 2013412 A31 1 :
Cost BXAR 63,928
Accumulated impairment EEPRE (63,928)
Net carrying amount BRI 58 -
Cost at 1 January 2013, net of M 20134F 1 A1 B -
accumulated impairment kR 25HRIE
Impairment during the year FARE -
At 31 December 2013 R20183%E12 A 31 H -
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 31 December 2012: 2012412 311 :
Cost BRAR 63,928
Accumulated impairment Z2EPRE (63,928)
Net carrying amount BRENFE =

Cost at 1 January 2012, net of
accumulated impairment
Impairment during the year

At 31 December 2012

R2012F 1 A1 HAIRKA -
Bk 2EHRE
FRRE

2012412 A31H
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 18. A HEKRE
INVESTMENTS
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Unlisted equity investments, at cost JEETRERRE - BRAE 3,300 5,610

The available-for-sale investments were the solely unlisted equity
investments with a carrying amount of RMB3,300,000 (2012:
RMB5,610,000).

At 31 December 2013, unlisted equity investments with a carrying
amount of RMB3,300,000 (2012: RMB5,610,000) were stated
at cost less impairment. The investments were stated at cost
because the investments do not have a quoted market price in an
active market. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of such
investments cannot be measured reliably and the underlying fair
values of investments were not less than the carrying values of the
investments as at 31 December 2013.

AHEERBEEREEERAR®
3,300,000 7T (20124 = A K #5,610,000
TT) K3 ETERIRE

MR2013F12A31H - BRE A A B %
3,300,000 T (20124 : A K ¥5,610,000
TT) KIFE TR IR A Ty IR AR RL (E &
FIBR o ARNEERNERBTIBWATIHRE
HOERR A AR - EERBZFRENIER
AREBETHEARTERZERENAAE
BERDRZERER 2013412 A31 HRIER
[EER

19. LONG TERM PREPAYMENTS 19. REATAT#X
2013 2012
2013 % 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Prepaid land lease payments Taf L EFRIA 12,600 12,600
Maintenance fund HEED 35,984 26,310
48,584 38,910
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REE0EMNRE
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT ARBTT
Share of net assets DIhEEFRE 46,487 10,696
Loans to joint ventures RETEERRNER 365,961 350,926
412,448 361,622
The loans to the joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and BEFLEIENERTEERR 28 UE
have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, METEEE - 525 XZEFWEA

these loans are considered as quasi-equity investments in the joint
ventures.

Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows:

ERAEEDIRE -

BETENFBNT

Percentage attributable to the Group

Particulars AEEEEED L
of issued Place of Indirectly held Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held registration equity interest power sharing activities
REBRT BiERE
=L R i it 2 BAgERz REE BFAME TEEY
Jiangsu Xiezhong Investment Registered Jiangsu 45% 50% 45% Investment
Co., Ltd. capital of PRC holding
LEHHRREBRAR RMB100,000,000
AL AR AR BT R REER
AR 100,000,0007T
Jiangsu Jiarun Real Estate Registered Jiangsu 45% 50% 45% Property
Co., Ltd. capital of PRC development
IHREERBRAF RMB100,000,000
EaililheN BT &R MR
AR 100,000,000 7T
The 50% equity interests in these joint ventures are held through a RZEEE D ERS0% IR AIER JB IBAA

subsidiary with 90% of equity interest attributable to the Company.

The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial
information of Jiangsu Xiezhong Investment Co., Ltd. adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the financial statements:

AIFE(E 90% AR B R RIFFA o

TR IFHBREEBRARGHIHE
PR - SUEM SRR L AR R EM S
HRAMRE(E L ©
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

20. REELRMKE (A)

(CONTINUED)
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Cash and cash equivalents Re MREEEY 4,784 92
Other current assets HEtmEh&EE 3,274 1,298
Current assets mEEE 8,058 1,390
Non-current assets ERBEE 473,160 372,992
Current liabilities B E (388,244) (352,553)
Net assets BEFE 92,974 21,829

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of

the Group’s joint ventures:

TRINTAKESEENUBERLE

2013 2012

2013 F 2012 F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFE (TREmE) 92,974 21,829
Recongiliation to the Group’s interest EAREENG S EERAD

in the joint venture

Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHBEEED L 50% 49%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEEELAEECEEEFE

the joint ventures 46,487 10,696

Loans to joint ventures T EENER 365,961 350,926

Carrying amounts of the investment KEREE 412,448 361,622

Total expenses EEE (4,818) (2,055)

Loss after tax BrTii&E 1R (4,818) (2,055)
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

21 ;BERIASER AR

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: FEEFRIBEERREHIBESEEBT ¢

Deferred tax assets

EEHAEE

Losses available

Impairment Unrealised for offsetting Prepaid
of other intragroup against future  corporation
receivables  profit of loss taxable profits income tax Total
AR
HttEWRE  ASREE  ARERB Bt
BEER MRz  AENESE i @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARMTR ARETR  ARETx

At 1 January 2012 201241 A1 H 15,742 9,569 82,435 - 107,746
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the  FERFMEZRER /(1K)

statement of profit or loss REIERE

during the year - 10,027 (22,576) 33,766 21,217

At 31 December 2012 201212 A31B R

and 1 January 2013 2013F1A1H 15,742 19,596 59,859 33,766 128,963
Deferred tax credited to the FRREERER

statement of profit or loss FRER IR

during the year - 118 10,496 3,208 13,822
At 31 December 2013 2013%12A31H 15,742 19,714 70,355 36,974 142,785

In accordance with PRC laws and regulations, tax losses could be
carried forward for five years to offset against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets relating to unutilised tax losses are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of RMB283,245,000 (2012: RMB12,612,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group also
has accumulated tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB99,867,000 (2012: RMB68,261,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

RIER BEERE KA - AR 45266
VAR SH L B 12 RO FER AL AN - B RAM ARENF
MEBENEEHEEE  Re8EBEEH
FERF R AE % SR B A =S8
R B HER °

REERBBEE AR 23,2450007T
(20124 : AR¥12,612,0007T) B 25+ 5¢
HEE - TAREHESEREBEN AR
BEERTLAE o ANER B R R B i IR E
4+ A R #99,867,0007T (20124 : A R ¥
68,261,000 7T) K R IEEE - R —=
AFEREIE - AIESH B RAERTFE - B
RZENBAREEEFBE—BRIERHE - BR
A ] 278 ] B RN R B IS A 1R A0 FEER B
FE - MU ERZEBHEEREEHEE
go
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 21 ;RIERIASERAR ()
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEHRIBEEE
Fair value
adjustment Fair value
arising from adjustment of
acquisition of  investment  Withholding
a subsidiaries properties tax Others* Total
BEE—x
KEAR RENE
EENDA AREE
BERR Fili BB Hit @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%Tn AR¥Tx AR®Trn AR%Tx
At1 January 2012 201241 A1A (1,057) (381,805) (24,005) (28,700) (436,467)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the  FRREZRER/
statement of profit or loss (k) MEERT B
during the year 1,957 (5,896) (10,369) 15,432 1,124
At 31 December 2012 2012128318 K%
and 1 January 2013 20131818 - (387,701) (34,374) (13,268) (435,343)
Deferred tax charged to the FRRERE
statement of profit or loss MBRAEERIE
during the year - (78,198) (9,383) (30,178) (117,759)
At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31 B - (465,899) (43,757) (43,446) (553,102)
* Others mainly include temporary differences regarding capitalised finance * Hith+ 26 EEE RN EE K AN R
costs. R o
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT BEPFECEMGEFRE(HEEMSEH
Law”), a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to ED)  BRINERFREETIRRBRFE
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established AR 37 B INE 1 3 2 IR B 10% T 0
in Mainland China. The requirement has become effective from 1 T - BT E 2008F 1 A1 B4 » I
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. BAN2007 12 A31 BEFEL 2 B -
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty fisi R B R B HNE 18 B & P R A RE [ 2
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. A RSB R R AHZBR B R EH o &
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore SEZBERLLEAE10% ° At © NEE AR
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those ZE A B A 7 2 M B A Rk 2008 4F 1
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings A1 BREEZEBFMDIEZREMZIEN
generated from 1 January 2008. o
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

22

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Other than the deferred tax liability in relation to the PRC withholding
income tax provided above, no deferred taxation has been provided
for the retained profits of approximately RMB1,750,280,000
(2012: RMB1,374,960,000), which were derived from the PRC
subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

21.

EERMARER AR ()

ELEHESE (H)

R B | SO A AR BITE O P15 35 4B A AR AT
MIBEEI - HERE R BN E 2R84
A K #1,750,280,0007C (20124 : A R &
1,374,960,000 7T ) R B8 Vs | 1 H 35 RE 75 18 43¢
18+ AR5 B e 420 1 B PR M 2 R 2 ] ) PR
] B BRI R AT AP ] RAR RN ] o

o

RAB D IRAE T BERA M S E RIS R
R

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. B A TR E
Company ¥ YN

2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Unlisted shares, at cost LMD - HRAAE 100 100
Loan to subsidiaries THERARINER 885,167 929,834
885,267 929,934

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the Company’s
current assets and current liabilities of RMB1,830,798,000
(2012: RMB1,891,949,000) and RMB187,044,000 (2012:
RMB109,330,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-free and
are repayable on demand or within one year.

The amounts advanced to the subsidiaries included in the
investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the Directors,
these advances are considered as quasi-equity loans to the
subsidiaries.

BRERRARIREEE K RE A EER K E
R ATIRIES B A AR 1,830,798,0007T
(20124 : AR#1,891,9490007T) B A R#E
187,044,0007T (20124F = AE# 109,330,000
L) BERE . S RARERER—FNR

88 -

B

=

EREAARHBARRETNRTHERR]
VRIAREER RS REEEENY - E
R REBRAR SR THERBNE

REFEERRAT
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22, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

22. B A FIRRE ()

MIBARMFENT

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value of

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Group as at
31 December

establishment registered 12831 BAEH
and place of capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
MBS F S o 20136128310
AR B AHREERE HEMERNEE 20135 2012 FEEK
Zhejiang Zhong An PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 90% 81% Property
Property Development 3 April 1997 leasing
Xiaoshan Co., Ltd.
L RRREMERL hE/HER AR 2,000,0007% IEL T
REFBRAR @ 1997 F4 A3H
Zhong An Group PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 90% 90% Property
Co., L td. © 26 December 1997 development
FRREEERARC BRI, AR 50,000,0007T and leasing
199712 A 26 8 MERE
KHE
Zhejiang Zhong An PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Property
Property Co., Ltd. © 18 November 1998 service
IR MEREERRAE HE B, AR#1,000,00078 MEERRY
19984 11 A 18 H
Anhui Zhong An Real Estate PRC/Mainland China US$5,000,000 100% 100% Property
Development Co., Ltd. 9 August 2001 development
ZHRLZEHWERSERARO  RE/hER 5,000,000 7% MERE
20018 A9H
Hangzhou White Horse Property PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 90% 90% Property
Development Co., Ltd. © 27 June 2002 development
MBS EHERERRARY BRI, AR 50,000,0007T ESEE
20026 A 27 H
Anhui Zhong An Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB57,000,000 84.2% 84.2% Property
Co., Ltd. @ 17 January 2003 development
ZHRREEBRRAY HE BRI, AR 57,000,0007T ESEE

20031 A17H
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22, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

22. B2 FIRRE ()

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) B ATIMESHT - (8)
Percentage of equity interest

Place and date attributable to the Group as at

of incorporation/

Nominal value of

31 December

establishment registered 12831 BAEE
and place of capital as at EiERER A Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
EER AR, BR S b 20136128310
AR LB HEREERE HEMERNEE 20135 20124 FEEK
Hangzhou Danube Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 92.6% 92.6% Property
Co., Ltd. © 7 March 2003 development
MMZETEE BB AR HE/ R ER, AR 50,000,000 70 ESE
2003F3A7H
Chunan Minfu Property PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 100% 100% Property
Co., Ltd. ©@ 24 QOctober 2003 development
ERREREEEERAFO HE/HER AR 6,000,0007T MERE
2003F 10824 H
Anhui Zhong'an Property PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 90% 90% Property
Management Co., Ltd. ¢ 24 November 2003 management
ZHBREMEERBRAT HE BRI, AR 3,000,0007T WEER
200311 A 24 B
Shanghai Zhong An Property PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90% 87.1% Property
Development Co., Ltd. @ 19 January 2004 leasing
LERZEHERBERAR HE BRI, AR 10,000,0007T MERE
200441 H19H
Zhejiang Huijun Real Estate PRC/Mainland China US$77,600,000 99.7% 99.7% Property
Co., L td. @ 1 April 2005 development
ITEREXERARC HE/RER, 77,600,000 7T ESEES
2005F4 A1H
Hangzhou Zhong An PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 90% 89.4% Property
Highlong Commercial 20 September 2005 management
Buildings Co., Ltd. ©
MMNRLEEEEAR AR HE BRI, AR 2,000,0007T WEER
2005F 9 A20H
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22, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value of

MBARMFENT : (&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Group as at

31 December

22. B A FIRRE ()

establishment registered 12831 BAEH
and place of capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
MBS F S o 20136128310
AR B AHREERE HEMERNEE 20135 2012 FEEK
Qirui Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China US$14,900,000 100% 100% Investment
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. @ 21 November 2005 holding
HRCEER MM ARDRY  RE/HERM AR 14,900,000 78 REZR
2005 11 A21H
Hangzhou Zheng Jiang Real Estate  PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 92.5% 94.5% Property
Development Co., Ltd. @ 16 March 2006 development
MNEIEHREREERARO B/ HEAM ARH50,000,0007C MERE
20063 A 16 A
Henlly Enterprise Management PRC/Mainland China US$99,800,000 100% 100% Property
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. @ 4 December 2006 development
BRCEER (MM ARDRS  HE/ HEAM 99,800,00037T ESEE
200612 A4 H
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Zhong’an PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Hotel
Holiday Inn Co., Ltd. @ 28 May 2007 management
MNELRZREEE hE/hEA, AR 10,000,0007T BEER
BB AR 200755 H 28 H
Hefei Green Bay Property PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 90% 90% Property
Management Co., Ltd. 1 August 2007 management
ARGEEENEERERARY  FE/FEAM AR 500,0007C NEER
20078 A1H
Hangzhou Junjie Investment PRC/Mainland China US$29,990,000 100% 100% Investment
Co., Ltd. ® 4 December 2007 management
MMNENMEERAR AR RE/HER, 29,990,000 7T REER
2007 F12 A4H
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22, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

22. B2 FIRRE ()

MIBARMFENT : (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Percentage of equity interest

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value of

attributable to the Group as at

31 December

establishment registered 12831 BAEE
and place of capital as at EiERER A Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
EER AR, BR S b 20136128310
AR LB AHREE L HEMERNEE 20135 20124 FEEK
Hangzhou Huijun Information PRC/Mainland China US$59,700,000 100% 100% Consultation
Technology Co., Ltd. 5 December 2007 management
MMESRE SR ARA R HE BRI, 59,700,000 370 BHAEE
2007 F12 A5H
Hangzhou Dehong New PRC/Mainland China US$29,900,000 100% 100%  Manufacture of
Constructions Materials 1 February 2008 construction
Management Co., Ltd. materials
mMERF RN AR AR HE BRI, 29,900,000 % 7T B EE
2008F2 A1 H
Hangzhou Huihong Investment PRC/Mainland China US$49,990,000 100% 100% Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 19 February 2008 management
MNERREERBR AR HE BRI, 49,990,000 7T BREER
20082 H19H
Hefei Zhong'an PRC/Mainland China RMB350,000,000 100% 100% Hotel
Holiday Inn Co., Ltd. © 18 March 2008 management
AERRBRBEERRARO hE/hEA AR # 350,000,000 7 BEER
20083 A 18H
Huijun Construction PRC/Mainland China US$12,000,000 100% 100% Material
Materials Trading (Hangzhou) 16 July 2008 trading
Co., Ltd. ®
ESRETYEE S (M) HE BRI, 12,000,000 7T NEE S
BRARO 2008F 7 A 16 H
Zhejiang Anyuan Agriculture PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Agriculture
Development Co., Ltd. @ 11 June 2009 development
MWIZRBREREBR AR B/ hEA AR 10,000,000 70 BERE
20096 A11H
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22, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value of

MBARMFENT : (&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Group as at
31 December

22. B A FIRRE ()

establishment registered 12831 BAEH
and place of capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
MBS F S o 20136128310
AR B AHREERE HEMERNEE 20135 2012 FEEK
Zhong'an Service PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 90% 90% Investment
Holding Group Co., Ltd. @ 13 August 2009 holding
RERGEREEERAR @ R/ E A AR 50,000,000 70 REER
20098 A13H
Hangzhou Dehong Energy PRC/Mainland China USD45,000,000 100% 100% Energy
Development Co., Ltd. 3 September 2009 development
MBI RREERRR RE/HER, 45,000,000 7T ARGk
2009F9 A3 H
Zhejiang Anyuan Real PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Real estate
Estate Agent Co., Ltd. @ 30 October 2009 agency
I RR T BELL HEH BRI, AR 10,000,0007T FHERE
BRAR 2009410 A 30 H
Zhejiang Anyuan Housekeeping PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90% 90%  Housekeeping
Service Co., Ltd. @ 30 October 2009 service
IR RRBRE BB AR B/ hEA, AR 10,000,0007T KBRS
2009F 10 A 30 H
Hangzhou Zhong'an Image PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 46% 46% Construction
Construction Design Co., Ltd. ® 10 December 2009 design
MMBR LR 2% R/ E A AE#1,000,0007T BERG
TRFAARRA 2009F 12 A10H
Hangzhou Zhong'an Property PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 90% 90% Property
Co., Ltd. @ 1 February 2010 development
MNBRBEBRAF RE/HER, AR 200,000,000 7% MERE
20102 H1H
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(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value of

22. B2 FIRRE ()

MIBARMFENT : (&)

Percentage of equity interest

attributable to the Group as at

31 December

establishment registered 12831 BAEE
and place of capital as at EiERER A Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
EER AR, BR S b 20136128310
AR LB AHREE L HEMEANEE 20135 20124 FEEK
Yuyao Zhong An Property PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90% 90% Property
Development Co., Ltd. @ 5 March 2010 development
AR ZEHERBERAT BRI, AEH100,000,0007T ESE
20103 A5H
Zhejiang Anyuan Travel Agency PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Travel
Co., Ltd. 17 August 2010 agency
IR R T AR AR RE/HER AR 10,000,0007T HRATAE
201048 A 17H
Hangzhou Anyuan Property PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 45.9% 45.9% Property
Development Co., Ltd. @ 14 September 2010 development
MNLREHEBRAR HE BRI, ARH100,000,0007T IESEE
2010F9 A 14H
Yuyao Zhong'an Property PRC/Mainland China US$150,000,000 93% 93% Property
Co., Ltd. ©® 10 December 2010 development
ARRRERERAFO HE/hEA 150,000,000 % 7T EL e
2010F 12 108
Hangzhou Fukai Management © PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 90% 89% Property
2 March 2011 management
MNEACEERER AR HE/HER AR 500,000 NEER
20114 3H2H
Zhejiang Jinnong Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90% 81% Investment
Co., Ltd. @ 15 March 2011 holding
I BRBEREBB AR B/ hEA AR 100,000,0007T REER
20113 H15H
Zhejiang Xingidian Agriculture PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 90% 90% Agriculture
Co., Ltd. ©® 22 June 2011 development
IR REREARARC B/ FEN AR 3,000,0007C BERE
20116/ 22R
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22, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

22. B A FIRRE ()

MBARMFENT : (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Place and date attributable to the Group as at

of incorporation/ Nominal value of 31 December

establishment registered 12831 BAEH
and place of capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
EE AR, BR S bt 20136128310
AR B AHREE LN HEMERNEE 20135 2012 FEEK
Zhejiang Zhongan Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90% 90% Investment
Investment Management Co., 1 August 2011 holding
Ltd. ®
MIRREEREERARARC  FE/REN AR 10,000,0007C REER
20118 A1H
Zhejiang Zhongan Property PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 90% 90% Property
Development Co., Ltd. © 4 August 2011 development
MIRZEHERERRARY Bl AR 20,000,0007T ESEE
2011F8A4H
Zhejiang Zhongan Changhong PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 91.2% 92.2% Investment
Investment Management 26 August 2011 holding
Co., Ltd. ©
MNBRZREZREERERARC  HE /HEMAM AR 1,000,0007C REER
201148 A 26H
Yuyao Zhongan Agriculture PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 90% 90% Agriculture
Development Co., Ltd. © 9 November 2011 development
ARRRBERBERAFO RE/HER, AR 20,000,000 70 BERE
201111 A9R
Yuyao Zhongan Times Square PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 90% 90% Property
Commercial Management 6 December 2011 management
Co., Ltd. ®
AR LERESHEEE B/ hEA, AR ¥ 2,000,000 NEER
BRARFE 2011512 A6H
Hangzhou Zhong An PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 90% 90% Construction
Construction Design Co., Ltd. ©® 28 November 2011 design
MR ZRERAARRA O HE B, AE#5,000,0007T BEERE

2011411 A28H
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22, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

22. B2 FIRRE ()

MIBARMFENT : (&)

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value of

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Group as at
31 December

establishment registered 12831 BAEE
and place of capital as at EiERER A Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
AL SL B S it 2013412831 H
ARERE HEREERE HEMERNEE 20135 20124 TEEHR
Hangzhou Jia Ju Le Housekeeping  PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 2% 72%  Housekeeping
Service Co., Ltd. @ 15 October 2012 service
MMNBRERLR BB BRI, AR 3,000,00075 RIS
BRARE 201210 A 15H
Hangzhou Pulotos Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB37,500,000 90% N/A Investment
Management Co., Ltd. @ 4 February 2013 management
MMNE B EER HE BRI, AR 37,500,000 75 TER REER
BR ARG 2013F2A4H
Cixi Zhongan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90% N/A Property
Development Co., Ltd. @ 28 February 2013 management
RERTEMERE HE BRI, AK# 100,000,000 75 TER MEER
BR ARG 20132 A28 H
Yuyao Zhong An Times Square PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90% N/A Property
Development Co., Ltd. @1 5 August 2013 management
Rk RLHRESHE HE BRI, AR 100,000,000 75 T#ER WEER
BR AR 20138 A5H
Yuyao Zhong An Times Square PRC/Mainland China USD16,000,000 93% N/A Property
Property Co., Ltd. @@ 13 August 2013 management
RURLERRERES HE BRI, 16,000,000 7T T#ER MEER
BRAREE 201368 A13H
Tianjing San Jiu Zhong An PRC/Mainland China RMB10,204,100 90% N/A Property
Property Consulting Co., Ltd.@® 5 September 2013 management
RE=NBRELEM BRI, ARH10,204,1007T TEF WEER
BR AR 20139 A5H
Zhejiang Zhong An Sheng Long PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 90% N/A Property
Commercial Co., Ltd. @ 9 September 2013 management
MIRREEEEARAR OO HE BRI, AR 50,000,00075 T#ER MEER
2013F9A9H
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value of

MBARMFENT : (&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Group as at

31 December

22. B A FIRRE ()

establishment registered 12831 BAEH
and place of capital as at EERER AL Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
EE AR, BR S bt 20135128310
AR B AHREE LN HEMERNEE 20135 2012 FEEK
Huaibei Run Zhou Hotel PRC/Mainland China USD1,000,000 100% N/A Hotel
Management Co., Ltd. @© 16 October 2013 management
ELENEEERERAREO /R E At 1,000,000% 7T TER BEEE
2013F10A 16 A
Qirui Commercial (Hangzhou) PRC/Mainland China USD14,900,000 100% N/A Investment
Management Co., Ltd. @) 18 October 2013 holding
HIHEEER (M) BRARON  hE/HEAM 14,900,000 7T @R REZKR
2013410418 H
Cixi Zhongan PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 90% N/A Property
Property Co., Ltd. @ 6 December 2013 management
HERLBEBRAR G hE/hEA AR ¥ 50,000,000 70 TEF NEER
201312 A6H
Hangzhou Jun Tuo Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 90% N/A Investment
Management Co., Ltd. @ 6 December 2013 management
MMBEARREERBR AR OO B/ hEA, AR 1,000,000 7 TEm REER
2013%12 A6H
Zhejiang Zhong An City PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90% N/A Property
Construction Co., Ltd. @¥ 17 December 2013 management
MIARTHMERABRAR O HE/HEAH AK®100,000,000 70 TR NEER
201312 A17H
|deal World Investments British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited 6 November 2003 holding
EBERRHS 13%7T REER
2003411 A6H
Huijun (International) Holdings Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Investment
Limited 4 March 2005 holding
B 100,000/ 7T REER
20054 3H4H
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22, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

MIBARMFENT : (&)

22. B2 FIRRE ()

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value of

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Group as at
31 December

establishment registered 12831 BAEE
and place of capital as at EiERER A Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
EER AR, BR S b 20135128310
AEER AHREE L HEMEANEE 20135 20124 TEEH
China Bright Management British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited 13 November 2007 holding
EBERRES 1% REER
2007 F 11 A 13 A
Esteem High Enterprises British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited @ 13 November 2007 holding
ERERRES 17T REER
2007411 A13H
Everplus Management British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited 13 November 2007 holding
ERERRHS 1% REER
2007411 A13H
Gain Large Enterprises British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited 13 November 2007 holding
HBERRHS 1T REER
2007411 A13H
Plenty Management British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% Investment
Limited ¢ 13 November 2007 holding
EBERARHS 17T REER
2007411 A13H
Hong Kong Bo Kai Construction Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Construction
Design Limited ¢ 26 February 2008 design
EERYRERERADY BB 187 R
200842 A 26 H
Hong Kong Huiyuan Real Estate Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100% Property
Limited 26 February 2008 development
ERERMERRAR 5 18T EGE
20082 A 26 H
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/

Nominal value of

22. B2 FIRRE ()

MBARMFENT : (&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Group as at
31 December

establishment registered 12831 BAEH
and place of capital as at EERER A Principal
Name of company operation 31 December 2013 2013 2012 activities
EERARSL, B S bt 20136128310
NREHE AHREE LN HEMERNEE 20135 2012 EEEK
Zhong An International Shipping Hong Kong HK$780,000 100% 100% Shipping
(Hong Kong) Limited 11 November 2011
RLREGME (BE)ERATO  FE 780,000/ 7T fiE
2011 F11 B11H
Zhong An Property British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% N/A Property
(China) Ltd. @ 20 June 2013 management
BREF(FE)BRAA EBEARAS 50,000 7T N MEER
20136 A20H
China New City Commercia Cayman Islands HK$100,000 100% N/A Investment
Development Limited. @ 2 July 2013 holding
REFETREEERERAANY  HEHS 100,000 7T NER RERR
2013F7H2H
Zhong An Property Canada CAD$100 100% N/A Property
Canada Development Ltd. @© 8 November 2013 development
BREFEE(NER) FRAF O MER 100407T NER WERER
2013%F 11 A8H

Notes:

N/A  Not yet incorporated/established/acquired or liquidated by the Group

(a) These subsidiaries were established by the Group in 2013.

(b) Types of legal entities:

1

Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

(1)

2) Sino-foreign equity joint venture
(©)

(4) Limited liability company

Limited liability company invested by foreign invested enterprises

The pledge of the 100% equity interest of subsidiary of the Company
with total equity of about RMB1,258,394,000 as at 31 December

2012 was released in 2013 as disclosed in note 31(vi).

W
B AREREMAR L L AR -
@  HESHBATN2013FhARER L -

(b) EEERER

(1) IEEEER
@  HIREDRE
@ I EREAREMEAF
@  BEREERA

BARTEE 31 (vi) BT BR - AN A — R B A
S ERARHE (A 2012 4E 12 A 31 HAatER N A
AR #1,258,394,000 7T ) R E 74 2013
FRERRRR o
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. W EATIRRE ()

(CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests are set out below:

Percentage of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

BEEARIFERERNARENE A RHE

ol

ISR RS O

2013 2012
20134 20124
Zhejiang Zhong An Sheng Long AR EEEEGRAR
Commercial Co., Ltd. (TR BkfZ |)
(“Zhong An Sheng Long”) 10% N/ATiEMA
Hangzhou Zheng Jiang Real Estate TNE I EHERZEER AT
Development Co., Ltd. (TN IET D)
(“Hangzhou Zheng Jiang”) 7.5% 5.5%
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests at the reporting RS B HAIE A S Rt 45 5% ¢
dates:
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Zhong An Sheng Long RREE 147,125 N/A i
Hangzhou Zheng Jiang M IET 24,596 1,675
Profit for the year allocated to non-controlling interests: FADIE T IEER E RSB
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Zhong An Sheng Long RREE 4,752 N/A i
Hangzhou Zheng Jiang N IE)T 22,312 279
Notes: Bt -
N/A  Not yet established by the Group in 2012. TEA  R2012F i REAREBAKL
grEEARAN —Z2—=F5% 201
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. WIEATIRRE ()

(CONTINUED)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of

the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-

company eliminations:

TREINA LB ARNHBERE - B
RN BA/MEM R RIFEHAT 2 05 ¢

Zhong An Hangzhou
Sheng Long Zheng Jiang
RREE HUIMIEST
2013 RMB’000 RMB’000
20134 ARETT AR¥ETT
Revenue WA 36,074 782,917
Fair value gain upon transfer to BRI EYER
investment properties N EERE - 256,292
Changes in fair value of KA
investment properties DREEZE 54,900 1,400
Total expenses X % (43,453) (743,114)
Profit for the year F R A 47,521 297,495
Total comprehensive for the year FAZEMEREE 47,521 297,495
Current assets MENEE 1,968,568 1,229,136
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,917,820 393,574
Current liabilities MEEE (3,046,122) (629,339)
Non-current liabilities EMBAE (369,017) (665,423)
Net cash flows from operating activities EE R ELER SRS FE 60,560 146,384
Net cash flows used in investing activites & GEFEAR S REF5E - (494)
Net cash flows used in financing activites & ESFERIR S REF 58 - (161,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReMREEEEM
cash equivalents Cmd) #58 60,560 (15,110)
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

22. B2 FIRRE ()

(CONTINUED)
Hangzhou
Zheng Jiang
FUMNIET
2012 RMB’000
2012 F ARETT
Revenue WA =
Changes in fair value of KEMEARBEES
investment properties -
Interest income FB WA 19,213
Investment income FERA =
Total expenses X #%E (14,134)
Profit for the year F g (5,079)
Total comprehensive for the year FAEEW=LRE (5,079)
Current assets mENEE 1,349,085
Non-current assets EMENEE 24,583
Current liabilities B E (1,343,215)
Non-current liabilities FERBER =
Net cash flows from operating activities LERDEERSREFE 4,558
Net cash flows used in REEBEAR S REFE
investing activities =
Net cash flows used in financing activites Bt & EEFERR LR EFE (50,000)
Net decrease in cash and He RFSEBYR A FHE
cash equivalents (45,442)

REFEERRAT

—z—=##% 203



Notes to Financial Statements

BrEE R M

23. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD 23.

HIERECERME

FOR SALE

2013 2012
2013 F 2012 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 BZ2ERmEE 4,055,476 1,480,192

Transfer from properties e R
under development (note 16) (H7x16) 1,935,333 4,013,872
Transfer to investment properties (note 15) B =R &M (HizE15) (126,808) -
Transfer to cost of properties sold (note 6) #EEEZ= B HEWEMKA (FizE6) (1,477,646) (1,438,588)
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 A 31 HZERMEE 4,386,355 4,055,476

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale of RMB1,841,098,000 (2012:
RMB704,968,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note

R2018F 12 A31 B AEBAE THEH
EEEKYE A AR 1,841,098,0007T
(20124 : AR¥E704,968,0007T) @ ZNHI=E
31(iv) FTiR & - BEEAR TASEG BIRTT

31(iv). fE R R E M AR o
24. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR 4. U ARBEFELREE
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS HAEZEREENESKRE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETIT
Listed equity investments, at market value Mz E @ IKHE 1,077 722

The above equity investments at 31 December 2013 were classified
as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition, designated by
the Group as financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss.

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly lease
receivables on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. All balances of
the trade receivables as at the end of the year were neither past due
nor impaired and aged within one to three months.

Trade and bills receivables are non-interesting-bearing and
unsecured.

FaltiEESIR AR 20134F 12 A 31 HA AR
EB S ARG PTERRE - AEEHESEE
BARREEEHEE S A AR
SREE

PEN 3R 5 R 7k B TR

AEEEEEFIIVMESERER/EE
BERYWR - EEHM—RA—EA - A
ERPME&ZERE=(EA - EKEHER
REERBERFRAMA KB RAYSRE
AR —ZE2=A -

FEWE BN RIE A% B MBI o
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

26. At - e R HfER
®IR

Due from other related parties  FEUCE b B8 5 7008 (a)
Advance to suppliers TR AR FERS

Deposits b

Prepaid tax TEf TR

Other receivables H A e RIE

Impairment VERIE] (b)

(@) As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, all of other receivables due from related

parties are due from a non-controlling shareholder.

(b) Included in the above provision for impairment of other receivables is a full
provision for individually impaired other receivables of RMB62,966,000 with
a carrying amount before provision of RMB62,966,000 as at 31 December
2013.

Group Company
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 % 20124 2013 4 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREBTT AREBTR ARETT
2,397 8,292 - -
12,560 48,566 8 9
52,963 38,595 - 43
109,696 82,129 - —
126,354 101,205 557 -
303,970 278,787 565 52
(62,966) (62,966) - -
241,004 215,821 565 52
@) R2013F K 2012412 A31 B * FiA fEUES
77 EoAth FRIE IS 3 FE S EFE AR AR SR KA o

()  EHHEMERRENRERERERERNE

WENEGEEREELNEZBREARE
62,966,0007T * 1M 7~ & & {5 Al &9 AR @ B 7
2013412 A 31 HA AR 62,966,000 7T °
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. ?j%g HeFRMRZR
|

AND RESTRICTED CASH

Group Company
AEE KAF
2013 2012 2013 2012

20135 20124 2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTIT AR®TR ARETT

1,345,954 995,589 88,091 1,739
286,493 123,926 - =

1,632,447 1,119,515 88,091 1,739

(397,472)  (225,438) - _

1,234,975 894,077 88,091 1,739

301,722 129,688 - =
95,750 95,750 - =

Cash and bank balances & MIRI T4 fR
Time deposits EHER

Less: Restricted cash B ZRHIERE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEZED
Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets JEmEEE
Restricted cash ZRHIRE

397,472 225,438 - =

Cash at banks eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted
cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place in
designated bank accounts certain amounts of pre-sale proceeds
of properties as guarantee deposits for the construction of the
related properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases
of construction materials and payments of the construction fees
of the relevant property projects when approval from relevant local
government authorities is obtained. As at 31 December 2013, such
guarantee deposits amounted to approximately RMB110,979,000
(2012: RMB101,512,000).

RITERERRITABRE X FEA R
B BRFERFERA—RE=EARTENH
ROEAEENERRSFRKME) - RIET
RV HAE B A KA R » RITHEBRR T
RHIZR S EFRAL AT SR OELMEE
R ZIRTT

RIEF BERRER - AEERE TR
A EBRFTIRENR 5 T8 & RTE BT R
BERITIRS - (EREAYEERNERIR
© o BESIEREE BT IR BL R © 1R
SENARESEEYETE B WEEME &
T REBH - R2013F12H31H » #%
BRZS 45 AR 110,979,000 (2012
& : AR¥101,512,0007T) °

206 Zhong An Real Estate Limited 2013 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements

B ER R M

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

28

AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s current time
deposits of RMB38,743,000 (2012: RMB28,176,000) were pledged
to banks as guarantees to mortgage facilities granted to purchasers
of the Group’s properties.

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s non-current time
deposits of RMB95,750,000 (2012: RMB95,750,000) were pledged
to secure a long-term interest-bearing bank loans and certain of the
Group’s current time deposits of RMB152,000,000 (2012: nil), were
pledged to secure a short-term interest-bearing bank loans granted
to the Group as disclosed in note 31(v).

TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due dates, is as follows:

27. e RBEFRVRZR

BlHR& (&)

M20135F12A31H - R & B A K ¥
38,743,00070(20124F : AR#28,176,000
70) & T RHA R AfF s B IR T 4R 1T - 1E
RAEBYHEE RERIRBEROER -

2013412 A31 B + FANM 531 (v) AT
- NEE ARE 95,750,000 7T (2012 4F
AR5 95,750,000 7T ) B T IERNERTE BifF
REAEEHR - LEBAEEER R EER
TERMmE TAEE AR 152,000,000 7T
(2012 4F : #%) BNEAE HATE SR E /EHCHR - 1A
RS ANGE R T BRTER »

28. BT 5 B AR

ANER BN 8 SRR N S BRI S 50 3 HA
Bt EMRREDITIT

2013 2012

2013 & 2012 F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Within six months 61EAMA 1,544,719 1,391,382
Over six months but within one year HBAGEAE1FEA 190,125 96,320
Over one year A1 F 59,377 25,737
1,794,221 1,513,439

The above balances are unsecured and interest-free and are
normally settled based on the progress of construction.

LR T EER R R 8 R RIEEER
U o

REFEERRAT
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HfhfEfI®RIAREREA

Group Company
AEE ENE|
2013 2012 2013 2012

2013 £ 20124 20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTRT ARBTT AR¥TRT ARETT

Deposits related to construction 78 BEEMN LS

Payables for acquisition of PUEHT B A B FER B
subsidiaries FIE

Interest expenses accrued FEEHFI S

Due to a non-controlling P FEFZERR AR R &Y
shareholder RIA

Other payables HAb T FRIE

30. ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

Advances from customers represent sales proceeds received from
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of properties during

the year end as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

64,818 59,140 - —
22,056 22,056 - =
13,275 7,815 - =
274,694 453,251 40 42
120,546 120,681 1,995 1,675
495,389 662,943 2,035 1,617

30. KR RfT ™

EEFEMNRERAIEERE Z2012F K&
20134 12 A 31 H |- F[Z 5L T & ¥ 3 i SR
BRMIHESHOE
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND FESTEFREMEBES
OTHER BORROWINGS
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Group REE
Current: BNER
Bank loans-secured IRITER—BIRA 195,890 786,000
Bank loans-unsecured RITE R — IR 80,000 50,000
Other loans-secured HiBER—HHEA 560,000 903,030
835,890 1,739,030
Non-current: JEBNER :
Bank loans-secured IRITER—BIEA 3,769,404 1,798,237
Other loans-secured HibER—HFHER 851,000 694,900
4,620,404 2,493,137
5,456,294 4,232,167
Repayable: AR T EAREERE ¢
Within one year or on demand —F AR E K 835,890 1,739,030
Over one year but within two years ZR—FELRRF 2,130,070 1,311,646
Over two years but within five years ZIMEELRAE 1,979,334 956,491
Over five years AFENAE 511,000 225,000
5,456,294 4,232,167
Current liabilities mENBE 835,890 1,739,030
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 4,620,404 2,493,137
2rREARAT —T—=—£4% 209
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

Bank and other borrowings bear interest at fixed rates and floating
rates. The Group’s bank and other borrowings bore effective interest
rates ranging as follows:

31

BB GR 17 58 B R 3 4t £

SRITE RS EAAE IR B 7E M R A F B A R
R ARERRITERMEMBEFIZAT

RIS

2013
20134
RMB’000
AR¥TT

2012
20124
RMB’000
AREFT

Effective interest rates BERRAIR

The carrying amounts of all the Group’s borrowings during the
year were denominated in RMB and United States dollars. The

3.66%-13.00%

2.17%-17.94%

AEERFARME ERNREEDAARE
FHERETTRHE - REFRHRARETHE

denominated amounts at the end of each of the Relevant Periods are ST ¢
as follows:

2013 2012
2013 20126
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR T
RMB loans and borrowings ARBERRER 5,200,224 3,476,430
US$ loans and borrowings ETLERMER 256,070 755,737
5,456,294 4,232,167
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK
AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank and other borrowings were
secured by:

()

(i

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the Group’s investment properties with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,576,589,000 (2012:
RMB1,894,005,000) (note 15);

the Group’s properties under development with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB2,134,865,000 (2012:
RMB4,298,558,000) (note 16);

the Group’s property and equipment with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB31,472,000 (2012:
RMB168,025,000) (note 14);

the Group’s completed properties of RMB1,841,098,000
(2012: RMB704,968,000) (note 23);

the Group’s time deposits of RMB247,750,000 (2012:
RMB95,750,000) (note 27); and

the pledge of the 100% equity interest of a subsidiary of the
Company with total equity of above RMB1,258,394,000 as at
31 December 2012 was released in 2013 (note 22).

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s borrowings of
RMB1,493,000,000 (2012: RMB1,240,930,000) were guaranteed
by Mr. Shi Zhongan (note 35(c)).

31. bt B8R 1T SRR R B M F K

M2013F 12 A31 B + "EBIRITERRE
b &R AT S IR ES

0 AEERREBEL AR A1,576,589,000
Jo(20124F © AR#51,894,005,0007T) &
AW (H3E15)

i  AEEREBEAOARE2,134,865,000
JC(O124F : AR 4,208,558,0007T) K
R (FIRE16)

(i)  AEERREFELARE 31,472,000
JC(20124F : AFR¥5168,025,0007T) K
W2 NSt (BiEE14)

(v) AEEEEKEEARE1,841,098,000
Jo(20124%F « AR#704,968,0007T)
(Bff5E23) :

V) AEHERH AR B247,750,0007T
(20124 : AR¥95,750,0007C) HE
HATFER (M9RE27) 5 &

Vi ARAR KB AR BRER
2012 12 A31 HBE=BAARE
1,258,394,0007T) KIHEHE 7L 20135
EfRkR (MisE22) ©

M2013F12A318 A& B W A R &
1,493,000,0007T(20124F : AR¥E1,240,930,000
TT) BB ER e 2o AR (FIRES5(0) ©
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. g &
Shares dvi)
2013 2012
2013 20124
’000 '000
T T
Authorised: ETE
4,000,000,000 (2012: 4,000,000,000 f% (2012 £ :
4,000,000,000) ordinary shares 4,000,000,000 %) FA% & HK$400,000 HK$400,000
of HK$0.10 each 0.108THE @R 400,000 7T 400,000/87C
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
2,367,635,400 (2012: 2,367,635,400 4% (2012 £ :
2,367,635,400) ordinary shares 2,367,635,400 %) FA% B RMB222,319 RMB222,319
of HK$0.10 each 0.10/BTTH E AR AR¥222319T1 ARM2223197%T
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to KBERNEEBITIRAR Ll & E)F AR
the above movement in the Company’s issued share capital is as RHYE :
follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTROBE CERIARE ROZRER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT AR®BTT
At 1 January 2012 20121 A1H 2,371,695,400 222,636 2,985,925 3,208,561
Repurchase and cancellation EEARDN =T
of shares (4,060,000) (317) (2,687) (3,004)
At 31 December 2012 and 2012412 A31H
at 31 December 2013 K 2013%F 12 A31H 2,367,635,400 222,319 2,983,238 3,205,557
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers
of the Group, the Company’s shareholders, third parties, and any
non-controlling shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The
Scheme became effective on 15 May 2009 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the offer
date.

The initial maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options granted (excluding options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme and other
share option schemes of the Group, if any) under the Scheme and
other share option schemes of the Group (if any) must not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at 15 May 2009,
being the date of approval of the Scheme by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company. Such maximum number
may however be refreshed at a general meeting of the Company
by shareholders. In addition, no options may be granted under the
Scheme or other share option schemes adopted by the Group (if
any) if the grant of such options will result in the maximum number
of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted but yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and other share option schemes adopted by the Group
(if any) exceeding 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

33. ME AR {5t &

R AR — BT B ([%ETE]) - BA
M ARNSEEEEREL BERNE BigSH
HIRESE R o ZEEINA ER2RE
BEEE(BEBIIINTES) RAEH
HitES  mASEREE R RS HE
i ARENER AARIMRR - E=F
VAR A RIMTEB A RIEEAI JEIEARAR R © %
T2 200045 A 15 BB AR * BIERTT
FESEE] - BAIKHENBBRE+FAE
e

EiRRZET 8 R AN B H h B AR ST 21 (1
B)FE LR 2 B RE (T RIEREZE
B R AN EH M ER T2 (107G ) B R
B R B AR ) AT T Al T AC 3 R B
TR HERROEBE - TEBBEAARRN
200945 A 15 B (BM AR R A A8 2 =] iR 3R 48
FRE LHEZTEIZ BE) BETRDA
10% ° AT - BRARERNHEE TRAAF
AR A S AR VE AT o BEAh + R
BB RS S BIRIRE R S R A E
B E A PE AR AERT B () B BB RAT
(BB FT 7 B AR 1T {58 T ] T BC B8 R EETTHY
RE RO E BB R EITRAR
30% -+ RN PR AR R AR AT Bl S N &= IR AN
B EL A FE AR AE AT Bl (408 ) 1% 5% SR AR o
FMER =16 A HAR A AT AR R R AR R %5
B TEBEEERSHERITHNRERMHE
B - ERARNA BRI AERESBETROA
1% o fEfA]HE — 250 9% I B 18 1h PR K8 1Y i AR 42
ERIRR AR S EEUSIRR AR
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 33. IRk HERTE (4])

(CONTINUED)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by the grantee
within 21 days from the date of offer at a consideration of HK$1.00.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, and commences after a vesting period of one to five
years and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of:

(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of offer of the share options;

(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer; and

(i)~ the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

BRYIARAIES EBTRABREERE
S ST A TR - BB LRSS
BMIEMITEBRIBLE  BEIN - 0RAER
+ @A A AR T AR R EERR B I
HITES  ESHEMABHEANTWE
REBBARFTNEMEBEZTROE
0.1% S EAAE (IRIFA R BN B BirAR
B8 )#B185,000,000/87T » BIESE LR
BAE FEEBIRERE o

RHBRENENTEENAEE21AR
AR ARRE.00B TR - AT B
BZTERMRESET YN —ERF2H
BRLRN  =ABREENRHENER
tTEZBHZAABZER B R AREEE
ERE)RILE -

BREZITEERESERE - BARERNR

THREE

) ARFRMHREEREZO R BERR
Pz Wi (g

(i) ANRBRMREERZLHA AR EEE

FAEMRTZ FHRHE &

(i) ARFNERERMDAIEE -

BRI B TRAAZEREIRERA
B EIRRZKEN -
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 33. Bkt 81 (48])
(CONTINUED)
The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme FNZTEITE TN ARIEITE 2 BB T -
during the year:
2013 2012
2013 £ 20124
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price  of options
INREF 15 BIRE  nETE B iE
TEE 2R 111 =
HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share 000
SRAET T ERET Fi5
At 1 January w1818 212 120,717 2.12 127,101
Granted during the year FAEED 1.46 78,000 = =
Forfeited during the year FRRIK 2.16 (4,843) 2.18 (6,384)
At 31 December K12 H31H 1.85 193,874 2.12 120,717
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RERE AR B AR TR 2 1T B R ITE
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BN -
2013 2013 4
Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE TEE TS
’000 per share
T4 =724
78,000 HK$1.46 10 July 2013 to 9 July 2023
1.46%7T 2018347 H10HZE 20237 A9H
73,700 HK$1.85 22 January 2014 to 21 January 2021
1.85% 7T 20141 A22 A& 202141 A 21 H
42,174 HK$2.58 9 July 2010 to 8 July 2019
2.58 7T 20107 AOHE 201947 A8H
193,874
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 33. BEBR AT R (48)
(CONTINUED)
2012 2012 F

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period

BRERE TEE* 1715
’000 per share
T4 =300
76,500 HK$1.85 22 January 2014 to 21 January 2021
1.8587T 20141 22 B&E 202141 A21H
44,217 HK$2.58 9 July 2010 to 8 July 2019
2.58 7T 20107 A9 HZE201947 A8H

120,717

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

On 10 July 2013, the Group granted 78,000,000 share options.
These share options are vested upon granted and the fair value of
the share options granted during the year was RMB37,900,000
(2012: nil). The Group recognised a share option expense of
RMB62,308,000 (2012: RMB29,712,000) during the year ended 31
December 2013.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
was estimated as at the date of grant using the Binomial Option
Pricing Method, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

* BN ITEEEHRRARETERA T
AR AR RRANEMARERE) o

ANEE 201347 5108 %1 78,000,00017
FERRIE - ZERERENRLNEERARE
B4 AR # 37,900,000 7T (20124F : &) o
AEBREZE2013F 12 A31 BILFEHER
BB RS R S A R 62,308,000 7T (2012 £F
AR 29,712,0007T) °

FRFRGZBEEEBREZ AR EET
B _IAA MR EETDENK E B HIT A
&t YRt R AT BB Z AR R R o T
RET 5 APTERIRE 2 BUE -

2013 2012

2013 £ 20124

Dividend yield (%) R B S 2 (%) - -
Expected volatility (%) TE R 1 (%) 54.10 -
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4B 22 1 2R (%) 2.40 =
Expected life of options (year) FERRETERT 2 () 10 =
Exercise price (HK$ per share) T{EE (BB T) 1.46 =
Suboptimal Exercise Behaviour Multiple ~ JREFT#1T A& 2.0x =

The expected life of the options is the validity of the options
upon grant date and until expiry. It is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The suboptimal exercise
behaviour multiple is applied to the exercise price, and indicates the
stock price in which the holders of the option may exercise prior to
expiration. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

BB FRARE Z AEZERRE
Bz BMM  BERBIERAREEELEZTT
R - RBITEITAEEERRITEERR
ERBBRER B AR RERAITEZ RRE
1% o TRHRIR 08 IR R (R AR I SRR P FRUR AR 2R
B2 ETRVERERER
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

34

(CONTINUED)

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As none of share options was exercised during the year, there was
no impact on ordinary shares of the Company, share capital or share
premium.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 193,874,421
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 193,874,421
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of RMB15,242,000 and share premium of RMB267,031,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 192,773,646 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 8.14% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.

RESERVES
Group

(@) Share premium

The share premium of the Company represents the excess of
ordinary shares paid by the shareholders over their nominal
value.

(b)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value of
the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the reorganisation of the Group from 2006 to 2007 for
the purpose of preparation for the listing of the share of the
Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor. Prior to the incorporation of the
Company, the contributed surplus represented the aggregate
of the normal values of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries
of the Group.

33.

34.

RERxHERT & (48)

R BRI 2 R A B R A A R
ZitEm -

BN FALEBRERETE - RLEHAR
AR - RSB OREERTZE

RBEBMKR ARAAIRZTETE
193,874,421 P BEAR E M R 1T - 03255
M AT R AR AR 2 HUETTE ¢ BIEEAR QA
WIRARAREET  HEFEBEINET
193,874,421 AR R LB REE AR
15,242,0007T 2 BRYMERA R AR D m (B A R
267,031,000 7t (FIBRFZHATEAA) °

RUUELEFBERERZ B - AABRZAE

TH 192,773,646 (0 BEARAE R ARTTHE - S
RAR TR BB I TR 418.14% °

foti O
A%E
BRAE

AR BB R ERERR N 2 Bk
SREBBEME °

(a)

(b) EHREER

REBENEMABMRIERIEB 200655 =
2007 FREERRRIRNEE B
FrER LS AR BETHEMAM
WEHB A RS RAEEARESE
RRRIFFEITERRZ B FEED
ZH o AR RIGEMALAT  BHEA
HARRAEENB R RS RANE
HEERARE -
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34. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the additional contribution made
by the shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries and, in the
case of acquisition of an additional non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary, the difference between the cost of acquisition and
the book value of the non-controlling interest acquired.

Statutory surplus reserve and statutory
reserve fund

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in Mainland China is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve
(the “SSR”) until such reserve reaches 50% of its respective
registered capital.

In addition, certain of the PRC group companies are foreign
investment enterprises which are not subject to the SSR
allocation. According to the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to foreign investment enterprises, each of these
subsidiaries is required to allocate a certain portion (not less
than 10%) of its profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory reserve
fund until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

34. G (#8)

(c)

(d)

RAf# 1

IR F AR RINB A RIBRIE
MEIMEREE KRB AR
SMNIFFERRRRAE - WA AR S AT UL B IF
IR SRR RO o

RETBEARZELTPEEEARER
R EIRAR - AR E AR AR
LB XM B LD RARNEBRBILFE
M10% (RIEFEEENEE) E
EEBRBAB(EERBRAE]
EEZHAR/REEZER AEMESR
50% °

o - BRETHRBEEE QR AINE
¥ MBARNEEERHBARE -
BEEBRINE R ERE B BE
W ZEHBARSBERERBEE:T
ERIFTEE R EFENE TS
(ROR10%) BELTEES - HE
ZIEEESESHFMERKN50% °
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34. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34. il (#8)
Company RAFE]
Retained
Share Exchange profit/ Share
premium fluctuation (accumulated option
account reserve losses) reserve Total
30 EX REIE/ i
nER ] (REBR) 1] @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFL ARETTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2012 201241 A1 H 2,985,925 (466,210) (82,816) 74,774 2,511,673
Total comprehensive FAZEBRESE
loss for the year - (1,915) (45,450) - (47,365)
Equity-settled share g S SRR
option arrangements - - - 29,712 29,712
Transfer of share option RERERIK
reserve upon the o R R
forfeiture or expiry RS
of share options - - 4,647 (4,647) -
Repurchase A (2,687) - - = (2,687)
At 31 December 2012 201212 A31H
and 1 January 2013 &2013F1 A1 R 2,983,238 (468,125) (123,619) 99,839 2,491,333
Total comprehensive FAZEBRER
loss for the year - (74,657) (82,396) - (157,053)
Equity-settled share g SRR
option arrangements - - - 62,308 62,308
Transfer of share option MREERREZ K
reserve upon the o e R
forfeiture or expiry RS
of share options - - 4,440 (4,440) -
Proposed final 2013 dividend EZ2013FRRRE - - - (42,167) (42,167)
At 31 December 2013 2013%12A31H 2,983,238 (542,782) (201,575) 115,090 2,353,971
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. MG X%

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in RN & OIS IRR FT R BR Y32 5 IR A BRSO
these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following REERNFAEBRFTETT TIEAR
material transactions with related parties during the year: 2

(@) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group @ AEEFEEBEAENFTH(EEE
which comprises the remuneration of the directors disclosed EHM) B RAMIFES HE -
in note 8.

(b)  As disclosed in note 26, the Group had balances due from (o) WIFE26 ATIEEE - B 2013 4F % 2012
related parties at 31 December 2013 and 2012. All the F12A31H » NEE A RN 4
balances due from related parties were arising from non-trade #R o PTA FEUR AR 75 A er R IERR 5
activities, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. EEIMEL - HERR 2ERRNE

SRIF(EE -

(c) As disclosed in note 31, the Group’s borrowings of ©  ZOMEEI1FTHIER - M2013512A31H -
RMB1,493,000,000 (2012: RMB1,240,930,000) were AN £ B A 18 5 A R 5 1,493,000,000 7T
guaranteed by Mr. Shi Zhongan at 31 December 2013. (20124 : AR 1,240,930,0007T )

M S A TER o
36. COMMITMENTS 36. BA&IE
The Group had the following commitments for property development RIRERR - AEEREHERE T HAE
expenditure at the end of the reporting period: RAEFEWAT
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREET T

Contracted, but not provided for:

Properties under development

REIFSEFS K

R 1,723,747 1,794,483
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37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37.{E&iH8KiE
As lessor fEREHAA
The Group leases out its investment properties under operating AREBREBELEHELZHLAEIREYE
lease arrangements on terms ranging from one to twenty five years HEANT—2—1+HF - WrARENEEAR
and with an option for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time BEENEEEEMER NEFTHE -
all terms will be renegotiated.
At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease M2013F 12 A31 B  ANEEIRIEEEA S
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants SN BN A S S HE MmN T 5 BAfE 2 2R
falling due as follows: B B & K EUAH S RIBRZEIA T
2013 2012
2013 £ 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Within one year —FR 70,284 58,153
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EFNF (FEMFEREEN) 150,111 124,449
After five years AF& 46,301 25,291

266,696 207,893
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37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office premises under operating
lease arrangements, negotiated for terms of five years with an option
for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

37. EEHERIE ()

EREBEA

AEERBREHERHAREETHAE
W EHKERRMAF  WANRERE
HRBESHNER SRR T EHE -

201312 A31 B » REBRE A
REHEEMR NI B R Hr B & SRR

follows: MEFIELTEAT
2013 2012
2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBT T
Within one year —&FR 6,172 7,537
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZFRF(ERMEBRFBEN) 15,096 16,099
After five years hFE 27,966 31,317
49,234 54,953
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. XBARE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Guarantees given to banks for: FATIER 45 TIRITHIHER ¢
Mortgage facilities granted REEYHEERER

to purchasers of the RITIRIBE R

Group’s properties 2,094,348 1,362,294

The Group provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled to take
over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee
periods commence from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and end after the execution of individual purchasers’ collateral
agreements.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the financial year
in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted
to purchasers of the Group’s properties. The directors consider that
in case of default on payments, the net realisable value of the related
properties can cover the repayment of the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore
no provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

AEERETRITAAREMENERER L
MIIBEE HAER o RIBEARZHHEK -
fil ESRRREEERIBHIA - AEBE B EER
EHEEE% ERHVER MZIBE R LB F

REIR - ARBEHERAERZBEREIEDN
ai%ﬁ%°$%l%%%%mﬁﬁm@&
BERBHEEER BRI LERBHRR
1k e

REMRVBFE  AEBELERAEEYE
MERER TORIBEEMRHOERME
EEMEAEE - EFERA - WHIRAREE
KEER - HEMENT SR FERIAEE
%T%?ﬁ?&%ﬁ&ﬁguﬁ'@&mﬁk ES)laia
BRASERELEE -

REEERRAT
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 39. lAp#l o Em IR
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHSMITARREHRNREEBERAT

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2013 Group 2013 & AEH
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets
at fair value
Available- through
for-sale profit or loss
Loans and financial ~ L\AREE
receivables assets FTEEHSZH
EXR AfHE FAEHER Total
WA tREE  WEREE @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETR AR¥TR ARETR

Long term deposit RHER 35,984 - - 35,984
Equity investments at fair value NARBETEHES

profit or loss STAEBRNERTE - - 1,077 1,077
Available-for-sale investments AHRHERE - 3,300 - 3,300
Trade and bills receivables RUE SRR R 2K 22,980 - - 22,980
Financial assets included in prepayments, ~ sf ATERZUE « & R EA

deposits and other receivables FEUHEFNEREE 118,748 - - 118,748
Restricted cash XRHRE 397,472 - - 397,472
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 1,234,975 - - 1,234,975
At 31 December 2013 201312 A31H 1,810,159 3,300 1,077 1,814,536
Financial liabilities SREE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REBERE AW

EA =N

RMB’000

ARET T

Trade payables B E SRR 1,794,221

Financial liabilities included in ST AEL MR FRIE K

other payables and accruals ErrERATHNEREaE 452,966
Interest-bearing bank STESRITE SRR H AR

and other borrowings 5,456,294

7,703,481
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY .LBEHNEsHEMIR
CATEGORY (CONTINUED) i)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHeMmTARNRESHARANERENDT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (%)
(continued)
2012 Group 20124 AEH
Financial assets SREE
Financial
assets
at fair value
through
Available- profit or loss
Loans and for-sdle  AAAEE
receivables financial assets  f£ B HEE)
=694 AHHE  FAERER Total
NI SREE MeREE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARETT
Long term deposit REPGEH 26,310 - - 26,310
Equity investments at fair value WAREEFEAEES
profit or loss AR BIERAEREE - - 722 722
Avallable-for-sale investments ARHERE - 5,610 - 5,610
Trade and bills receivables EYWEZENRER 3,860 - - 3,860
Financial assets included in prepayments,  sT ATERZUE - & R EA
deposits and other receivables EUFETMEREE 85,126 - - 85,126
Restricted cash XBHEE 225,438 - - 225,438
Cash and cash equivalents ReLREEEN 894,077 - - 894,077
At 31 December 2012 2012512 A31H 1,234,811 5,610 722 1,241,143
Financial liabilities THREHE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
TR ER K AN EY
ERIAE
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade payables FERTE ZERR 1,513,439
Financial liabilities included in ST AE AP FRIE &
other payables and accruals ErrERATHEmEaE 592,888
Interest-bearing bank and T RIRITTE R R EALER
other borrowings 4,232,167
6,338,494
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY .LUEHNESsHEMRT R
==
CATEGORY (CONTINUED) (#8)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHEeMIANRESHRMBEEERT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (&)
(continued)
2013 Company 2013 & RATF
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss
Loans and DAREE
receivables STERHEEH
BEXRR STAEHER Total
PEURRIE HEmEE et
Equity investments at fair value AR EETZEBEZE
through profit or loss AR RS ERIRE - 1,077 1,077
Financial assets included in FTATERRIE - Be
prepayments, deposits and R H Ath EMGRIBR HY
other receivables SREE 565 - 565
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUS B A Bk IE 1,830,798 - 1,830,798
Cash and cash equivalents R RREEHEY 88,091 - 88,091
1,919,454 1,077 1,920,531
Financial liabilities SHARE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBERAR AT
ol =N
RMB’000
ARET T
Financial liabilities included in AT AEABERFRIE R
other payables and accruals EErERTHN AR 2,035
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT BT A BIZRIE 187,044
189,079
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

O.LIBAB eI R

CATEGORY (CONTINUED) (&)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHeMmTARNREHARNERENDT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (&)
(continued)
2012 Company 20124 RATF
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss
Loans and AR EE
receivables STEEHEEZS
BR & N R Total
FEMRIE et EE “@eEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARBFIT
Equity investments at fair value AR EEZ AR
through profit or loss FFAE BEEERIRE - 722 722
Financial assets included in FTABARIE - Ee
prepayments, deposits and R H Ath FEMGRIBE R HY
other receivables SREE 52 - 52
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEL T A Bl 5RIA 1,891,949 - 1,891,949
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEFEY 1,739 - 1,739
1,893,740 722 1,894,462
Financial liabilities SRBE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

bire: 3 D WINE
SRaE
RMB’000
AREETIT
Financial liabilities included in ST A AL T IE K
other payables and accruals EErERATNESmEaE 1,617
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEISTFT BB A )R8 109,330
110,947
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: A
Group rEE
Carrying amounts
IRMEE
2013 2012
2013 F 2012 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT

AEERARAERTANFRERAAE
BT - EREAEEAA BESEREER

Fair values
AREE
2013 2012
2013 F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT

Financial assets

Restricted cash, non-current
portion

Long term deposit

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Available-for-sale investments

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

TRMEE
RRHFE -
FERBE D
REBER
NAREEFERE
HEtAS IS
HRESRIRE
AHHERE

SWMaE
SR BTN
HAbER

95,750 95,750 95,750 95,750
35,984 26,310 35,984 26,310
1,077 722 1,077 722
3,300 5,610 3,300 5,610
136,111 128,392 136,111 128,392

5,456,294 4,232,167

5,265,761 4,057,101
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments are as follows: (continued)

40.

5>

-

TRMARRER
E%:48 (1])

T
]

AEEMARR M TANKAERAAE
B : (&)

Company AR
Carrying amounts Fair values
SRMEE AREE
2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 F 20124 2013 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTrT AR®BTR ARETT
Financial assets SREE
Equity investments at fair value AAREEFZAE
through profit or loss SET AL BERL
EHRE 1,077 722 1,077 722

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, the current portion of pledged deposits, trade and
bills receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, amounts due from/to
subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of restricted cash, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2013 was
assessed to be insignificant.

BRRE MR SEFEY - HIRFRAORNEAE
7 BREESERFERE  BRNESERR
FTATBNTRR - e REMERFIETH S
BEE - FTAHMENFTIEMERE R
SR A E NIRRT S A R RIENE S
NEH - HEEBRRZETAAA(EER
HIREERS -

ERMEERBENAABENZTARER
RS (MIFRAIBRHE)EARS TH
AR SEBARR ° THITDERBRII ARG

HRREE:

RRHREIERB A - FHERITERRE
B RE R A EBETERRE TARBLUE
KASOFE - FERR MG TRIHBFE
BEHMAKRBEREME - REER 2013
F12 A 31 BB RITER R E SR
EHRBREHERTERK -
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity
investments have been estimated using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on assumptions that are not supported
by observable market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to make estimates about the expected future cash flows
including expected future dividends and proceeds on subsequent
disposal of the shares. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

\

4 2

(

TR
H3R48

5
o

J

")

(=]

RER

T

Al
=

EiESREN AR BERMSRERETE
FEMAHHERSRENAABEERA
PFRGRIE @R E MEEL FRR I E AR
MISERKARETE - AEEREEHET
BRRERE (BREEFARRERERE
ERMEAEFIR) LG - EERAM
ERMEHH G AR BE(REHE R
ARAR) R AR BENEEES (REME
EW S AR) TIE AR M E ST EHRRE
EHfH(E

Fair value hierarchy AREESREE
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRINAEESRTEN AR BERE
the Group’s financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value UAREEFGENEE
As at 31 December 2013: R2013F 12431 H -
Fair value measurement using
DARABEFERALE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
EXRAHE EXFTH
SERTIERE iz HEHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B et} B=H “st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR AR%T R AR%T AR®TT
Equity investments at fair value ’D\ﬁ* EBE;TEAH
through profit or loss S AE HiERR
A 1,077 - - 1,077
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 40.
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2012: R2012F 12 A31 H -

MIANARKRERS
E%R48 (1])

T
A

Fair value measurement using

ARBESEMAAE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

E-WNGIF- E-v Nl

EERTIZRE & BEEE
(B—#3) (B=®) (B=) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Equity investments at fair value WAREEEER
through profit or loss EE A EERMN

A 722 - - 722

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 1. BHERBEEE HRR R
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash AEENEMTATERREREMREEE
equivalents, restricted cash and interest-bearing bank and other Y- ZBRHE ST BIRITER R EAE
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to K e ﬁ%%mﬂlﬂigﬁﬁﬁé%l‘%l%‘@%
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various SE8¢  AEEHAEEMESREERAE
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and Pl E SRR R ENTE SRR - RE#E
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. WHEEESE -
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are AEESHIAMEEANEZRRERER
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. B - SNERERR - EERBAREE SRR
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments $’§@W:@TTEY%TTME%WEIEVEE\E
for trading purposes. The directors reviews and agrees policies for R - UTNTAZEEeRAITRETE L
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below: HEROBRMZ
(a) Interest rate risk (a) FZEE
The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets. The REBWEERGTEEE - NEEH
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest 5 ) S 8 Ffr?%x 7 R g 3 2 e
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank and other REEMESRITERREMBETRE
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group has not - Zliﬁlﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬂﬂ—?—?ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its interest rate risk. RELA R R g o
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to change TRINEFEEET - FBEEF=X
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the BENFE  AEBERBATFERAR
Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate SEBE=HNSRRE (T EMEER
borrowings) and the Group’s equity. FEE) o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. BERREEREHERBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (¥8)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Interest rate risk (continued) (a) FIEEBE ()
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity
E2igm RRBE A1 R M
Om4) ®hn, CRd) OGR4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFIT
2013 2013 §F
RMB AR 50 (26,013) (19,510)
us$ v 50 (1,280) (960)
RMB AR (50) 26,013 19,510
Us$ ETT (50) 1,280 960
2012 2012
RMB AR 50 (17,382) (13,037)
us$ e 50 (3,779 (2,834)
RMB AR (50) 17,382 13,037
uss$ ETT (50) 3,779 2,834
(b) Foreign currency risk (b) SMEEER
The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and A BTS2 BAE R B AT
all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of the Group’s AR ZEMRAARKE - REEKE
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, except for NEERBBEUARBEE - BTN
certain bank balances and bank loans denominated in US$ KL RABTAHENRITESRRRITE
and HK$. RSN o
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRV S EIRBA0RE R ARE
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the %é)‘g@%&%,ﬁﬁj{ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁlﬁ%é
US$ and HK$ exchange rates, with all other variables hold }?ﬂﬁggiﬂm’?ﬁz@ﬁ; + MERTE HoAn Al
constant, of the Group profit before tax and the Group’s BRARRHTE -
equity.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. BERREEERRBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES &
(CONTINUED)
(b) Foreign currency risk (continued) (b) IMEERBS (4E)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
foreign in profit (decrease)
currency rate before tax in equity
SEER BB A1 AU R
i, D) i, CR) #in, Oid)
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
2013 2013
If HK$ weakens against US$ w8 7T S R T B B 5 1,518 1,139
If HK$ strengthens against US$ {8 7T 4.3 T FHE (5) (1,518) (1,139)
If RMB weakens i AR HETTiE 5 (10,916) (8,187)
against the US$
If RMB strengthens fig ARHE W 2T HHE (5) 10,916 8,187
against the US$
2012 20124
If HK$ weakens against US$ w8 7T 5 R TR (B 5 (13,773) (10,330)
If HK$ strengthens against US$  fi#/B7T % E L AHE ) 13,773 10,330
If RMB weakens fig ABRHE W T2 (B 5 (37,256) (27,942)
against the US$
If RMB strengthens i AR A ETTFHE (5) 37,256 27,942
against the US$
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The Group’s
cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited with overseas
banks and state-owned banks in Mainland China. The
carrying amounts of the other receivables, restricted cash
and cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets. The Group has no other financial assets which carry
significant exposure to credit risk. The Group has arranged
bank financing for certain purchasers of its property units and
has provided guarantees to secure the obligations of such
purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosures of these
guarantees are made in note 38.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
loans.

(c)

(d)

N HERREEERRKE

FERR

REEWEEHHEERRE - AEE
NERE RSB EERTFRILE
HMRTT R AR B A B R TTEV R °
B OF B AR 50 2= P T 1 ) A PR LS R
B ZRHREREERIELEEY
RERE(E A A S BB E S B & B A&
ENSEEERR o NE B &S
BERAEERBHEMEMEE - A5
EEAHEETYXBMNHERLTHR
TEVE WIRHIERAMREERMIER
B AEZEREROFEEESN
Pi5E38 o

RBESRER

AEERALEERPESHEITA
ERHESHERR - ZTAEREH
TRTARGREE (NEKE SR
F)MEZBRERNREEEBE 2R
SR

AEEWENTVEBMBRITER
HFFEDTERIEEER L ZEHF

fig -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. ﬂ#jﬁﬂl‘ﬁ’é‘ﬂ R BR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (48&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REELRMRR ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at BEFTARERNR  AEEERE
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BERMERRNEBABRAOT ¢
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
Group rEE
2013
2013%
Less than 3 to less than 1to5 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
3fEAZE
RER  OR3ERA  HR12(8A 1855 5§50 L 3t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARETR

Interest-bearing bank STEBITER

and other borrowings REAER - 113,146 1,157,134 4,701,035 619,727 6,591,042
Trade payables ERE SRR 1,794,221 - - - - 1,794,221
Guarantees given to PETAEEME

banks in connection EXNEBER

with mortgage ATHRITMER

facilities granted to

purchasers of the

Group’s properties - 1,835,358 - 258,990 - 2,094,348
Other payables Hi R TE

and accruals LT ER 178,273 - - 274,693 - 452,966

1,972,494 1,948,504 1,157,134 5,234,718 619,727 10,932,577
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B ISR EE
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. BERREEREHERBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (¥8
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) KEBELER (&)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as RIBETORTRAR  AEB S/ E
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BERREARNZ AR T ¢

undiscounted payments, is as follows (continued):

Group rEE
2012
20124
Lessthan 3 to less than 1105 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
3EAZE
w2k JW3EA Sr2fA 1255 5ELLE it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETT ARETT AR%TR ARKTT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank FTRRTER

and other borrowings REAER - 440,956 1,597,006 2,529,424 200,234 4,857,620
Trade payables ENEZERR 1,513,439 - - - - 1513439
Guarantees given to RETAREEME

banks in connection BEXMRIBER

with mortgage e TRITHER

facilities granted to

purchasers of the

Group’s properties - 1,362,294 - - - 1,362,294
Other payables Hi A

and accruals REHER 139,637 - 124,323 328,928 - 592,388

1,663,076  1,803250 1,721,329 2,858,352 290,234 8,326,241
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R R M RE
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. BMERREEREHERBFR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (¥8)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBELER (&)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as BEETAORTIENT  XEESRE
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual BERMEHRNEBABRAOT ¢
undiscounted payments, is as follows (continued):
Company ¥ /NG|
2013
2013
Less than 3 to less than 1to5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5years Total
3f@AZE
REX SR3ER SR12{8A 125%F 5FHE @t

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARMTR AR%TR ARMTRT AR%ETZR

Due to subsidiaries FERHE A RIFUE 187,044 - - - - 187,044
Other payables HiEAFIE

and accruals KT 2,035 - - - - 2,035

189,079 - - - - 189,079

2012
20125
Less than 3 to less than 1105 Over
On demand 3months 12 months years 5 years Total
3fEAZE
BEK  SR3EA PR121EA 1255 5FLLE st

RMB000O ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARETR

Due to subsidiaries PN R 109,330 - = - - 109,330

Other payables HAb (T3R8
and accruals RETER 1,617 = = = = 1,617
110,947 = = = = 110,947
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BrEE R M

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade payables
and other payables and accruals, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

(e)

N HERREZEMRRE

18

EXEE

AEBEAEENTIEBNEERE
ALBREHHELEREREFNE
AR - UXIHERBRERRER
RAE °

REBMEBHEERNER - WIRBCE
RS B 52 B KN AR B ) B B R R
HHEIELAE - RERNARERNE
& AEER R AES N FREAR
B BERRETRESLFITHR
15 - BZE2013F & 2012F 12 431 H
IEFE - AEBEREREREENE
2 - BURSARFPIEH EEE -

AEBEREEABHLRERFER
ZEBEERBLERAFERRAZAM
FEE - FERBEBERITERK
HipfE5k - A E SRR EMER
RRREER  BRASRATEFE
) o BEATIRRARBRREEER ° 1
BREMRNEEABLENAT ¢
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B R R B B
41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BERREEEHERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (8)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Capital management (continued) (e) EXRER
Group rEE
2013 2012
2013 & 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
Interest-bearing bank and FTRIRITE R R E AL SR 5,456,294 4,232,167
other borrowings
Trade payables JEIS B SRR 1,794,221 1,513,439
Other payables and accruals HE A R ERTE A 495,389 662,943
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERREEEY (1,234,975) (894,077)
Net debt FEIR 6,510,929 5,514,472
Equity attributable to SARIER AEEEZ 5,886,902 5,397,221

owners of the parent

Capital and net debt BRI FER 12,397,831 10,911,693
Gearing ratio BEAMGLEE 53% 51%
42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 42. B T|AOTH
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by EEER 201443 A 24 BBBIMIEHRED
the board of directors on 24 March 2014. IR T o
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Properties Held for Investment

FIERENYE

As at 31 December 2013 742013412 A 31 B

Percentage
of interest
Existing use at GFA attributable to Lease term
31 December 2013 (sg. m.) the Group of land
Address R2013 4 EEEE AKEEG TiEHE
ok 1231 BNREAZE (FHK) EZEHEIEE HHR
1. Basement 1 to Level 15, Guomao Building, Shops and portion 12,225 81% Medium (Note)
No. 93 Shixin Road, Chengxiang Town, of it is vacant,
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang and serviced
Province, the PRC apartments
FEI BN TmILE S FEET /O 0358 REBmn=ERR 12,225 81% R AR (Bt EE)
BEEAEMEEEE15/E BAAE
2. A retail shop unit on L1, Shanghai La Vie, No. Shop 341 90% Medium
433 Chang Le Road, Xuhui District, Shanghai,
the PRC
RE EETIRER R 43358 BRRET 341 90% i
F1Er 1 ERH
3 Portion of Level 1, the whole of Level 2 to Shops and portion of 5,913 90% Medium
Level 4, Integrated Service Center, East it is vacant
Xiaoran Road and Jinjiagiao Road, Xiaoshan
District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the
PRC
HEANTEMMNTRILRRARERSRE  EHNIHZE 5913  90% H A
RS RBROENBHOME2EE4[E
4, Retail shop units of Level 1 to Level 5 in Shops and portion of 60,014 90% Medium
Block 2 to Block 5 of Highlong Plaza, Shanyin it is vacant
Road and Gongren Road, Xiaoshan District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
HRENTATNTRLRILBEMTARIE HHMEHnzE 60,014  90% H AR
BESE2RERSRZEI1EE5 BB
o8 Office units in Block 2 of Highlong Plaza, Office and portion of 24,491 90% Medium
Shanyin Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, it is vacant
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
FECIHIEMMTRLEILRKRERESSE HAEMHMHE 24,491 90% H Ef
2R Z I AIEEE Y
6. Serviced apartment units in Block 3 and 4 of ~ Serviced apartments 21,094 90% Medium
Highlong Plaza, Shanyin Road and Gongren
Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC
FEANTEMNTRLRILBEMTARE BREXAS 21,094  90% H AR

EESEIREFEIRZBREALE
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Properties Held

for Investment

FERENR

As at 31 December 2013 20134 12 A 31 H

Percentage
of interest
Existing use at GFA attributable to Lease term
31 December 2013 (sg- m.) the Group of land

Address R2013 4 EEEE AKEEG T
ok 1231 BWREAZE (FHK) EEHEIEE HHR
7. Retail shop units of Level 1 to Level 2 (Phase Shops and portion of 10,885 90% Medium

1) and the whole No.43 commercial building it is vacant

(Phase 2), Landscape Garden, Shushan

Road and Panshui Road, Xiaoshan District,

Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

R EUANT AN TR LR & LB AE KRR IL AmAnEt i = 10,885  90% H AR

IKFEE 1 BASE 1 EE 2 [R5 M5 2 BB IR 43

it
8. Retail shop units of Hidden Dragon Bay, Shops and portion of 24,328 92.5% Medium

Wenxing Village, Wenyan Town Xiaoshan it is vacant

District Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the

PRC

FREDIMI AN TR L & EIR AR AR A EE 24,328 92.5% ]

B
9. Retail shop units of Level 1 to Level 2 in Shops and portion of 4,659 100% Medium

Phase | of Vancouver City, Jinhua Yuan, it is vacant*

Renmin Road, Huaibei, Anhui Province, the

PRC

PERZEEEIETRILEARBRTENRE BENSH=E~ 4,659 100% H AR

EHE1RE2EMH
Note: Medium is defined as the term of land use rights granted remaining unexpired at the iz : FHIEE AR EE R - Bt L AEES

end of the financial year is less than 50 years but not less than 10 years.

Investment property classified as held for sale

i Al A/ NA B0 - B/ NA104F ©

DERFHEHERNREY R

REFEERRAT
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

HERERHEENYE

% of
Land Cost interest
per sq.m. attributable
(RMB)  Land Cost to the Group Site Area
BE#E  (RMBI00O) v (sqm)
Project City/District Location Project Type (\R¥n/  1H#RE FEfs R HWEER  Project GFA*
EHER it/ & EEH NEREKE ¥iK)  (AR¥TT) R (FhR) BRAREER"
Zhejiang Province
HiTE
1 Landscape Bay Xiaoshan, Hangzhou  Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 485 145,367 92.60% 215,334 300,012
RE B/ &Il Tier 2 clty frE
ZBaTR D
2 Hidden Dragon Bay Xiaoshan, Hangzhou  Centre of new districtin -~ Residential/retail/office 1,491 360,360 92.5% 89,178 241,695
Bk BN /&L Tier 2 city fre/ B4/ H0E
ZBaTRD
3 Huifeng Plaza (A) Xiaoshan, Hangzhou  Town centre of Tier 2 city  Residential/retal 147 5490 90.00% 13910 37,320
ELESA fill/ &l IR ]
4 Huifeng Plaza (B) Xiaoshan, Hangzhou  Town centre of Tier 2 city ~ Commercial 679 8,500 90.00% 11,340 12,620
ELESB M/l ZRBERD [
5 Phase A, Intemational Office  Xiaoshan, Hangzhou  Tier 2 city with high growth - Commercial 269 215,246 100.00% 92,610 798,7%
Centre Bl / &Il potential BE
ERHAT LA BRik
6 Phase B & C, International Xiaoshan, Hangzhou  Tier 2 city with high growth - Commercial 458 502,512 100.00% 207,390 1,098,065
Offie Centre /2Ll potenta i
BRHARLBCH “hEER
7 White Horse Manor Xiaoheshan, Tier 2 city with high growth  Residential 2,259 550,000 90.00% 145,265 243,497
BSILE Hangzhou potentia frz
M/ —BREk
8 Hangzhou Qiandao Lake Run ~ Qiandao Lake, Tier 2 city with high growth  Residential/hotel 5,806 215,000 100.00% 112,698 37,028
Zhou Resort Hotel Hangzhou potentia fr=/ Bk
TNTSHENEREE  AM/TEH “hEER
9 loeal Bay Yuhang, Hangzhou ~ Town centre of Tier 2 city  Residential/retail 1,648 834,000 45.90% 168,743 538,856
mee i/ & ZRARRD £/
Subtotal for Hangzhou 858 2,836,475 1,046,358 3,307,788
fuM bt
10 Dragon Bay Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Tier 2 ¢ty Residential 8,892 1,750,014 90.00% 330,135 196,809
i3 B /A0 YR frz
11 Jade Mansion Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Tier 2 city ~ Residential 3,804 1,113,764 93.00% 271,468 292,807
FRRE 2R/ —HRTL £
12 Zhong An Times Square Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Tier 2 city ~ Commercial/hotel 1,154 362,640 90.00% 65,159 305,473
(Phase ) ER/ A ZAERD B2/ 1k
FENRE—H
13 Zhong An Times Square Yuyao, Ningbo Town centre of Tier 2 city  Residential/office/hotel 1,030 332,760 93.00% 7,519 322,935
(Phasell) /i ZRARRD £/ B0R/EE
RRERESZH
14 Zhong An Landscape Garden,  Cixi, Ningbo Tier 2 ciy with high growth - Residential/office/ 482 238,080 90.00% 197,655 494,138
Oix /&2 potential commerical
HERRIIKS “hEER /e m%
Subtotal for Ningbo 2,349 3,787,248 935,926 1,612,162
BRG
Subtotal for Zhejiang 1,346 6,623,723 1,982,284 4,919,950
ML
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FERRR NHEENWE

Land Bank (sq.m.)
LG (TAK)
Development Phases Types
Including GELE REKE
Total GFA* investment Hold for
(sq.m.) properties  Completed for Under future  Residential & Commercial &

Address aREEE EnEf sale” development® development® Facilities | Hotel Il Office Ill
it (FA%) REnx RIHE" REPC BHARERS  GEZRERI EEN BERBAN
Ningwei Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang 126,634 126,634 120,729 5905
Province
MIAnNTRILESESR
Wenxing Road, Wenyan Town, Xiaoshan District, 151,665 24,328 151,665 124,457 27,208
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province
mLaNHRILEREARRR
Yucai Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang 37,320 37,320 37,320
Province
MIAMNTRILEE 1%
Yucai Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang 12,520 11,320 12,520 12,600
Province
MLANTRILEST 3%
Qianjiang Century Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, 798,795 500,434 328,367 470428 409,551 101,500 287,744
Zhejiang Province
IAMNTRILES TR
Qianjiang Century Town, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, 1,098,065 998,015 1,098,065 1,098,065
Zhejiang Province
mLaNTRILES T R
Liuhe Road, Xianlin Town, Yuhang District, Hangzhou, 243497 243,497 237,498 5,999
Zhejiang Province
LA mRTE AR
Southwest of Qiandaohu Town, Chunan, Hangzhou, 31,028 23,801 37,028 13,227 23,801
Zhejiang Province
mLaMNTER T & HEER
Yuhang Economic Development Zone, Hangzhou, 538,856 538,866 522,648 16,208
Zhejiang Province
LA TR ERE R

3,044,380 1,557,898 218,299 1,147,148 1,618,333 2,563,495 125,301 355,584
Xinjtan North Road, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 64,022 64,022 64,022
A AT
Xinjian North Road, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 292,807 292,807 292,807
i NR=ER 31
Xinjtan North Road, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 305473 132,886 305,473 114,671 20,624 170,178
LA AT
Xinjian North Road, Yuyao, Zhejiang Province 322,935 322,935 203,038 71,679 48218
AR
Longshan New Town, Binghai District, Cidong, Cixi, 494,138 142,965 494138 301,173 142,965

Zhejiang Province

MIAREERBRERL

1,479,375 275,851 64,022 1,415,353 1,025,711 92,308 361,361

4,523,755 1,833,749 342,321 2,563,101 1,618,333 3,589,206 217,604 716,945
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FERRRHEENWE

% of
Land Cost interest
per sq.m. attributable
(RMB)  Land Cost to the Group Site Area
BELE  (RMB'000) 158 (sqm)
Project City/District Location Project Type (\R¥n/  1H#RE FEfs R HWEER  Project GFA*
BRER i /B WEER VESE idt ¥r%)  (ARETR) MBS (Frk) BEAREER"
Anhui Province
7HE
15 Phase 1B, Green Harbour Hefei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 266 11,645 84.15% 64,376 43718
BEHEZ1BY R/ AR Tier 2 oty fie
ZBaTR D
16 Phase 1C, Green Harbour Hefel, Anhui Centre of new districtin-~ Residential 302 21,356 84.15% 58,723 90,453
BERLEICH ZH /A8 Tier 2 city iz
AL
17 Phase 2, Green Harbour Hefei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 376 40,708 84.15% 269,000 108,200
BEsEEE R/ AR Tier 2 oty fiE
ZBaTR D
18 Phases 3-6, Green Harbour ~ Hefel, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 5382 298,100 84.15% 1,395,000 560,300
bty EREX): /AR Tier 2 ciy fz
AL
Subtotal for Hefei 4 377,809 1,187,099 802,671
AN
19 Phase 1, Vancouver City Hualbei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 3 5809 100.00% 197,000 168,088
ATENE 2/ Tier 3 iy iz
=AD
20 Phase 2 South, Vancouver City - Huaibel, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 35 3483 100.00% 151,247 100,771
e ) i R/ Tier 3 ciy [z
=R
21 Phase 2 North, Vancouver City  Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 34 2,504 100.00% 84,330 75,027
BFEAE B 2/ Tier 3 iy iz
=AD
22 Phase 3A, Vancouver Gty Huaioei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 35 4974 100.00% 139,383 143,941
BEFEEAE 28/l Tier 3 cly fF£
=R
23 Phase 3B-3D, Vancouver City  Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 3 10,703 100.00% 214217 309,712
BIEHEBEDE ZH/ Tier 3 city iz
=AD
24 Phase 4 North, Vancouver City - Huaibel, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 35 10,286 100.00% 296,704 297,636
BFERE AR 28/ Tier 3 city frz
=R
25 Phase 4 South, Vancouver City - Huaibel, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 3 3,863 100.00% 82,540 11,787
BFEAEHE 2/ Tier 3 ciy frz
=AD
26 Phase 5 North, Vancouver City - Huaibel, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 35 2,336 100.00% 265,310 67,607
RSB 28/ Tier 3 city frE
=R
2 Phase 5 South, Vancouver City - Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 3 1,228 100.00% 81,511 35,021
AFENE5 8 2/ Tier 3 ciy iz
=D
28 Phase 6, Vancouver City Huaioei, Anhi Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 35 1,962 100.00% 35,386 56,470
REE6H R/ Tier 3 iy fe
=R
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FERRR NHEENWE

Land Bank (sq.m.)
LG (TAK)
Development Phases Types
Including LELE] REER
Total GFA* investment Hold for

(sq.m.) properties  Completed for Under future  Residential & Commercial &
Address aREEE EnEf sale” development® development® Facilities | Hotel Il Office Ill
it (FA%) REnx RIHE" REPC BHARERS  GEZRERI EEN BERBAN
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anhui Province 18,380 18,380 10,363 8,027
R e AT RRER
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anhui Province 67,596 67,59 67,596
REAREnRIERER
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anhui Province 108,200 108,200 108,200
2R RET AT RRER
Landu Road, Baohe District, Hefei, Anhui Province 560,300 560,300 560,300
REAREnRIERER

754,476 85,976 668,500 746,449 8,027
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 4800 4,659 4800 4800
REEETRLEARR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 8419 8419 8419
ZHRELMALRARRE
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 10429 10429 10429
REAEITRILEARRE
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 5908 5908 5,908
ZHREL AR AR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 309,712 309,712 302,061 7,661
REEEITRILEARR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 104,628 104,628 104,523
ZHREL AR AR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 11,787 11,787 11,787
REAEITRILEARRE
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 61,958 61,958 61,958
ZHREL AR AR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 35,521 35,021 35,621
REAEIHRLEARR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 56,470 56,470 30,910 26,560
ZHREL AR AR
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

FERRRHEENWE

% of
Land Cost interest
per sq.m. attributable
(RMB)  Land Cost to the Group Site Area
BELE  (RMB'000) v (sqm)
Project City/District Location Project Type (\R¥n/  1H#RE FEfs R HWEER  Project GFA*
EHER it/ & WEER VESE idt ¥iK)  (AR¥TT) R (FhR) BRAREER"
29 Phase 6D, Vancouver Gity Huaibei, Anhi Centre of new districtin -~ Hotel 30 2,025 100.00% 60,768 67,061
BFEIEDH 28/ Tier 3ty il
=R
30 Phase 7, Vancouver City Huaioei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 35 4721 100.00% 80,291 136,772
BTSN 2/ Tier 3 iy frz
AL
31 Southwest of Times Square,  Hualbei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential
Vancouver City R/ Tier 3 oty frE
RFEN (BRESER) SRR
32 Northeast of Times Square, ~Huaibei, Anhui Centre of new districtin -~ Residential 3 2,862 100.00% 87,072 82,815
Vancouver Oty 28/ Tier 3 city iz
REFER (RRERRL) AL
Subtotal of Huaibei 34 56,802 1,835,759 1,653,208
3l
Subtotal of Anhui 177 434,611 3,622,858 2,455,879
R
Jiangsu Province
TEE
31 Suzhou Industrial Park Suzhou,Jiangsu Tier 2 city with high growth  Residential/commercial 1,445 363,240 44.10% 21,367 261,391
FNI%ERE L& /&N potential frz/m%
—heER
Subtotal of Jiangsu 1,445 363,240 21,367 251,391
LA
Total 973 7,421,574 5,262,509 7,627,220
&3t

ok

# Total GFA= D+ @+® =1+ Il + Il
* BREERFLEREAREE SRR i

* BRERTERHERZOZEDD

# BREERE=O+Q+O =1+1+II

including those with land use right and contractual interests

including those with construction being completed but not sold and delivered
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Properties Held for Development and/or Sale

BFERREK SHENYE
Land Bank (sq.m.)
TR (TAR)
Development Phases Types
Including LELE] REER
Total GFA* investment Hold for
(sq.m.) properties  Completed for Under future  Residential & Commercial &
Address aREEE EnEf sale” development® development® Facilities | Hotel Il Office Ill
it (FA%) R&nx RIHE" BEA? BUAREES  AEREEI EEN BERBAN
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 67,061 67,061 67,061 67,061
ZHREL AR AR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 136,772 136,772 136,772
REBELTRALEARE
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province
ZHRE AR AR
Renmin Road, Xiangshan District, Huaibei, Anhui Province 82,815 82,815 82,815 82,815
REBELTRLEARE
996,175 151,727 196,037 67,061 733,077 793,961 67,061 135,153
1,750,651 151,727 282,013 67,061 1,401,577 1,540,410 67,061 143,180
Suzhou Indlustrial Park, Jiangsu Province 251,391 62,975 251,391 122,886 44,551 83,954
TN I2ER
251,301 62,975 251,301 122,886 44,551 83,954

6,526,797* 2,048,451 624,334* 2,881,663 3,019,910 5,252,502 329,216 944,079
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Summary of Financial Information

MBENHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

AEERFEEAMNERRYBRRNKIA
ERBEEFENEE  BEIFHEREROH

published audited financial statements. BEFWAT :
Results E4
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31ALLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
2013 F 2012 2011 & 20104 2009 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue A 2,437,605 2,395,625 1,688,699 1,243,871 1,624,476
Profit before tax IR 824,174 696,831 687,238 640,483 670,240
Income Tax FriS i (366,160) (306,778) (308,671) (227,223) (227,975)
Profit for the year FRFE 458,014 390,053 378,567 413,260 442 265
Attributable to: AR A -
Owners of the parent FARIER A 420,539 336,228 351,391 379,759 408,917
Non-controlling interests EEaliig 37,475 53,825 27,176 33,501 33,348
458,014 390,053 378,567 413,260 442 265
Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests 2% - &R FZRER
31 December
128318
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
2013 F 2012 4 20114 20104 2009 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Total Assets BEE 17,143,648 14,885,603 13,648,782 11,139,299 7,266,226
Total Liabilities FN=N (10,954,046) (9,184,457)  (8,380,674)  (6,324,956) (2,841,786)
Non-controlling Interests PRI 2 (302,700) (303,925) (205,400) (178,224) (144,411)
5,886,902 5,397,221 5,062,708 4,636,119 4,280,029
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